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Welcome to possible

Ref: MT/STAT/CS/15-16/110

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

October 20, 2015

Ref: Application under Clause 24(f) of the Listing Agreement
Sub: Composite Scheme of Amalgamation of Discoverture Solutions LLC. (Transferor Company

1) and Relational Solutions Inc. (Transferor Company 2) with Mindtree Limited (Transferee

Company)

Dear Sir,

We refer to the above subject and in terms of Clause 24(f) of the Listing Agreement, we would like to bring
to your kind notice that the Board of Directors of Mindtree Limited (Transferee Company) at their meeting
held on Oct 15, 2015 has approved the Composite scheme of Amalgamation of Discoverture Solutions
LLC (“Transferor Company 1) and Relational Solutions Inc.(Transferor Company 2), the wholly owned
subsidiaries with Mindtree Limited (Transferee Company), the holding Company.

As required we herewith submit 2 sets of required documents as per the checklist enclosed. We further
enclose herewith cheque bearing number 249648 for an amount of Rs.104,000/- (Rupees One lakh and
four thousand only) dated Oct 20, 2015 drawn on HSBC, M G Road, Bangalore (Net amount after the

deduction of applicable TDS)

We request you to take the above document on record and grant us the approval at the earliest.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited

'"\f/( ) \/}3

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@ M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnatalka, India.

Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com
List of details/ documents required for grant of approval under Clause 24(f)
of the Listing Agreement @
(Amalgamation)
Sr. List of Documents/ details to be submitted Yes/No/Not Applicable
No. Page Numbers
1 |Certified true copy of Scheme/ Petition proposed to be filed Yes. Annexure A
before any Court or Tribunal under sections 391, 394 and 101 o -2 3
of the Companies Act, 1956.
2 |Valuation Report from Independent Chartered Accountant, if] Yes Annexure Bl
any (Certified true copy). ‘wa
3 |Report from the Audit Committee recommending the Draft Yes Annexure B2
Scheme, taking into consideration, inter alia, the Valuation o?g -2 7
Report issued by Independent Chartered Accountant. )
4 _ |Fairness opinion by merchant banker, if any. Yes Annexure C 28 -2k
5 |Shareholding pattern in accordance with Clause 35 of the Yes
Listing agreement - for pre and post scheme of arrangement of| ~ Annexure D1- Transferece Company |36~ |
the Companies. Annexure D2 - Transferor Company 1 | /4, 2

Annexure D3 - Transferor Company 2 43

6 |Audited financials of last 3 years Yes

Annexure E1 - Transferee audited
financials as of Mar 31, 2013 W - Tt
Annexure E2- Transferee audited
financials as of Mar 31, 2014 95 - 1%
Annexure E3 - Transferee audited
financials as of Mar 31, 2015 I8 -20)
Annexure E4 - Transfeee audited
financials as of June 30, 2015 D2 - 2% F
Annexure E5- Audited financials of
Transferor 1 for the two months ended
Mar 31 2015.Audited financials are not
required to be prepared in the country of
incorporation and hence the same was not
prepared by the transferor company 1
before the acquisition. odh §-.263
Annexure E6 - Unaudited financials of
Transferor 2 for the period Jan 01, 2014 to
Mar 31, 2015 prepared at the time of
acquiring Transferor 2 .Audited financials
are not required to be prepared in the
country of incorporation and hence the
same was not prepared by the transferor

company 2 before the acquisition. Qé"f‘” 231
7 |Certificate from Auditors to the effect that the accounting Yes Annexure F
treatment contained in the scheme is in compliance with all 2F2
the applicable Accounting Standards specified by the Central
Government in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013*.
Mindtree Ltd. y - @
Global Village T +91806706 4000 :
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



@J Mindtree

Welcome to possible

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

{* Provided that in case of Companies where the respective sectoral regulatory authorities have prescribed norms for

|** Free Reserves to be considered as per Section 2(43) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F
Bengaluru - 560059

+91 80 6706 4000
+91 806706 4100
W www.mindtree.com

8 |Certificate from Statutory Auditors / Practicing Chartered Yes Annexure G X3 - 2 3}'0?

Accountants / Practicing Company Secretary for Networth (Networth

= Equity Share Capital + Free Reserves** - Miscellaneous

Expenditure written off, along with the detailed working) of the

Company pre and post Scheme under Sections 101, 391 and 394 of]

the Companies Act, 1956.
9 {Board resolution approving the scheme of arrangement. Yes

Transfereree Company - Annexure H1
Transferor Company 1 - Not applicable as it is 92 % 5 - 8
a LLC and there is no Board
Transferoror Company 2 - Annexure H2

10 _|Confirmation from the Company regarding the following:
a) |Undertaking in accordance with Clause 24(g) of Listing Agreement Yes Annexure | o??‘ 9

i.e. scheme of amalgamation / arrangement to be presented to any

Court or Tribunal does not in any way violate, override or

circumscribe the provisions of securities laws or the stock exchange

requirements.
b) iUndertaking that the Company is in Compliance with Clause 49 of] Yes Annexure J 0? go -2 g 3

the Listing Agreement
¢) |Rational behind the scheme of arrangement. Yes Annexure K e o‘? g 5
d) |Brief details about the business of the Companies. Yes Annexure L Q€6
11 |Website link of the Company where the draft Scheme and other http://www.mindtree.com/about-

required documents shall be uploaded (Also submit soft copy of the us/investors

documents)
12 [Complaints Report as per Annexure I (To be submitted within 7 days{ The details shall be submitted within 7 days

of expiry of 21 days from the date of filing of Draft Scheme). from the expiry of 21 days
13 |Others Annexure M 2Y¥F-2 4"

a) An undertaking certified by the auditor clearly stating the reasons

for non applicability of Para 5.16(a).

Date 20-Oct-15
Place Bangalore
Authorised Signatory and Stamp of the company V ( ) \/j,
Name Vedavalli S
Designation Company Secretary
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COMPOSITE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF

MINDTREE LIMITED
AND
DISCOVERTURE SOLUTIONS L.L.C.
AND
RELATIONAL SOLUTIONS INC

PART 1

PRELIMINARY

A.

This Composite Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of (i)
Discoverture Solutions L.L.C., having its registered office at 16100 North 71
Street, suite 250, Scottsdale, Arizona 85254 (i.e. the “Transferor Company 1”)
and (ii) Relational Solutions Inc, having its registered office at Great Northern Corp
Centre III, 25050 Country club Blvd, Suite 105, North Olmsted, Ohio 44070, (i.e.
the “Transferor Company 2”) with Mindtree Limited, having its registered office
at Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore 560 059 (i.e. the
“Transferee Company”) pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Transferor Company 1 and Transferor Company 2 (jointly referred to as the
“Transferor Companies”) are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee
Company.

The Transferor Company 1 was incorporated on October 1, 2002, as per the
provisions of the Arizona Limited Liability Company Act, 1992, (“ALLC Act”),
Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 29, and Chapter 4. The Transferor Company 1 is
involved in the business of providing technology services for property and casualty
insurance and healthcare industries.

The Transferor Company 2 was incorporated on January 22, 1996, as per the
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Ohio, Sections 1701.01
to 1701.99 of the Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”). The Transferor Company 2 is
involved in the business of providing technology services for consumer products
and goods industries.

The Transferee Company was incorporated as a private company on August 5,
1999, under the name MindTree Consulting Private Limited as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently, MindTree Consulting Private Limited
ceased to be a private company and the name of the Transferee Company was
changed to MindTree Consulting Limited on November 6, 2006. Subsequently on
March 28, 2008, the name of the Transferee Company was changed from MindTree

For Mindiree Limited SN
Company Secretary LAY
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Consulting Limited to Mindtree Limited. The Transferee Company is involved in
the business of software and technology related services, product development
services, information management services etc.

The merger of the Transferor Companies under this Scheme of Amalgamation will
be effected as a Scheme under the provisions of the other Applicable Laws and
under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Under the laws of the States of Arizona, this transaction will be characterised as a
merger of a Arizona Limited Liability Company with and into a foreign company,
with the survivor being a foreign company, pursuant to the Arizona Entity
Restructuring Act (“AER Act”), Title 29, Chapter 6 of the Arizona Revised
Statutes, and specifically Article 2 of said Chapter, Arizona Revised Statutes §29-
2201 et. seq.

Under the laws of the State of Ohio, this transaction will be characterised as a
merger of a domestic corporation with and into a foreign parent corporation, with
the survivor being a foreign company, pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code Section
1701.80.

By this Scheme of Amalgamation it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor
Companies with the Transferee Company, for the purposes of better, efficient and
economical management, control and running of the businesses, and for further
development and growth of the business of the Transferee Company and for
administrative convenience. The proposed amalgamation between the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company shall result in the following, benefits,
amongst others, to both companies, their respective members and creditors.

() The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its
business operations and provide significant impetus to the growth of the
Transferee Company. The consolidation of the activities by way of an
amalgamation will lead to synergies of operations and a stronger and wider
capital and financial base for future growth/expansion. The combined entity
will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a wider array of
customers, which will strengthen its competitive position in providing IT
services /software & technology related services markets This will also
enable the Transferee Company to address newer solutions and services to
its customers and to transferor’s customers and enhance its marketing
capabilities.

(i) ~ The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in
overheads, administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational
rationalisation, organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of various
resources.




(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to the
strength of the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee
Company will offer a strong financial structure to all creditors including the
creditors of the Transferor Companies, facilitate resource mobilisation and
achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially towards
enhancement of shareholder’s value of the Transferee Company.

Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with the
multiple record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity
of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by

the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company.

The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the
proposed amalgamation as their security is maintained.

There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the
Transferee Company apart from reduction in costs.

The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both the
companies and a single management structure for the companies.

The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the

——Transferee Company to develop a business model that would be

competitive and cogent.

PART II

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE RECIPROCAL PROMISES, THIS SCHEME
BETWEEN THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES AND THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, CREDITORS
(SECURED AND UNSECURED) IS BEING PROPOSED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TERMS SET OUT HEREUNDER:

1.

1.1

1.2

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following
expressions shall have the following meaning:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1956, as may be applicable, including any
statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereto and shall include the
relevant and corresponding sections under the Companies Act, 2013, as and when

the same are made applicable before the Effective date of the Scheme.

“AER Act” shall mean Arizona Entity Restructuring Act, A.R.S. §29-2201 et seq.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

“ALLC Act” shall mean Arizona Limited Liability Company Act, A.R.S. §29-601
et seq. -

“A.R.S.” means Arizona Revised Statutes.

“Appropriate Authorities” means any governmental, statutory, regulatory,
department or public body or authority of the relevant jurisdiction, including, if
applicable, Securities and Exchange Board of India, stock exchanges, Registrar of
Companies, Courts and other regulatory authorities of the State of Arizona, United
States of America, the State of Ohio, United States of America and India in each
case.

"Appointed Date" means April 1, 2015.
“Applicable Laws” shall include all applicable:

(i)  statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, laws, ordinances, rules,
bye-laws, regulations, listing agreements, notifications, guidelines or policies
of any applicable country and/or jurisdiction; and

(if) judicial, quasi-judicial and/or administrative decisions, interpretations,
directions, directives, licenses, permits, judgments, writs, injunctions, arbitral
awards, decrees, orders, terms and conditions of governmental or regulatory
approvals or agreements-with any governmental or regulatory authority.

"Effective Date" means last of the dates specified in Clause 13 of this Scheme.
“ORC” means Ohio Revised Code.

“Order” means the order of the High Court of Karnataka, sanctioning the
Composite Scheme of Amalgamation.

“Scheme” or “The Scheme” means this Composite Scheme of Amalgamation in its
present form as approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies
and Transferee Company subject to such modification(s) made under Clause 12 of
this Scheme as the High Court of Karnataka may impose on the Transferee
Company and such modifications which the Transferor Companies may deem
necessary subject to the approval of the same by the High Court of Karnataka.

“Transferee Company” means Mindtree Limited, a company incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Global Village, RVCE
Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore 560 059.

“Transferor Company 1” means Discoverture Solutions L.L.C., an Arizona
limited liability company incorporated in the State of Arizona, United States of

-




America, under the Arizona Limited Liability Company Act, Arizona Revised
Statutes, Title 29, Chapter 4 and having its place of business at 16100 North 715
Street, suite 250, Scottsdale, Arizona 85254. v

1.14  “Transferor Company 2” means Relational Solutions Inc, incorporated as per the
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Ohio, Sections 1701.01
to 1701.99 of the ORC and having its place of business at Great Northern Corp
Centre 111, 25050 Country club Blvd, Suite 105, North Olmsted, Ohio 44070.

1.15  “Undertaking of the Transferor Companies” means the business of the
Transferor Companies and includes:

(a) all the assets of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date;
(b) all liabilties of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date;

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Undertaking of the Transferor
Companies shall include all rights, privileges, powers and authorities and all
property, movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal of
whatsoever nature, in possession or reversion, present or contingent of whatever
nature and where so ever situated in the United States of America or overseas, and
where so ever situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and/or
in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor
Companies including in particular, but without being limited to fixed assets, capital
work-in-progress, current assets, debts, receivables, investments, software,
— —technologies, belonging to or in the ownership, power-or possession and/or in the
control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor
Companies, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, permissions, licenses,
consents, exemptions, registrations, statutory licences, no-objection certificates and
certifications, contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, title, interest, quotas,
benefits and advantages of whatsoever nature and where so ever situated, liberties,
easements, advantages, exemptions, benefits, leases, leasehold rights, licences,
tenancy rights, quota rights, permits, approvals, authorisations, right to use and
avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile connections & installations, utilities,
electricity, power lines, communication lines and other services, reserves, deposits,
provisions, funds, benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants, sales-tax, turnover
tax, excise, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, tenancies, roof rights, brand, all
copyrights, trademarks, service marks, know-how, technical know-how, trade
names, descriptions, trading style, franchise, labels, label, designs, colour schemes,
utility models, holograms, bar codes, designs, patents, copyrights, and other
industrial or intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever and licences in
respect thereof, privileges and any rights, title or interest in intellectual property
rights, benefits of contracts, agreements and all other rights including lease rights,
licenses including those relating to trademarks, or service marks, powers and
facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever of the Transferor
Companies or to which the Transferor Companies is entitled and all the debts,
liabilities including contingent liabilities, duties, responsibilities and obligations of




1.16

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

3.1.1

Transferor Companies on the Appointed Date and all other obligations of
whatsoever kind including liabilities for payment of gratuity, pension benefits,
provident fund or compensation in the event of retrenchment and all other interests
arising to the Transferor Companies and any accretions or additions thereto after
the Appointed Date.

Reference in the Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or
“effectiveness of the Scheme” shall mean the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on September 30, 2015 is as under:

 Particula
Authorised Share Capital
80,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 800,00,00,000/-
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
8,38,35,626 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 83,83,56,260/-

The Transferee Company is the sole member of the Transferor Company 1 and
owns 100% membership interests in the Transferor Company 1.

The share capital of the Transferor Company 2 as on September 30, 2015 is as
under:

Authorised Share Capital

1000 Shares of Common Stock 500
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

1000 Shares of Common Stock : 500

The Transferee Company is the sole shareholder of the Transferor Company 2. The
Transferee Company holds 1000 Shares of Common stock representing the 100%
of the shareholding of the Transferor Company 2.

AMALGAMATION OF COMPANIES
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date
and subject to the provisions of this Scheme including in relation to the mode of
transfer and vesting, all of the assets, both movable and immovable, tangible and
intangible, investments, rights, title and interests comprised in the Undertaking of
Transferor Companies shall pursuant to Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956
and without any further act or deed be transferred to and vested in the Transferee




Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets,
rights, title and interest of the Transferee Company.

The mode of vesting of assets referred to in Clause 3.1.1 is as under:

3.1.2.1 In respect of such of the said assets as are movable in nature including
investments or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery and/or
by endorsement and delivery, the same shall be so transferred by the
Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company in pursuance of the
provisions of this Scheme, Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, this
Scheme, provisions of A.R.S. §29-2206.A.3 in realtion to Transferor
Company 1 and provisions of ORC Section 1701.82(A)(3) in relation to
Transferor Company 2 and other Applicable Laws, without requiring any
deed or instrument of conveyance for the same and upon such transfer the
same shall become the property, estate, assets, rights, title interest and
authorities of the Transferee Company.

3.1.2.2 In respect of such of the said assets of the Transferor Companies other than
those referred to in Clause 3.1.2.1 above including the immovable assets,
the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand
transferred to and vested in and/or deemed to be transferred to and vested in
the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to
the provisions of Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
concerned authorities having jurisdiction over the assets shall endorse and
record the name of Transferee Company- in its record so as to facilitate the
implementation of the Scheme and vesting of the Undertaking of the
Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company without hindrance from
the Appointed Date. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that
all the rights, title and interest of the Transferor Company in any leasehold
properties shall pursuant to Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
provisions of this Scheme and provisions of A.R.S. §29-2206.A.3 in
realtion to Transferor Company 1 and provisions of ORC Section
1701.82(A)(3) in relation to Transferor Company 2 and other Applicable
Laws, without any further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and
vested in and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested
in the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Appointed
Date, the right, title and interest of the Transferee Company.

3.1.2.3 In respect of movable assets, other than those specified in Clause 3.1.2.1
above, including all businesses through /with existing sub-brokers /
authorised persons /clients and related rights & obligations, undertakings /
records / know your customer documents, sundry debtors, outstanding
loans, advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received,
bank balances, cash balances and deposits with Government, Semi
Government, local and other authorities, bodies and customers, etc., the
same shall be so transferred by the Transferor Companies, and shall become
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the property of the Transferee Company in pursuance of the provisions of
Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and provisions of A.R.S. §29-
2206.A.3 in realtion to Transferor Company 1 and provisions of ORC
Section 1701.82(A)(3) in relation to Transferor Company 2 and other
Applicable Laws without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance
for the same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of
any third party or other person, who is a party to any contract or
arrangement by virtue of which such debts, loans, advances or deposits have
arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause. The Transferee
Company may, if required, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and
proper to such person, debtor or depositee that pursuant to the High Court
of Karnataka having sanctioned the Scheme, the said person, debtor or
depositee should pay the debt, loan or advance or make good the same or
hold the same to its account and that the right of the Transferee Company to
recover or realise the same is in substitution of the right of the Transferor
Companies. The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the
Scheme be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf
of the Transferor Companies and to implement or carry out all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor
Companies to be carried out or performed.

3.1.2.4 All patents, copyrights, designs, trademarks, service marks, know-how,
technical know-how, trade names, descriptions, trading style, franchise,
labels, label designs, colour schemes, utility models, holograms, bar codes,
patents,-copyrights, and other industrial or intellectual property rights of any
nature whatsoever and licenses, privileges in respect thereof, of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever of the Transferor Companies or to which
the Transferor Companies is entitled or which may accrue to the Transferor
Companies shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and provisions of A.R.S. §29-2206.A.3 in realtion to
Transferor Company 1 and provisions of ORC Section 1701.82(A)(3) in
relation to Transferor Company 2 and other Applicable Laws without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and
or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be available to
the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date,
all the patents, copyrights, designs, trademarks, service marks, know-how,
technical know-how, trade names, descriptions, trading style, franchise,
labels, label designs, colour schemes, utility models, holograms, bar codes,
patents, copyrights, and industrial or intellectual property rights, licenses
and privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective
and enforceable by the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions.

3.1.2.5 All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, incentives, sales

tax deferrals, loans, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other




benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by and
all rights and benefits that have accrued, which may accrue to the
Transferor Companies shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of
the Companies Act, 1956 and provisions of A.R.S. §29-2206.A.3 in realtion
to Transferor Company 1 and provisions of ORC Section 1701.82(A)(3) in
relation to Transferor Company 2 and other Applicable Laws without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and
or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be available to
the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date
the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, incentives, sales tax
deferrals, loans, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other
benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid,
effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent
permissible under law.

3.1.2.6 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and subject to the provisions of
this Scheme and receipt of third party consents if necessary, all contracts,
deeds, bonds, agreements, arrangements including but not limited to all
direct and indirect tax exemptions and/or deferral benefits and/or any other
direct or indirect tax benefits and all other instruments of whatsoever nature
to which the Transferor Companies are parties or to the benefit of which
Transferor Companies may be eligible, and which are subsisting or having
effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall remain in full force and
effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company as the case may be
and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor
Companies, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or
obligee thereto. The Transferee Company shall, wherever and if necessary,
enter into -and/or issue and/or execute deeds, writings or confirmations,
enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations to which
Transferor Companies will also be a party in order to give formal effect to
the provisions of this clause. Similarly, the exemption privilege and benefits
under direct and indirect taxes availed/ enjoyed currently by the Transferor
Companies shall continue to be available in the hands of the Transferee
Company unhindered even after/upon coming into effect of this Scheme.

3.1.2.7 All the profits or incomes accruing or arising to the Transferor Companies,
or expenditure or losses arising or incurred (including the effect of taxes, if
any, thereon) by the Transferor Companies shall, for all purposes, be treated
and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or incomes or expenditure or
losses or taxes of the Transferee Company, as the case may be.

It is clarified that all assets and receivables whether contingent or otherwise of the
Transferor Companies as on start of business on the Appointed Date whether
provided for or not, in the books of accounts and all other assets or receivables
which may accrue or arise on or after the Appointed Date but which relate to the




3.2

3.2.1

period up to the Appointed Date shall be the assets and receivables or otherwise as
the case may be of the Transferee Company.

The aforesaid transfer/vesting, shall be, subject to the existing validly created
charge/mortgage/hypothecation over the said assets or any part of it, provided
however, that any reference in any security documents to which the Transferor
Companies are parties, to such assets of the Transferor Companies, offered or
agreed to be offered as security for any financial assistance both availed and to be
availed up to any limit for which sanctions have already been obtained by the
Transferor Companies or obligations to the secured creditors of the Transferor
Companies shall be construed as references only to the assets pertaining to the
Transferor Companies as are vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of the
aforesaid Clause 3.1.1 of the Scheme to the end and intent that such security,
mortgage and/or charge shall not extend or deemed to extend to any of the assets or
to any of the other units or divisions or undertakings of the Transferee Company,
unless specifically and in writing agreed to by the Transferee Company with such
secured creditors and subject to the consents and approvals of the existing secured
creditors of the Transferee Company with such secured creditors and subject to the
consents and approvals of the existing secured creditors of the Transferee Company
either on pari passu basis or otherwise, as may be agreed to by the Transferee
Company and the secured creditors. The secured creditors of the Transferee
Company shall continue to have a charge over the assets of the Transferee
Company and such charge shall not extend to the assets of the Transferor
Companies, transferred to the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme. In
respect-of the floating charges created by the Transferor Companies in favour of its
lenders for all the movable assets, documents of title to goods, receivables, claims
and other current assets that are acquired by the Transferor Companies from the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date shall be deemed to be the security and shall
be available as security for the loans, cash credits and other working capital
facilities, both fund based and non-fund based, which were sanctioned by the
lenders of the Transferor Companies, either utilised fully or partly or unutilised by
the Transferor Companies, subject to the limits sanctioned by the lenders.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES
Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date:

All secured and unsecured debts, (whether in Rupees or in foreign currency) all
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Companies (hereinafter referred
to as the “said Liabilities) shall also be and stand transferred or be deemed to be
and stand transferred, without any further act, instrument or deed, to the Transferee
Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956
and provisions of A.R.S. §29-2206.A.3 in realtion to Transferor Company 1 and
provisions of ORC Section 1701.82(A)(3) in relation to Transferor Company 2 and
other Applicable Laws so as to become as and from the Appointed Date the debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company such that it shall not
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be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party
to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this clause.
Provided always that nothing in this clause shall or is intended to enlarge the
security for any loan, deposit or other indebtedness created by the Transferor
Companies prior to the Appointed Date which shall be transferred to and be vested
in the Transferee Company by virtue of the amalgamation and the Transferee
Company shall not be required or obliged in any manner to create any further or
additional security thereof after the Appointed Date or otherwise. The Transferee
Company may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance
with the provisions hereof, if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise,
execute deeds of confirmation in favour of the creditors of the Transferor
Companies or in favour of any other party to any contract or arrangement to which
the Transferor Companies were parties or any writings, as may be necessary, in
order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall
under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be authorised to execute any such
writings on behalf of the Transferor Companies and to implement or carry out all
such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor
Companies to be carried out or performed.

Any loans or other obligations due between or amongst the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company shall stand discharged and there shall be no liability
or debt in that behalf. It is clarified that all debts, liabilities, duties, responsibilities
and obligations of the Transferor Companies as on start of business on the
Appointed Date whether provided for or not in the books of accounts and all other
liabilities etc which may accrue or arise on or after the Appointed Date but which
relates to the period up to the Appointed Date shall be the debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Transferee Company.

All the loans advanced and other facilities sanctioned to the Transferor Companies
by its bankers/financial institutions prior to the Appointed Date which are partly
drawn/utilised shall be deemed to be the loans/advances - sanctioned to the
Transferee Company and the said loans and advances shall be drawn/utilised either
partly or fully by the Transferor Companies from the Appointed Date till the
Effective Date and all the loans/advances and/or other facilities so drawn by the
Transferor Companies shall on the Effective Date be treated as the advances and
loans made available to the Transferee Company and any balance in the said
accounts shall be transferred to the Transferee Company and all the obligations of
the Transferor Companies under any loan agreement shall be construed as and shall
become the obligation of the Transferee Company without any further act or deed
on the part of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company may at any time after the coming into effect of this
Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation, in favour of the
secured creditors of the Transferor Companies or in favour of any other party to
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any contract or arrangement to which they are a party or any writings as may be
necessary to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The
Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be
authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Companies and
to implement or carry out all such formalities or compliance referred to above on
their part to be carried out or performed.

3.2.5 It is hereby clarified that merely the increase in the size and turnover of the
Transferee Company subsequent to this Scheme shall not have the effect of
increasing any liability or penalty on the Transferee Company for any matters that
arise prior to the Appointed Date.

3.2.6 Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, benefits of all taxes paid including any
advance tax and tax deductions right to carry forward and set off unabsorbed
losses, unused tax credits, tax deductions and depreciation by the Transferor
Companies from the Appointed Date, regardless of the period to which they relate,
shall be deemed to be paid for and on behalf of and to the credit of the Transferee
Company as effectively as if the Transferee Company has paid or incurred the same
and shall be deemed to be the rights/claims of the Transferee Company.

3.2.7 The existing social security or labour welfare schemes, and pension and / or
superannuation fund or trusts created by the Transferor Companies or any other
special funds created or existing for the benefit of the employees of the Transferor
Companies shall at an appropriate stage be transferred to the relevant funds of the

——Transferee Company and till such time shall be maintained separately.

3.2.8 The Transferee Company, if necessary shall take steps for suitable alterations in the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association so as to enable it to
implement this Scheme as may be required.

3.3 CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS.

Subject to the other provisions contained in the Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds,
agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor
Companies is a party subsisting or having effect immediately before the
amalgamation, shall be, in full force and effect, against or in favour of the
Transferee Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced as fully and
effectively as if instead of the Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company had
been a party thereto. The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and/or
execute deeds, writings or confirmation or enter into any tripartite arrangement,
confirmations or novations to which the Transferor Companies will, if necessary,
also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this clause, if so
required or it becomes necessary.

34 TREATMENT OF TAXES PAID BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES:
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3.5

3.5.1

352

353

4.1

4.2

All taxes, levies, cess etc. (whether direct or indirect) that might have been paid by
the Transferor Companies (whether before the Appointed Date or after the
Appointed Date) during the period when the merger has not become effective for
any tax liability that arises after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be tax paid
by the Transferee Company and credit in respect thereof shall be given to the
Transferee Company accordingly.

TREATMENT OF SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE INCOME
TAX ACT, 1961

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply and come within the definition and
conditions relating to "Amalgamation" as specified under Section 2(1B) and
Section 47 of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent
with the provisions of the said sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961, at a later date,
including resulting from an amendment of any Applicable Law or for any other
reason whatsoever, the Scheme shall stand modified/ amended to the extent
determined necessary to comply and come within the definition and conditions
relating to “Amalgamation” as specified in the Income Tax Act, 1961. In such an
event the clauses which are inconsistent shall be read down or if the need arises be
deemed to be deleted and such modification/reading down or deemed deletion shall
however not affect the other parts of the Scheme.

Any refund under the-tax laws received by or due to the Transferor Companies
consequent to any assessments made on the Transferor Companies subsequent to
the Appointed Date pertaining to the business transferred and for which no credit is
taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date,
shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

TRANSFER OF EMPLOYEES
On the Effective Date:

The services of all the employees of the Transferor Companies shall stand
transferred to the Transferee Company on the terms and conditions not less
beneficial to such employees than those subsisting with reference to the Transferor
Companies. The position, rank, and designation of the employees would be decided
by the Transferee Company.

The services of such employees shall not be treated as broken or interrupted for the
purposes of bonus, provident fund, gratuity, superannuation or other statutory
purposes and for all purposes will be reckoned from the date of their respective
appointments with the respective Transferor Companies, as the case maybe.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

Subject to Clause 4.1, the Transferee Company shall have the right to transfer such
employees to any unit, division, profit/cost centre or department of the Transferee
Company situated anywhere in India or abroad if warranted and as may be deemed
necessary from time to time.

The Transferee Company shall assume all of the rights, obligations, and liabilities
of the Transferor Companies in connection with any immigration related matters
including any programs, fillings, etc in the United States of America.

In regard to labour welfare fund or social security benefits or any other special fund
created or existing for the benefit of such employees of the Transferor Companies,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall stand
substituted for the Transferor Companies for all purposes whatsoever relating to the
administration or operation of such schemes or funds in relation to the obligations
to make contributions to the said funds in accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds in the respective trust deeds or other documents. It is the aim and
intent of the Scheme that all the rights, duties, powers and obligations of the
Transferor Companies in relation to such schemes or funds shall become those of
the Transferee Company and if necessary the names of the aforesaid funds or
schemes will be suitably changed. It is clarified that the services of the employees
of the Transferor Companies will be treated as having been continuous for the
purpose of the aforesaid schemes, fund, trusts, etc. In the event that the
trustees/funds are constituted as holders of any securities, trust funds of trust
monies, in relation to any provident fund trust, gratuity trust or superannuation trust
of the Transferor Companies, such funds/securities/ monies shall be transferred by
such funds/ trustees of the trusts of the Transferor Companies to such funds/trustees
of the trusts of the Transferee Company as may be existing or set up for the same
purpose and object and such transfer shall be deemed to be a transfer of trust
property from one set of trustees to another set of trustees in accordance with the
provisions of the Applicable Laws and relevant stamp legislation as applicable. In
such case, appropriate Deed(s) of Trust and/or documents for transfer of trust
properties shall be executed simultaneously upon the sanction of the Scheme in
accordance with the terms hereof by the trustees in favour of the trusts of the
Transferee Company so as to continue the benefits of the employees. For this
purpose such funds or schemes of the Transferor Companies may be continued
and/or amalgamated with and/or transferred to the similar funds/schemes of the
Transferee Company, if the Transferee Company considers so desirable or deemed
fit for the smooth administration, management, operation and uniformity of such
funds/schemes so however, that such funds/schemes do not become less favourable
to the employees of the Transferor Companies with reference to those on the date
preceding the Effective Date. The trustees including the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to adopt such course in this regard as may be
advised provided however that there shall be no discontinuation or breakage in the
service of the employees of the Transferor Companies.
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4.6
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It is clarified that with regard to such employees of the Transferor Companies who
have ceased to be the employees of the Transferor Companies on account of
reasons other than any disciplinary action that may have been taken against such
employees by the Transferor Companies, from the Appointed Date, the Transferee
Company shall assume all the responsibilities and obligations of the Transferor
Companies towards such employees until the said responsibilities and obligations
stand duly discharged in law.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE
With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date:

the Transferor Companies shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall carry
on all their business(es) and activity(ies) and shall be deemed to have held and
stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of all of the assets of the
Transferor Companies for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee
Company. The Transferor Companies hereby undertake to hold the said assets with
utmost prudence until the Effective Date.

the Transferor Companies shall carry on their business and activities with
reasonable diligence, business prudence in the ordinary course of business and shall
not (without the prior written consent of the Transferee Company) alienate, charge,
mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose off any of its
units/undertakings or any part thereof except pursuant to any pre-existing
obligation undertaken by the Transferor Companies prior to the Appointed Date.

all the profits or income accruing to the Transferor Companies or expenditure or
losses arising or incurred or suffered by Transferor Companies shall pursuant to
coming into effect of the Scheme for all purposes be treated and be deemed to be
and accrue as the income or profits or losses or expenditure, as the case may be, of
the Transferee Company.

Save as provided for in this Scheme, the Transferor Companies shall not make any
change in their capital structure either by any increase (by fresh issue of equity
shares whether by way of public issue, private placement, on a rights basis, or
issuance of bonus shares, convertible debentures or otherwise), decrease,
reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-organisation, or in any
other manner which may, in any way, affect the operation of the Scheme, except by
mutual consent of the respective Boards of Directors of the Transferor Companies
and Transferee Company.

The Transferor Companies shall also be entitled, pending the sanction of the
Scheme, to apply to the Appropriate Authority, as are necessary for such consents,
approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require.




5.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

The Transferee Company shall carry on the business of the Transferor Companies
after the Effective Date.

CONCLUDED MATTERS

The transfer and vesting of the assets and the liabilities in the Transferee Company
and the continuance of contracts or proceedings by or against the Transferee
Company as provided in this Scheme shall not affect any contract or proceedings
relating to the assets and the liabilities, fully performed and completed by the
Transferor Companies before the Appointed Date and the Transferee Company
accepts and adopts all such acts, deeds, matters and things done and or executed by
the Transferor Companies in this regard.

DISOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company 1 shall stand dissolved
without being wound up pursuant to the provisions of the AER Act, A.R.S. §29-
2206.A.2 and Transferor Company 2 shall stand dissolved without being wound up
pursuant to the provisions of the ORC Section 1701.82(A)(1).

The Transferor Company 1 shall be required to file all necessary documents
including those set out in A.R.S. §29-2202 of the AER Act with the Arizona
Corporation Commission along with this Scheme and corporate resolution of the
Transferor Company 1 and the Transferor Company 1 will be stuck off the register
maintained by the Arizona Corporation Commission effective the date of the
merger under the laws of India.

The Transferor Company 2 shall be required to file all necessary documents
including those set out in ORC Section 1701.92 with the Secretary of State of Ohio
along with this Scheme and corporate resolution of the Transferor Company 2 and
the Transferor Company 2 will be stuck off the register maintained by the Secretary
of State of Ohio effective the date of the merger under the laws of India.

CONSIDERATION BY THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee
Company and the entire share capital of Transferor Companies are held by the
Transferee Company. The Transferor Companies undertake not to effect any
change in their share capital till this Scheme comes into effect. Upon the coming
into effect of this Scheme, the investment made by the Transferee Company in the
share capital of the Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and no shares shall
be issued by the Transferee Company to the shareholder of the Transferor
Companies, without there being any further act or deed in furtherance thereof.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire share capital of the Transferor
Companies shall be cancelled and extinguished.



9.1

9.2
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11.2

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Transferee Company shall, upon the Scheme becoming operative, record the
assets and liabilities of the Transferor Companies vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at the respective book value in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

The investments made in the share capital of the Transferor Companies by
Transferee Company will stand cancelled.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, any goodwill arising out of amalgamation,
shall be treated in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

PENDING LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against Transferor
Companies be pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or be in any
way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation by anything contained in
this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be continued
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner
and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Transferor Companies as if this-Scheme had not been
made. Therefore, upon this Scheme coming into effect, all legal actions, suits, writs
or other proceedings by or against the Transferor Companies pending and/or arising
on or before the Effective Date shall be continued and be enforced by or against the
Transferee Company, as the case may be, as effectually as if the same had been
pending and/or arising by or against the Transferee Company.

APPLICATION TO THE HONOURABLE HIGH COURT OF
KARNATAKA AND OTHER APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES

The Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make application to
the High Court of Karnataka where the registered office of the Transferee Company
is situated, for sanctioning this Scheme under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 for an Order or Orders thereof sanctioning this Scheme and for carrying
this Scheme into effect.

The Transferor Company 1 shall initiate and pursue all actions necessary under the
ALLC Act, the AER Act and provisions of any other Applicable Law under the
State of Arizona, United States of America for sanctioning of the Scheme and
obtain all such approvals if any, as may be required under the relevant Applicable
Laws, including the AER Act, A.R.S. §29-2201 et seq.
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11.3
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12.1

12.2
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13.1

The Transferor Company 2 shall initiate and pursue all actions necessary under the
General Corporation Law of the State of Ohio and provisions of any other
Applicable Law under the State of Ohio, United States of America for sanctioning
of the Scheme and obtain all such approvals if any, as may be required under the
relevant Applicable Laws, including the General Corporation Law of the State of
Ohio.

MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Companies and Transferee Company by their respective Boards of
Directors may make and/or consent to any modifications/amendments to the
Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the court or any other authority may
deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary,
desirable or appropriate by them. The Transferor Companies and Transferee
Company by their respective Boards of Directors shall be authorised to take all
such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to resolve any doubts,
difficulties or questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of any other
authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the
Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments thereof or additions thereto, the delegate(s)/ representative(s) of the
Transferee Company may give and are hereby authorized to determine and give all
such directions as are necessary including directions for settling or removing any
question of doubt or difficulty-that may arise and such determination or directions, -
as the case may be, shall be binding on all parties, in the same manner as if the
same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS/SANCTIONS
The Scheme is condition on and subject to:

13.1.1 Approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the members, creditors
and such class of persons of the Transferee Company as may be directed by
the High Court of Karnataka on applications made for directions under
section 391 of the Companies Act, 1956.

13.1.2 Approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors or of the member(s) of
the Transferor Company 1 as may be prescribed under the applicable
provisions of the ALLC Act, the AER Act and all other Applicable Laws.

13.1.3 Approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors or of the member(s) of

the Transferor Company 2 as may be prescribed under the applicable
provisions of the ORC and all other Applicable Laws




13.1.4 Sanctions and Orders under the provisions of Section 391 read with Section
394 of the Companies Act, 1956 being obtained by the Transferee Company
from the High Court of Karnataka.

13.1.5 All other sanctions and approvals as may be required by any Applicable
Law in respect of this Scheme being obtained.

13.2 It is clarified that the provisions of paragraph 5.16 (a) introduced through circular
bearing no CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May 21, 2013 as an amendment to the
circular bearing no CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India shall not be applicable to this Scheme.

13.3  This Scheme, although to come into operation from the Appointed Date, shall not
become effective until the last of the following dates, namely:

13.3.1 That on which the last of the aforesaid consents, approvals, permissions,
resolutions, assignments and orders as mentioned in Clause 13.1 shall be
obtained or passed.

13.3.2 That on which all necessary certified copies of Orders under Sections 391
and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 shall be duly filed with the Registrar
of Companies, Karnataka and such other Appropriate Authority located in
the State of Arizona and the State of Ohio, United States of America, if so
required.

The last of such dates shall be the “Effective Date” for the purpose of this Scheme.
14 OPERATIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

It is clarified that the Scheme shall become effective from the Effective Date
however it shall be operative from the Appointed Date.

15 COSTS

15.1 All costs, charges and expenses including stamp duty and registration fee of any
deed, document, instrument or court’s order including this Scheme or in relation to
or in connection with negotiations leading upto the Scheme and of carrying out and
implementing the terms and provisions of this Scheme and incidental to the
completion of arrangement in pursuance of this Scheme shall be borne and paid by
the Transferee Company.

16. EFFECT OF NON RECEIPT OF APPROVAL/SANCTION
In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 13

above not being obtained and/or complied with and/or satisfied and/or this Scheme
not being sanctioned by the High Court of Karnataka and/or Order or Orders not
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being passed as aforesaid before or within such further period or periods as may be
agreed upon between the Boards of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company (who are hereby empowered and authorised to agree to and
extend the aforesaid period from time to time without any limitations in exercise of
their powers through and by their respective delegate(s)) or for any other reason
this Scheme cannot be made effective, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled,
be of no effect and be null and void. No rights and liabilities shall accrue to or be
incurred inter-se by the parties in terms of the Scheme, save and except in respect
of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any
right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which
shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as may otherwise arise in law.
Further the Boards of Directors of the Transferor Companies and Transferee
Company shall be entitled to revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme to be of no
effect if such Boards are of view that the coming into effect of the Scheme in terms
of the provisions of this Scheme or filing of the drawn up Orders with any authority
could have serious financial implication on the Transferor Companies and/or the
Transferee Company or any of the aforesaid companies. And in case of any of the
aforesaid events, each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses
in connection with this Scheme.

- 000000 -

For Mindtree Limited

e/ S

Company Secretary
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RCE & Co.

Chartered Accountands

To,

The Board of Directors

Mindtree Limited

Global Village,

Mylasandra, Mysore Road, RVCE Post,
Bangalore — 560059

Mo, 458 & 458, Znd Floorn MP Arcads
18k Main Read, 4th T Block, Jayanagsr
Bengaliung - 560 (41

Tel/Fax: 4120 5848, 4087 3833
wwworcegiobal com

CERTIFICATE OF EXCHANGE RATIO

IN THE MATTER OF AMALGAMATION OF DISCOVERTURE SOLUTIONS L.L.C AND

RELATIONAL SOLUTIONS INC WITH MINDTREE LIMITED

Based on the draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) of Discoverture Solutions L.L.C (‘DSL’)
and Relational Solutions Inc (‘RSI’) with Mindtree Limited (*ML’") and according to the information

and explanations provided to us, we hereby certify as under:

a. As on date ML holds entire issued capital of DSL and RSI which are its wholly owned

subsidiaries.

b. Pursuant to the draft Scheme of Amalgamation shares in DSL & RSI held by ML will be
cancelled and ML shall not be required to issue and / allot any shares to the members of DSL

& RSL

¢. -Accordingly no valuation of shares is applicable to the Scheme. In our opinion, we state that
the above Scheme is fair and reasonable since the shareholders of ML will continue to remain
beneficial owners of ML in the same proportion as they held prior to the Scheme.

d. This Certificate is issued at the request of ML in accordance with clause 24(f) of the listing
agreement and SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013 read with
clarifications provided in para 4 of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May 21,
2013 and should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For RCE & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Ygistraﬁon No. 0091418
by

s

W

Meenakshi By &, g
Vg A/
Partner o il
HEALSY

Membership No. 216264

Place: Bangalore
Date: Oct 14, 2015
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Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@ M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan, Chairman
Ms. Apurva Purohit, Member
Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Member

IN ATTENDANCE:
Ms. Vedavalli S, Company Secretary
BY INVITATION:

Mr. Subroto Bagchi, Executive Chairman

Mr. Krishnakumar N, Managing Director & CEOQ
Mr. NS Parthasarathy, Executive Director

Mr. Jagannathan Chakravarthi, CFO

Mr. Sushanth Pai, Chief Risk Officer

1. Mindtree Limited (MT or the ‘Transferee Company’) has placed before the Audit Committee at its
meeting held on Oct 14, 2015, a draft of the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation of Discoverture
Solutions LLC, Relational Solutions Inc., (Transferor Companies) with the Transferee Company
under Section 391 to 394 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment or amendment
thereof).

2. This report of the Audit Committee is provided to comply with the requirements of the SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated Feb 4, 2013 and SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013
dated May 21, 2013 (together ‘SEBI Circulars’) after considering the following documents:

a. Draft Composite Scheme of Merger/ Amalgamation;

b. Valuation report dated Oct 14, 2015 received from RCE& Co., Chartered Accountants

c. Draft Certificate from Deloitte Haskins and Sells, Statutory Auditors regarding the accounting
treatment as specified in Clause 24 (i) read with Clause 24 (f) the Listing Agreement;

d. Fairness Opinion dated Oct 14, 2015 by M/s SPA Capital Advisors Ltd. (‘Merchant Bankers’).

3. The Audit Committee has noted that:
i. The Transferor Companies are the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee Company and
are currently engaged in the business of providing IT Services.

ii. Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company would inter alia
have the following benefits;

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@ M |n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

a) The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its business operations
and provide significant impetus to the growth of the Transferee Company. The
consolidation of the activities by way of an amalgamation will lead to synergies of
operations and a stronger and wider capital and financial base for future
growth/expansion. The combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at
a wider array of customers, which will strengthen its competitive position in providing IT
services /software & technology related services markets This will also enable the
Transferee Company to address newer solutions and services to its customers and to
transferor's customers and enhance its marketing capabilities.

b) The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in overheads,
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalisation,
organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of various resources.

c) The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to the strength of
the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee Company will offer a strong
financial structure to all creditors including the creditors of the Transferor Companies,
facilitate resource mobilisation and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute
substantially towards enhancement of shareholder's value of the Transferee Company.

d) Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with the multiple
record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

e) This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company.

f) The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the proposed
amalgamation as their security is maintained.

g) There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the Transferee
Company apart from reduction in costs.

h) The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both the companies and
a single management structure for the companies.

i) The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the Transferee Company
to develop a business model that would be competitive and cogent.

iii. The Audit Committee took note of the Fairness Opinion and the fact that no shares of the
Transferee Company will be issued and allotted pursuant to the proposed Scheme since the
entire paid-up capital of the Transferor Companies is wholly owned by the Transferee
Company.

iv. In any case, since the entire equity shareholding of the Transferor Companies is held by the
Transferee Company and therefore as an internal group restructuring, it does not adversely
affect the stakeholders and creditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Companies and is in the best interest of the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other
stakeholders.

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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7, . Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
@ M In dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
L% Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

Recommendations of the Audit Committee:

After taking into account the documents listed in Paragraph 2 above and on perusal of the rational
of the Scheme, the Audit Committee approves the proposed Composite Scheme of Amalgamation
and recommends the draft Composite Scheme of Amalgamation for favorable consideration by
the Board of Directors, Stock Exchange(s) and the SEBI.
oS
Date e
alo
Place: R or§
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com

27



Anrexune -C
SPA Capital Advisors Lid.

THE FIRANCIAL ADYISORS

www.spacapital.com

Submitted to

Mindtree Limited
FAIRNESS OPINION REPORT
On Composite Scheme of Amalgamation of

MINDTREE LIMITED
AND

DISCOVERTURE SOLUTIONS L.L.C.

AND

RELATIONAL SOLUTIONS INC

By _ B

M/s SPA CAPITAL ADVISORS LTD.

25, C-Block, Community Centre,
Janak Puri, New Delhi.
Tel: 25558601 /25517371/25515086
Fax: éSS 72763

Website: www.spacapital.com

“Everything we hear is an opinion, not a fact. Everything we see is o perspective, not the truth.”
October 14, 2015

For W Limited
Ver —4

Company Secretary
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Tao,

The Board of Directors,

Mindtree Limited,

Global Village, RVCE Post,
Mysore Road, Bangalore-560039.

RE: Fairness Opinion on Composite Scheme of Amalgamation of Mindtree Limited,
Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. and Relational Solutions Inc.

{ PURPOSE }

We have been engaged to give fairness opinion on the “Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation” of (i) Discoverture Solutions L.L.C., having its registered office at
16100 North 71st Street, suite 250, Scottsdale, Arizona 85254 (i.e. the “Transferor
Company 17) and (ii) Relational Solutions Inc, having its registered office at Great
Northern Corp Centre III, 25050 Country club Blvd, Suite 105, North Olmsted, Ohio
44070, (i.e. the “Transferor Company 2”) (herein after jointly referred as “Transferor
companies”) with Mindtree Limited, having its registered office at Global Village,
RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore 560 059 (i.e. the “Transferee Company”) pursuant

to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

This Fairness opinion report is required as per clause 24 (h) of listing agreement.

{ BACKGROUND ]

» The Transferor Company 1 was incorporated on October 1, 2002, as per the
provisions of the Arizona Limited Liability Company Act, 1992, (“ALLC Act”),

Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 29, and Chapter 4. The Transferor Company 1 is
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involved in the business of IT Services since 2002. It specializes in technology

services for property and casualty insurance and healthcare industries.

» The Transferor Company 2 was incorporated on January 22, 1996, as per the
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Ohio, Sections 1701.01
to 1701.99 of the Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”). The Transferor Company 2 is
involved in the business of IT Services since 1996. It specializes in technology

services for consumer products and goods industries.

¥

The Transferee Company was incorporated as a private company on August 5,
1999, under the name MindTree Consulting Private Limited as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently, MindTree Consulting Private Limited
ceased to be a private company and the name of the Transferee Company was
changed to MindTree Consulting Limited on November 6, 2006. Subsequently

on March 28, 2008, the name of the Transferee Company was changed from

MindTree Consulting Limited to Mindtree Limited. The Transferee Company is

involved in the business of software and technology.

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2015 is as under:

Authorised Share Capital

80,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 800,00,00,000/ -
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

8,37,32,372 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 83,73,23,720/ -

The Transferee Company is the sole member of the Transferor Company 1 and

owns 100% membership interests in the Transferor Company 1.
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The Transferee Company is the sole shareholder of the Transferor Company 2

and owns 100% of the shareholding in the Transferor Company 2.

{ TRANSACTION }

We understand that the merger of the Transferor Companies under this Scheme
of Amalgamation will be effected as a Scheme under the provisions of the other

Applicable Laws and under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956.

By this Scheme of Amalgamation it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor
Companies with the Transferee Company, for the purposes of better, efficient
and economical management, control and running of the businesses, and for
further development and growth of the business of the Transferee Company and
for administrative convenience. The proposed amalgamation between the
_ Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall result in the following,
benefits, amongst others, to both companies, their respective members and

creditors.

(i) The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its
business operations and provide significant impetus to the growth of the
Transferee Company. The consolidation of the activities by way of an
amalgamation will lead to synergies of operations and a stronger and
wider capital and financial base for future growth/expansion. The
combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a wider
array of customers, which will strengthen its competitive position in
providing IT services /software & technology related services markets

This will also enable the Transferee Company to address newer solutions
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

and services to its customers and to transferor’s customers and enhance its
marketing capabilities.

The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in
overheads, administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational
rationalisation, organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of
various resources.

The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to
the strength of the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee
Company will offer a strong financial structure to all creditors including
the creditors of the Transferor Companies, facilitate resource mobilisation
and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially
towards enhancement of shareholder’s value of the Transferee Company.
Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with
the multiple record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity
of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out
by the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company.

The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the
proposed amalgamation as their security is maintained.

There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the
Transferee Company apart from reduction in costs.

The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both
the companies and a single management structure for the companies.

The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the
Transferee Company to develop a business model that would be

competitive and cogent.
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VALUATION REPORT J

In the proposed Scheme of Arrangement, the entire equity share capital of Transferor
Companies held by Transferee Company will be cancelled and there shall not be any
change in the shareholding pattern of Transferee Company, As per the provisions of
SEBI Circular Number CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013dated May 21, 2013, a valuation report
from independent valuer is not required in such cases where there is no change in the

shareholding pattern of the listed company.

{ CONCLUSION }

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation, Membership interest in
Discoverture Solutions L.L.C., and shares in Relational Solutions Inc, will be
cancelled and Mindtree Limited shall not be required to issue and / allot any shares

to the members of Transferor companies.

Therefore, On the basis of information and explanation provided to us, in our
opinion the scheme of amalgamation and arrangement is fair and reasonable to the

holders of equity shares of Mindtree.

Disclaimer: The Final Report has been prepared for the internal and exclusive use of the Board
of Directors of Mindtree Limited (the “Board of Directors”) in support of the decisions to be
taken by it. Therefore, the Final Report may not be disclosed, in whole or in part, to any third
party or used for any purpose whatsoever other than those indicated in the Engagement and in
the Final Report itself, provided that the Final Report may be transmitted to the experls
appointed in compliance with the law and its content may be disclosed publicly where required
by regulations of the Indian authorities. Any other use, in whole or in part, of the Final Report

will have to be previously agreed and authorised in writing by SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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(SPA). In preparing the Final Report, SPA has relied upon and assumed, without independent
verification, the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the information and the financial
data provided by Mindtree Limited. SPA has therefore relied upon all specific information as
received and declines any responsibility should the results presented be affected by the lack of
completeness or truthfulness of such information. Publicly available information deemed
relevant for the purpose of the analyses contained in the Final Report has also been used.
Therefore the Final Report is based on: (i) our interpretation of the information which Mindtree
Limited, as well as their representatives and advisers, have supplied to us to date; (ii) our
understanding of the terms upon which Mindtree Limited infends to consummate the
Transaction (iii) the assumption that the Transaction will be consummated in accordance with
the expected terms and within the expected time periods. The Final Report and the Opinion
concern exclusively for the purpose of proposed amalgamation and do not constitule an opinion

by SPA as to the absolute value of the shares of Mindtree Limited.

For SPA Capital Advisors Limited.

LL«-"‘“‘*
(Sourabh Garg)

Vice President

ot
o

(Khushboo Tanwar)

Manager

For Mindtree Limited

Company Secretary
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COV-Mindtree

PRE AND POST AMALGAMATION SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY AS ON

30.09.2015

| (a) Statement showing Shareholding Pattern

Name of the Company : Mindtree Limited

Scrip Code : 532819

Name of the Scrip : MINDTREE

fully paid

Class of Security : Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each,

Quarter ended : 30.09.2015

Partly Paid-up shares

No. of Partly Paid-
up shares

As a % of total no. of
partly paid-up shares

As a % of total no. of
shares of the Company

Held by promoter /
promoter group

Held by public

Total

Outstanding
convertible securities

No. of outstanding
securities

As a % of total no. of
outstanding convertible
securities

As a % of total no. of
shares of the Company,
assuming full
conversion of the
convertible securities

Held by promoter /
promoter group

Held by public

Total

Warrants

No.of warrants ——

As a % of total no. of
warrants

As a % of total no. of -
shares of the Company,
assuming full
conversion of warrants

Held by promoter/
promoter group

Held by public

Total

Total paid-up capital
of the company,
assuming full
conversion of
warrants and
convertible securities

83835626

(Rs. 838,356,260 - 83,835,626 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid)

For Mindtree Limited

,)/( c‘j’ (’::i

Company Secretary

Page 1
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Pre and Post A i ing Pattern of Mi Limited in terms of Point number 5 of Clause 24(f) ist of
Name of the Company: Mindtree Limited
Scrip 532819 Quarter ended: | 30.09.2015
Code:
Cate- Category of shareholder {n Number of Total number of shares Number of Total shareholding as a percentage of total Shares pledged or otherwise
gory shareholders () shares held in [As a percentage| As a percentage of (A+B+C) [No. of shares Vi) Asa
code (1) [{{1}} dematerialized of (A+B)[1] (viy percentage
form Vi) IX) =
[\Y] vy 7 vy +
100
{A) _|Promoter and Promoter Groug[zl
-1 |Indian
(2, Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family 4 8403985 8403985 10.0243600 10.0243600) -
(b Central Government/ State Government(s} - - - - - .|

C iFBrodies Corporate - -| -| | - -

d) JFinancial institutions/ Banks -] - - - - -

e Any Other (specify) - - - R - -
PAC 2 1621706 1621706| __ 2.17294972 2.17294972) ~
Sub-Total (A){1) 8 10225691 10225691 12.19730977 12.18730877 -

-2 |Foreign

{a)} ]individuals (N i jvi Foreign Individuals} | N - N | B

b7 |Bodies Corporate 1 1305892 1305992 1.65780074 1.55780074| .|

c) Jinstitutions -| -| -| - - -

d Quallified Foreign Investor - - - - - R

e Any Other (specify) - - - . - -
Sub-Total (A}2) 1 1305992 1305992 1.55780074 1.55780074) ]
Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group (A)= (A){1)+{A}{2) 9 11531683 11531683 13.75511051 13.75511051 -

(B) Publicshareholdingp]

-1 tnstitutions

a Mutual Funds/ UT) 54 6066537 6066537 7.23622795 723622§ -

b)_|Financial Institutions/ Banks 5 768606 76806] __0.09161499 0.09161499) .

c) Central Government/ State Government(s) | | - - - -

d: Venture Capital Funds - | -] - - -

e) {Insurance Companies -| -| -| - - -

(f) |Foreign Institutional Investors 124 31226458 31226458 37.24724141 37.24724141 -

(g) [|Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - - - -
(h) |Qualified Foreign investor -| | | - - -

(i} JAny Other (specify) -| .| - -| - -
Sub-Total (B)(1) 183 37369801 37360801 44.6750843 445750843} -

-2 |Non-Institutions

(a)_|Bodies Corporate 567 16933408 16933408 20.1983438 20.1983438] -
(b) [individuals -
F Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to Rs. 1 lakh. 51746 4661496 4512186 5.5602805 5.5602805' -
ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakh. 92 4133757 4109389 4.9307880 4.93078!
© |Qualified Foreign Investor- Foreign Portfolio Investor (Corporate) 41 5358424 5358424 6.3915835 6.3915% -
(d) JAny Other {specify) - - - - - -
1. Clearing Members 226 165507 165507 | 0.1974185 0.1974185| -
2. Foreign Nationals 17 451076 426864 0.5380481 0. 5380481' -
3. N i Indivi (R 850 357863 332951 0.4268627 0.4268627| -
4. Non-Resident Individuals (Non-Repatriable} 319 110889 110889 0.1322695 0.132269: -
5. Directors 3 2584000 2584000 3.0822219 3.0822219} -
8. Trusts 3 90 90 0.0001074 0.000107
7. Hindu Undivided Family 1 15‘ 177632 177632 0.2118813 0.211 8813
Sub-Total {B)}(2) 55029 34934142 34711340 41.6698051 41 569% -]
Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B){1)+(B)(2) 55212 72303943 72081141 86.2448895 86.244380! ]
TOTAL (A)+(B) 55221 83835626 83612824 100.00 100.00) -
(C) ]Shares held by Custodians and against which Depository Receipts have been
issued
1. Promoter and Promoter Group A | N -| - N
2. Public - -] -] | - B
Sub-Total {C) ] N s ] ~ N
GRAND TOTAL (AJ+(B}*(C) 55221 83835626 83612824 100.00 100.00] B

For Mindtree Limited

\/439;{_

Company Secretary
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Shareholding of Discoverture Solutions LLC

Pre-merger Capital _Post-merger Capital

n USD

* Mindtree Limited is the sole member of the
Discoverture Solutions LLC (Discoverture) and
owns 100% membership interests in Discoverture.

For Mindtree Limited
Veal—{

Company Secretary
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Share capital of Relational Solutions Inc.

Pre-merger Capital Post-merger Capital

Authorised Share Capital
1000 Shares of Common Stock 500 Nil

Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

1000 Shares of Common Stock 500 Nil

For Mindtree Limited /e ;
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Company Secretary \\ » y
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"BSR&Co.

{Registered)
Chartered Accountants

Maruthi info-Tech Centre Telebhone +81 80 3980 6000
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road Fax +91 80 3980 6999
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Mindtree Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company®), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2013, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overal} presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

For Mindtree Limited
. A -
\/ {/ L/)
Company Secretary
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ESR &Co.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
b) in the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
{c) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legavl and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we repott that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(ii) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books;

——{iii) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the-Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(iv) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act; and

(v) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of
section 274 of the Act.

JorBSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Figm’s registration No. 101248W

Supreet Sachjsev ”

Partner
Membership No. 205385

Bangalore

April 22, 2013
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in the Auditor’s Report to the members of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company’)
for the year ended March 31, 2013.

We report as follows:

1.a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were observed on such verification.

c) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going
concern assumption.

2. The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software development services. Accordingly,
it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

3. The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to or from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and having regard to the
explanation-that purchase of certain items of fixed assets are for the Company’s specialized requirement
and suitable alternative sources are not available to obtain comparable quotations, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for
purchase of fixed assets and sale of services. The activities of the Company do not involve purchase of
inventory and the sale of goods. We have not observed any major weakness in the internal control system
during the course of the audit.

5. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no contracts
and arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered into the register maintained under section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

7. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

8. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section

209(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

9.a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax,
Customs duty, and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year




L BSR & Co.

by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues
on account of Wealth tax, Excise duty and Investor Education and Protection Fund.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Cess
and other material statutory dues were in arreats as at March 31, 2013 for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payabie.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Customs duty and Cess
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. The Company,
however, disputes the following Income tax, Service tax and Sales tax dues:

Name of the | Nature of the Amount | Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) | the amount | dispute is pending
relates

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 78.9*% | Assessment  year | Assessing

1961 2002-03 Officer**

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 46.7* | Assessment year | Commissioner of

1961 2003-04 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 60.8 | Assessment year | Commissioner of

1961 —— 12004-05 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 28.4 | Assessment  year | Commissioner of

1961 2005-06 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 57.67 | Assessment  year | Income Tax

1961 2006-G7 Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 118.62 | Assessment  year | Income Tax

1961 2007-08 Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 11.16 | Assessment  year | Commissioner  of

1961 2007-08 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

I

X

/

S @R
%
(17 ;} 2
=1




BSR&Co.

Name of the | Nature of the Amount | Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) | the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 10.10 | Assessment  year [ Commissioner of
1961 2008-09 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 34.60* | Assessment year | Commissioner of
1961 2007-08 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 23.56 | Assessment year | Commissioner of
1961 2009-10 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 1.63 | Assessment  year | Income Tax
1961 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 214,20 | Assessment  year | Income Tax
1961 2008-09 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and interest 65.01 | Assessment  year | Dispute Resolution
1961 2009-10 Panel*#i¥*
The Finance Act, | Service tax 151.20 | July 2003 to June | Customs, Excise
1994 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal, Pune
The Finance Act, | Service tax 066.94 | July 2007 to| Customs, Excise
1994 March 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal, Pune
The Finance Act, | Service tax and 11.29 | huly 2005 to | Customs, Excise
1994 interest March 2007 and  Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore***
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#x3% Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide order dated
27 September 2012,

*dkd* Appeal pending to be filed with the Dispute Resolution Panel

10. The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

1. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to its bankers. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to any
financial institution or debenture holders during the year.

12. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities.

13. I our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in
shares, securities, debentures and other investments.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee
for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

16. The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

17. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the company, we are of the opinion that the funds raised on short-term basis have not
been used for long-term investment.

18. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies/ firms/ parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

19. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

20. The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.
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BSR & Co.

21. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

Jor BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101248W

W e i

Supreet Sachdev

Partner ~
Membership No. 205385 3N CJ; ;
Bangalore

April 22, 2013



Mindtree Limited
Batance sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Noun-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other fonig-term liabilities

Current Hiabilities
Short-term botrowings.
“Frade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangibleassets

Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Nop-current invesiments
Deferred tax:assets {net)
Long-term loans and ddvances
Other non-current:assets

Current assets

Current investments e
Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Short-term loans and-advances

Other curtent dssets

Significant accounting policics and notes 10 the accounts

Note

3.1.1
312

321
322

3:4:)
34:1

342
343
344
343

351
352
353
354
355

283

The notes referred to-above form an integral part of the finangial statements

A per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co.

Chgiprered Accountnits

Registration Number; 101248W

Supreet Sachdey & -

Pariner

Membership Number: 205385

Place: Bangalore
Bate April 22,2013

/?’Z"/’L M. @mwm —e~

‘»nbro

Rg in million

Asat AS at

March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
415 403
12,722 9171
13,137 9576
32 37

37 AG

89 83
27 407
189 1097
2,166 2,455
1,112 724
3,684 3,693
16591’0 13,352
2.561 2,548
28 43
571 85
244 30
360 320
617 544
1,046 1,028
5427 4,598

4,027 3075
4,508 4,078
1,238 585
430 191
1:280 825
11,483 8,754
16,910 13,352
For Mindtree Limited

Ros(ow Ravanan

/"‘ Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date < Aprit 22,2013

5\

N. Krishnakamar

CEO & Mzmagm;, Director

Rujesh Srichand Narang
Company Secretary



Mindtree Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Rs in million

Particulars Note, For the year ended
March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
Revenue from operations 23,618 19,152
Other income 36 350 384
Total revenues 23968 19,536
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 3.7 14,274 12,261
Finance costs 3.7 10 5
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34.1 624 695
Otherexpenses 3.7 4,824 3,958
Total cxpenises 19,732 16,919
Profit before 1ax 4,236 2,617
Tax expense: 343
Current tax 887 534
Deferred tax (40) (104)
Profit for the year 3,389 2,187
Earnings perequity share 3.57
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/~ each
Basic 82.70 54.27
Diluted 81.66 54.18
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing éamings per share
Basic 40,974,712 40,295,202
Dilpted. I 41,496,296 40.363,159 —
Significant accounting policies and notes to-the accounts 2&3
‘The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statéments
As per-our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co. For Mindtree Limited
Chartered Accountants
m Registration Number: 101248W.
1 5
preet Sachdey Subroto Bagehi N Krishnakumar
Parwer Chattman CEO & Managing Director
Membership Number: 205385 1
[
}f. .{7\{ A i,»l M (,;
¥ ostoy Kavanan Rajesh Srichand Narang
" Chif Financial Officer Company Secretary
e
Place: Bangalore * Place; Bangalore
Date : April 22, 2013 Date: April 22,2013

SR



Mindtree Limited
Cash flow staténient

Ry in million
¥or the yoar énded March 33,
2013 202
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 4,236 2,617
Adjtrstments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 624 @5
Amortization of sfock compensation cost 2 -
Interest expense. e 5
Interesti-dividend income {1923 18y
Profit on sale of fixed assets - © [
Profit on sale o investments (133 en
Provision for dimimdion fnthe vahe of investments 1 1
Lass on dissolution of subsidiary 3 -
Exchange difference o dertvatives {308} (1
Effecr of exchange differences on travslation of forein 28 {33
cutrengy borrowings:
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign {30} (18}
cuirrency cesh and ¢ash eqjuivalents
Ogiciating gufit befois vanhiug Lapital dinges 4,235 3,141
Changgs in trade receivables {430y {1,252)
Changgs in toans and advances and otligr assets (564) 20
Changes.in liabilities and provisiops 391 ket
Net cash provided by operaiing activities before taxes 3,632 2630
Income taxes paid {969 (364)
Net eush provided by operating activities 2,663 2,166,
Cash flow from investing activities
Puschase of fixed assets (1,066) - (484)
Proceeds frony sale of fixed assets 2 2
Invistment in subsidiaty (14) .
Proceeds on dissotution of subsidiary i3 -
Interest/ dividend receivid fram investinents 179 119
Purchase of investments (1257 (8,7903
Sale/ maturifics of investments 10,216 6,846
Net cushused in investing aetivities — —— {1,915} o ot B
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of share capital (net of issue expeoses paid) 322 145
Interest paid on lonns an 5y
Repaginent of bosrowings. D) (633
Proocceds from loans e 410
Dividends paid Gueluding disteitintion tax) {214) {176}
Net cash (used in)/ provided by fisiuncivg uctivities a25) 368
Effect of exchange differences on transiation of foreign
v custand cash equival 36 B
Net increase: it cash wnd cash équivalents 653 145
Casteand cast equivalents af the beginning of the year 585 440
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 35,3) 1,238 585
The notes reforred to above form an integral partof the financial Statements
A por our fepott 8 sven date attachied
For BRR & o, Far Mindires Limited

Chartered Avonmequs

by Registration Number: 101M48W

Supriet Sichidey gt Subroto Ragehi N Krishunkmoar
Pariner Chidiogibn CEO & Managing Ditector
Membership Nuamber: 205385
kaaaly-S
Aostow Wagapan"" Rajesh Srickiund Narang

/‘ Chief fananciat Qffieer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Plagw: Bangalore e .
Date - Apal 22,2013 Dlage v Apnil 22,2003 ) b
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the year ended March 31, 2013

1.

2.1

2.2

Background

Mindtree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global sofiware development. The Company is structured into two business units
~ Information Technology (‘IT*) Services and Product Engineering (‘PE’) Services. 1T
Services offer consulting and implementation and post production support for customers
in manufacturing, financial services, travel and leisure and other industries, in the arcas of
e-business, data warchousing and business intelligence, supply chain management, ERP
and maintenance and re-engineering of legacy mainframe applications. PE Services
provides full life cycle product engineering, professional services and sustained
enginecring services. It also enables faster product realization by leveraging the expertise
in the areas of hardware design, embedded software, middleware and testing and through
Mindtree’s own IP building blocks in the areas of Bluetoath, VOIP, 1VP6, iSCSI and
others in datacom, telecom, wireless, storage, industrial automation, avionics, consumer
products and computing,.

The Company is head quartered in Bangalore and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,
Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium and France.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed
by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended, other pronouncements
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI"), the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, (the ‘Act’) and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange
Board of India (‘SEBI’) to the extent applicable.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles (‘GAAP’) in India requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets
and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent ljabilities as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in future periods.

St




Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

23

Fixed assets and depreciation

2.3.1

232

233

234

[~
N
tn

2306

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally
generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be measured reliably
during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair
value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases
are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each
balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method. The rates specified under
schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 are considered as minimum rates. If
the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the time of the
acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is
shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a
higher rate based on the management’s estimate of the useful life/remaining
useful life. Pursuant to this policy, the management has estimated the useful life
as under:

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 25-30 years
Computer systems (including software) 1-3 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures S years
Electrical installations 3-5 years
Office equipment 4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Piant and machinery 4 years
Inteliectual property 5 years

Fixed assets individually costing Rs 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the ycar
of purchase/ installation. Depreciation on additions and disposals during the ye
is provided on a pro-rata basis. .

99




Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

2.4

2.6

2.7

2.3.7 The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leaschold
improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease
term or useful life, whichever is lower.

Investments

2.4.1 Non-current investmenis are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis.

242 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in respect of cach
investment.

2.4.3  Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the

sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or_future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Employee benefits

2.7.1

272

273

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations
at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The Company
has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Acluarial gains and losses are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences are a long-term employee benefit and is accrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-term compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders services,

Contributions payable fo the recognised provident fund, which is a defined
contribution scheme, are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

S5¢



Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (coatinued)
For the year ended March 31,2013

2.8

Revenue recognition

2.8.1

282

283

2.84

The Company derives its revenues primarily from software services. Revenue
from sofiware development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the
related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised
using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the
actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated total project cost
for each contract. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and
earnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are
recorded in the period in which such Josses become probable based on the current
contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the period of the maintenance
contract.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues are stated net of
discount,

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized using the time proportion method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Foreign exchange transactions ——

29.1

292

293

The Company is exposed to foreign currency transactions including foreign
currency revenues and receivables. With a view to minimize the volatility arising
from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into foreign exchange
forward contracts and other derivative instruments.

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. e

<4
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2,10

2.11

2.9.4 In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-monetary items
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of profit and loss
are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

295 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting
Standard (‘AS’) 11, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS 11,
based on the nature and purpose of the contract, either the contracts are recorded
based on the forward rate/fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as income or expense
over the life of the contract.

29.6 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are not covered by
AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS") 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of

..... cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet dateand.-the resultant
exchange loss/(gain) is debited/credited to the hedge reserve until the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ (gain) is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.

Warranties

Warranty costs (i.e. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the year of recognition of revenue.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a resuit of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the fikelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision pr
disclosure is made.

54
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2.12

213

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first, The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtuaily certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT") paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax liability, is
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant assets can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a

period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities

on a net basis.
Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of equity shares
oufstanding during the year. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share comprises weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than ifs carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined; if
no impairment loss had been recognized. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events,

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to employee stock
options/restricted shares using the intrinsic value method. The compensation cost is
amortized over the vesting/service period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

(i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(i)  the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value. .

|
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts {continucd)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

3. Notes to the accounts

31 Shareholders’ funds

3.1.1  Share capital

a)

b)

<)

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012

Authorised

79,620,000 (March 31, 2012: 79,620,000) equity 796 796

shares of Rs 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
41,535,055 (March 31, 2012: 40,543,923) equity 415 405
shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid

Total 415 405

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting year is as given below:

Parficulars ——— Asat Asat
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Noofshares  Rsinmillion Noof shares  Rsin million

Number of shares outstanding af the beginning of the year 40,543,923 405 40,035,187 400
Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options 991,132 10 508,736 5
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,535,085 415 40,4398 405

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par
value of Rs 10/- each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the
date of the sharcholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held
for all matters submitted to vote in the sharecholder meeting,

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual

General Meeting,

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on October 16, 2012 declared an interim
dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per equity share of par value Rs 10/- each). Further, the Board
of Directors declared a second interim dividend of 40% (Rs 4 per equity share of par
value Rs 10/- each) and proposed a final dividend of 50% (Rs 5 per equity share of
par value Rs 10/- each) for the year ended March 31, 2013, The total dividend
appropriation for the year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to Rs 578 million,
including corporate dividend tax of Rs 81 million.

4
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

d)

e)

f)

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognized
as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs 4. The dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2012 includes Rs 1.50 per share of final dividend, Rs 1.50 per share of
interim dividend and a special dividend of Rs 1 per equity share on the occasion of
the Company crossing $100 million in revenues and 10,000 Mindtree minds during
the quarter ended September 30, 2011, The total dividend appropriation for the year
ended March 31, 2012 amounted to Rs 188 million, including corporate dividend tax
of Rs 26 million.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of ail
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Equity shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares along with the
number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given
below:

As at March 31,2013 As at March 31,2012
Numberofshares % Number of shares %

Sr.No.  Name of the shareholder

1 Coffee Day Resorts Private Limited 4,565,442 11.0% 4565442 11.3%
2 Walden Software Investment Limited - - 3964,205 9.8%
3 Nalanda India Fund Limited 3.949,08¢ 9.5% 3949089 97%
4 Global Technology Ventures Limited 2498561 6.0% 2648561 6.5%
5 Subroto Bagchi 2,078,585 5.0% 2078435 51%

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares
nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date. Number of equity shares allotted as
fully paid up without payment being received in cash is 1,300,965 during the period
of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, These
shares were allotted to the shareholders of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation for the financial year ended March 31, 2010.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (“Board’). Under the ESOP, the Company
currently administers seven stock option programs. Further, the Company has instituted
Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°) during the current year.

ex,
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Program 1 [ESOP 1999]

Options under this program are exercisable at an exercise price of Rs 10 per option. All
stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and
35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully
exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends
to employees who have joined on or before September 30, 2001 or have been issued
employment offer letters on or before August 7, 2001, This plan was terminated on
September 30, 2001. The contractual life of each option is 11 years afer the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 4,000 4,088
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 500 88
Lapsed during the year 3,500 -
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year - 4,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year - 4,000
Program 2 [ESOP 2001}

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercise price of Rs 50
per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%,
20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant
and become fully exercisable, Each option is entitled fo 1 equity share of Rs 10 each.
This program extends to employees who have joined on or after October 1, 2001 or have
been issued employment offer letters on or after August 8, 2001 or options granted to
existing employees with grant date on or after October 1, 2001. This plan was terminated
on April 30, 2006. The contractual life of each option is 11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 79,367 126,763
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 25,837 40,124
Lapsed during the year 5,612 7,272
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 47,918 79,367
Options vested and exetcisable, end of the year 47918 79,367

6%
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the ycar ended March 31, 2013

Program 3 [ESOP 2006 (a)]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercise price of
Rs 250 per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of
15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of
grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10
each. This program extends to employees to whom the options are granted on or after
May 1, 2006. This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each
option is 5 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding options, beginning of the year - 83,548
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year - 45,258
l-apsed during the year - 38,255
Forfeited during the year - 35
Outstanding options, end of the year - -

Options vested and exercisable, end of the year - -

Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (b)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically
determined by the Compensation Committee. All stock options have a four-year vesting
term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years
respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled
to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees to whom the options
are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each option is 5 years
after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 1,349,038 2,308,946
Granted during the year - 110,000
Exercised during the year 905,860 408,995
Lapsed during the year 97,528 486,768
Forfeited during the year 41,000 174,145
Outstanding options, end of the year 304,650 1,349,038
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 115,225 1,013,388
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
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Program 5 [ESOP 2008A]
Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Lim

ited as

per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each new option is entitled to

1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 124,803 150,218
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 14,437 938
Lapsed during the year 2,118 24,477
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 108,248 124,803
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 108,248 124,803

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006’)

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors at an exercise
price periodically determined by the Compensation Committee. All stock options vest
equally over three year vesting term at the end of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively from the

date of the grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity s
Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option is 4 years after the date of the grant.

hare of

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 151,667 165,000
Granted during the year 20,000 -
Exercised during the year 36,667 13,333
Lapsed during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 135,000 151,667
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 76,667 75,001

£
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Program 7 [ESOP 20104/

In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program i.e. ESOP 2010
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,135,000 equity
shares of Rs 10 each. No options have been granted under the program as at March 37,
2013,

Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to further issue upto 1,000,000
equity shares of nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program are granted to
employees at an exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher price
as decided by the Board of Directors. Shares shall vest over such term as determined by
the Board of Directors not exceeding ten years from the date of the grant. All shares will
have a minimum lock in period of one year from the date of allotment.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Outstanding shares, beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 7,831 -
Exercised during the year 7,831 -
Lapsed during the year - -

Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding shares, end of the year - -
Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year - -

The following table summarizes information about the weighied average exercise price of

options/shares exercised under various programs:
Amount in Rs

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Program 1 10.00 10.00
Program 2 50.00 50.00
Program 3 - 250.00
Program 4 336.84  308.77
Program § 404.63  161.56
DSOP 2006 25927  355.00
ERSP 2012 10.00 -
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

The following tables summarize information about the options outstanding under various
programs as at March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 respectively:

Particulars As at March 31, 2013
Number of Weighted average Weighted
shares remaining  average exercise
arising out of contractual life price
options (in years) (in Rs)
Program } - . -
Program 2 47918 2.00 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 304,650 2.62 49145
Program 5 108,248 3.21 392.82
DSOP 2006 135,000 1.95 559.41
Particulars As at March 31, 2012
Number of Weighted average Weighted
shares . remaining  average exercise
arising out of contractual life price
options (in years) (in Rs)
Program | 4,000 0.04 10.00
Program 2 79,367 2.91 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 1,349,038 1.59 380.25
Program 5 124,803 4.20 390.41
DSOP 2006 151,667 2.23 495.12

The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

o

o
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Had compensation been determined under the fair value approach described in the

_Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by ICAI, the

Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have reduced to the

proforma amounts as indicated:

Rs in million except EPS data

Year ended March 31,

Particulars
2013 2012
Net profit as reported 3,389 2,187
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
expense (intrinsic value method) - -
Less: Stock-based employee compensation
expense (fair value method) 74 78
Pro forma net profit 3,315 2,109
Basic earnings per share as reported 82.70 54.27
Pro forma basic earnings per share 80.89 52.34
Diluted carnings per share as reported 81.66 54.18
79.87 5225

Pro forma diluted earnings per share

During year ended March.31, 2013, 20,000 options were granted by the Company under

DSOP 2006.

The weighted average fair value of each option of Mindtree, granted during year ended
March 31, 2013 was Rs 393.56 using the Black-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:

Weighted average grant date share price Rs 556

Weighted average exercise price Rs 556

Dividend yield % 0.18%

Expected life 5 years

Risk free interest rate 8.11%
101.5%

Volatility
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.1.2 Reserves and surplus

Rs in milion

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012
Capital reserve
Opening balance 87 87
Additions during the year - -
87 87
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 1,808 1,669
Additions during the year on exercise of 317 139
employee stock options
2,125 1,808
General reserve
Opening balance 752 533
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss 339 219
1,091 752
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 48 48
Additions during the year - -
48 48
Hedge reserve
Opening balance (250) 8t
Additions during the year 423 — (331)
173 (250)
Surplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)
Opening bajance 6,726 4,946
Add: Amount transferred from statement of 3,389 2,187
profit and loss
Amount avalaible for appropriations 10,115 7,133
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (289) (161)
Final dividend (208) (7))
Dividend distribution tax (81) (26)
Amount transfered to general reserve {339) (219)
9,198 6,726
Tofal 12,722 9,171
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012

(Unsecured)
Other loans and advances 32 37
Total 32 37

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received from Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) to develop a project under “Development of Intelligent Video
Surveillance Server (1VSS) system”.

The loan is an unsecured loan catrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of loan is in 10 equal annual installments commencing from
June 2011. The project implementation period was a moratorium period ending May 2011
and was not liable for repayment of installments and interest during the said period.
However, the interest accrued during the period is amortized and is payable in 3 equal
annual installments commencing from June 2011. Any delay in repayment entails a
liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the period of delay.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the principal loan and interest
amounts.

Other long-term labilities
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2013  March 31,2012
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - I
Other long-term liabilities 57 45
Total 57 46

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1

Short-term borrowings
Rs in million

Particulays As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012

(Secured)
Other loans from banks 217 407
Total 217 407

#0
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

During the year, the Company has repaid packing credit loans of USD 8 million and
availed additional packing credit loan of USD 4 million. These packing credit loans are
secured against the trade receivables of the Company. As at March 31, 2013, the
Company has outstanding packing credit loan of USD 4 million (As at March 31, 2012:
USD 8 million). The Company has taken forward exchange contracts with respect to this
loan. In accordance with ‘AS 11’ the forward premium arising at inception is amortized
as an expense over the life of the contract.

Details of interest rate and repayment terms in respect of above packing credit loan are as
below:

Name of the bank As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Rsin Rate of Date of Rs in Rate of Date of
million  interest p.a  repayment million _interest p.a__ repayment
HSBC - - - 254 200%  25-May-12
HSBC ' - - - 153 23%  3l-Aug-i2
HSBC 217 1.98% 29-May-13 - - -
Total 217 : 407

3.3.2 Other current liabilities
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2 2
~ Uneamed income 36 19
Unpaid dividends 3 3
Creditors for capital goods 105 33
Advances from customers 42 69
Employee related liabilities 1,023 836
Book overdraft 136 125
Other liabilities** 814 1,363
Total 2,166 2,455

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.
*#Includes derivative liability of Rs 13 million (As at March 31, 2012: Rs 590 million).

As at March 31, 2013, the Company has outstanding forward contracts amounting to
USD 112.75 million (As at March 31, 2012: USD 112.5 million) and Euro 11 million (As
at March 31, 2012: Euro 9 million) forward strips and leverage option contracts
amounting to NIL (As at March 31, 2012: USD 29.25 million). These derivative
instruments have been entered to hedge highly probable forecasted sales.

%
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

333

In accordance with the provisions of AS 30, those derivative instruments which qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting have been fair valued at balance sheet date and the
resultant exchange gain has been credited to hedge reserve (Refer Note 3.1.2). Other
derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting have been fair valued at
the balance sheet date and resultant exchange gain of Rs 308 million for the year ended
March 31, 2013 (year ended March 31, 2012: gain of Rs 10 million) has been recorded in
the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term provisions
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012

Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 11 1
- Compensated absences 262 228
Provision for taxes 199 257
Provision for discount 145 109
Dividend payable 374 61
Dividend distribution tax payable 61 10
Provision for forseeable losses on contracts - 4
Provision for post contract support services 3 N
Provision for disputed dues* 57 49
Total 1,112 724

*Represents  disputed tax dues provided during the previous year pursuant to
unfavourable order received from the tax authorities against which the Company has
preferred an appeal with the relevant authority. In respect of the provisions of Accounting
Standard — 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (‘AS 29°), the
disclosures required have not been provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29,

Fod
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-

Employee Benefits.

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012
Change in projected benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 276 265
Service cost 62 41
Interest cost 19 19
Benefits settled 1 (74)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 8 25
Obligations at end of the year 324 276
Change in plan assefs
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair
value 275 257
Expected return on plan assets 23 19
Actuarial gain/(loss) 1 38
Contributions 55 35
Benefits settled (41) (74)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair
value 313 275

Reconciliation of the present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan

assets

o Rs in million
Particulars As at March 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Fair value of plan assets at the end 313 275 257 212 132
of the year
Present value of defined
obligations at the end of the year 324) (276) (265) (208) (132)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in
the balance sheet an ()] (8) 4 -

1
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012

Gratuity cost
Service cost 62 41
Interest cost 19 19
Expected return on plan assets 23) (19)
Actuarial (gain)loss 7 (13)
Net gratuity cost 65 28
Actual return on plan assets 24 56

Assumptions
Interest rate 7.96% 8.54%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8% 7.50%
Salary increase 6% 6%
Attrition rate 13.38% 18.2%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand factors in the employment market.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of AS 29 is as

follows:-

Provision for post contract support services

Rs in million

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,

Balance at the beginning of the year
Released during the year

Provision at the end of the year

2013 2012
5 5
@ -
3 5

74
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (confinued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

|
|
|
Provision for discount
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012

Balance at the beginning of the year 109 49

Provisions made during the year 144 87

Utilisations during the year (95) 27)

Released during the year 13) -

Provision at the end of the year 145 109

Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 4 2
Provisions made during the year - 12
Utilisations during the year 4) 10
Provision at the end of the year - 4

These provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.4.2 Non-current investments
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 223 -
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
- Investment in Trade 8 8
- Investment in subsidiary 14 23
Less: Provision for diminution in value of ¢ Q)
investments
Total 244 30
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 223 -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 224 -
Apggregate amount of unquoted investments 22 31

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:
: Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31,2012
JP Morgan Mutual Fund 70 -
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 30 -
IDFC Mutual Fund 28 -
Tata Mutaal Fund 95 -
Total 223 -

Details of investment in trade unquoted investments are as given below:
Rs in million
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012

2,400 (previous year: 2,400) equity shares in

Career Community.com Limited ! 1
643,790 (pi‘cvious year; 643,790) Series A

Convertible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 each

fully paid at premivm of US $ 0.2557 cach in 30

Sccond Software Inc 7 7

Total 8 8

Details of investment in subsidiary are as given below:
Rs in million
Particulars As at March 31,2013 As at March 31,2012

Mindtree Software (Shenzhen) Co., Lid
(‘MSSL")*

Mindtree Sofiware (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
("MSSCL)**

Total

1%



Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts {continucd)
For the year ended March 31,2013

3.4.3

*During the year, the Company dissolved MSSL and the funds available with MSSL
amounting to Rs 18 million were received by the Company. Consequently, the loss on the
dissolution of MSSL amounting to Rs 3 million has been recognised in the statement of’

profit and Joss.

**The Company has set up a new subsidiary MSSCL during the year.

Taxes
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012

Tax expense
- Current tax 887 672
- MAT credit entitlement - (138)
. 887 534
Deferred tax (40) (104)
Total 847 430

The Company has units at Bangalore, Hyderabad and Chennai registered as Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday under Section 10AA of
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company also has STPI units at Bangalore and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier entitled to a tax holiday under

Section 10B and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company has recorded a foreign tax credit of
Rs 97 million relating to financial year 2010-2011 and financial year 2011-2012. The
Company has reflected this credit in the Income tax return for the financial year 2011-
2012 and revised return for the financial year 2010-2011.

78
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.4.4

34.5

Deferred tax assets (net):

Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Excess of depreciation as per 215 222
books over depreciation allowed
under Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for doubtful debts 10 6
Compensated absence 84 39
Provision for volume discount 34 34
Others 17 19
Total deferred tax assets 360 320
Long-term loans and advances
Rs in million
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
(Unsecured considered good)
Capital advances 127 102
Security deposits* 426 442
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 64 - i
value to be received® -
Tetal 617 544
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
Other non-current assets
Rs in million
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 848 742
provision for taxes
MAT credit entitlement 165 246
Qther non-current assets 33 40
Total 1,046 1,028
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1 Current investments
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 3,628 2,750
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of ) -
investments
Term deposits 400 325
Total 4,027 3,075
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 3,628 2,750
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,710 2,803
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 400 325

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:
Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 409 301
IDFC Mutual Fuad 228 346
UTI Mutual Fund 248 233
HSBC Mutual Fend 70 170
Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund —~ 310 176
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 248 215
Birfa Sun Life Mutua) Fund 371 291
Reliance Mutual Fund 349 267
Tata Mutual Fund 152 284
DWS Mutual Fund 198 -
SBI Mutual Fund 358 50
HDFC Mutual Fund 440 122
Axis Mutual Fund 51 120
Principat Mutual Fund 30 -
Kotak Mutual Fund 5t “
Sundaram Mutual Fund 50 -
Pinebridge Mutnal Fund 30 -
Fidelity Mutoal Fund - 50
IDB] Mutual Fund 35 125
Total 3,628 2,750

30
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Details of investments in term deposit are as given below:

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
HDFC Limited 400 200
Janalakshmi Financial Services Private Limited - 125
Total 400 325
Trade receivables
Rs in million
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
(Unsecured)
Debts overdue for a period exceeding six months
- considered good 175 26
- considered doubtful 36 21
Other debts
- considered good 4,333 4,052
- considered doubtful 10 19
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (46) (40)
Total 4,508 4,078
Cash and bank balances
Rs in million
Particalars As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current and deposit 1,235 582
accounts” *
Other bank balances** 3 3
Total 1,238 585

AThe deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

* Balances with banks include the following:

Rs in million

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2013  March 31,2012

Balance with banks held as margin money

towards guarantees 1 1

Bank deposits with more than 12 months of

maturity - I

**Qther bank balances represent balances in respect of unpaid dividends and are considered

restricted in nature.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.5.4

3.58.5

3.6

Short-term loans and advances

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2013  March 31,2012
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 440 191
value to be received*
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (10) -
Total 430 191

*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.

Other current assets

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Unbilied revenue 637 479
Other current assets* 643 346
Total 1,280 825

*Includes derivative asset of Rs 18 million (As at March 31, 2012: Rs 25 million).

Other income
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Interestincome 04 530
Dividend income 128 65
Net gain on sale of investments 133 27
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) - 196
Other non-operating income 25 43
Total 350 384

202
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.7

Expenses

Rs in million

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended March 31,

2013 2012
Salaries and wages 13,029 11,227
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,107 933
Expense on employee stock purchase plan 2 -
Staff welfare expenses 136 101
Total 14,274 12,261
Finance costs For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
Interest expense 10 5
Total 10 5
Other expenses For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
Travel expenses 935 999
Sub-contractor charges 861 661
Computer consumables 256 341
‘Legal and professional charges 249 - 216
Power and fuel 206 183
- Rent (Refer note 3.16) 412 342
Repairs to buildings 55 32
Repairs to machinery 20 16
Insurance 20 20
Rates and taxes 72 103
Exchange loss, net 340 -
Other expenses 1,398 1,045
Total 4,824 3,958
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2013

3.8

Contingent liabilities and commitments

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at March 31, 2013 is Rs 470 million (March 31, 2012: Rs 420

million).

As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not
hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is Rs 4,018 million (March 31, 2012:
Rs 3,709 million).

The Company has received income tax assessment for the financial year 2008-09
wherein demand of Rs 24 million has heen raised against the Company on account of
certain disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A significant
portion of this amount arises from the manner of adjustment of brought forward
losses in arriving at the taxable profits of the Company. The tax demand for financial
year 2008-09 also includes disallowance of portion of profit earned outside India
from the STP and SEZ units,

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received inconie tax assessments for financial years 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary i.e. Mindtree Technologies Private Limited
(MTPL) with demands amounting to Rs 11 million and Rs 10 million on account of
certain_disallowances/ adjustments made by income tax department. Management
believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment
has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against
the demand received. The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the
department.

The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 which pertain to erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited for the financiat
years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07 and 2007-08 wherein
demand of Rs 91 million, Rs 49 million, Rs 6] million, Rs 28 million, Rs 58 million,
Rs 119 million and Rs 214 million respectively has been raised against the Company.
These demands have arisen mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made
in the order. The Company has not accepted these orders and had been advised by its
legal counsel/ advisors to prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly
the Company has filed appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
and ITAT. The Company has deposited Rs.15 million with the department against
these demands,

8t
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.9

During the current year, the Company has received draft assessment order under

Section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act 1961 for the financial year 2008-09 wherein
demand of Rs 65 million has been raised on account of transfer pricing adjustments
and the Company is in the process of filing an appeal before the Dispute Resolution
Panel.

The Company had received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
has accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income
tax department had appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in
an earlier year have passed an order setting aside both the Order of the Commissioner
of Income Tax (Appeals} as well as the Assessing Officer and has remanded the
matter back to the assessment officer for re-assessment, The Company has preferred
an appeal with the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT.
Further, the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka has stayed the operation and all further
proceedings pursuant to the order passed by the ITAT,

During the current year, the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka has dismissed the
appeal filed against the order of ITAT and upheld the order passed by the ITAT and
accordingly the case is pending before assessing officer for re-assessment.

The Company had appealed against the demands received for financial years 2002-
03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07 and 2007-08. Based on favourable order
received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 and an evaluation of the facts
and circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders in the
financial statements,

f) The Company has received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindiree Wireless Private Limited from the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (‘ACIT’) with a demand amounting to Rs 39 million
on account of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by
income tax department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the
matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements.
The Company has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
against the demand received. The Company has deposited Rs 5 million with the
department against this demand.

Quantitative details

The Company is engaged in soflware development services. Such services are not
capable of being expressed in any generic unit and hence, it is not possible to give the
quantitative details required under paragraphs S5(viii)(c) of general instructions for
preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per revised Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.10  Value of imports on CIF basis
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
Capital goods 238 89
Others 4 9
Total 242 98

3.11  Expenditure in foreign currency
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
Branch office expenses 7.821 5,962
Travel expenses 134 200
Professional charges 21 8
Others 97 540
Total 8,073 6,710

3.12  Earnings in foreign currency
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
T 2013 - 2012
Income from software development 22,598 18,069_
Other income 17 3
Total 22,615 18,072

3.13  During the year ended March 31, 2013 the Company has remitted in foreign currency,
dividend Rs 8 million (year ended March 31, 2012: Rs. 10 million).

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2013 March 31,2012
Number of shares held
Final dividend 1,743,465 2,717,566
Interim dividend 1,693,943 2,898,930
Number of shareholders
Final dividend 46 50
Interim dividend 45 47
Amount remitted (Rs) 8 miliion 10 million

Year to which dividend
relates

Final dividend 2011-12
Interim dividend 2012-13

Final dividend 2010-11
Interim dividend 2011-12

i
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.14

Segmental reporting
The Company’s operations predominantly relate to providing IT Services and PE
Services. Accordingly, the Company considers the business segment as the primary
segment and geographical segment based on the location of customers as the secondary
segment.
The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.
Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on items that are
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specifically allocable to individual
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical fo provide segment disclosures relating to such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocable and directly
charged against total income.
The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures
relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not possible.
Business segments
Rs in million
Statement of profit and loss for the IT Services PE Services Total
vear ended March 31,2013 -
Revenues 16,408 7,210 23,618
Operating expenses, net 13,214 5,544 18,758
_Segmental operating income 3,194 1,666 4,860
Unallocable expenses 964
Profit for the year before interest, other
income and tax 3,896
Interest expense (10)
Other income 350
Net profit before taxes 4,236
Income taxes (847)
Net profit after taxes 3,389

bXd

37




Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Rs in million

Statement of profit and loss for the IT Services PE Services Total

year ended March 31,2012
Revenues 12,558 6,594 19,152
Operating expenses, net 10,463 5,756 16,219
Segmental operating income 2,095 838 2,933
Unallocable expenses 695
Profit for the year before interest, other
income and tax 2,238
Interest expense (5)
Other income 384
Net profit before taxes 2,617
Income taxes (430)
Net profif afler taxes 2,187

Geographical segments

Rs in million

Revenues For the year ended March 31,
2013 2012
America 13,411 11,104
Europe 6,944 5,013
India 1,462 1,490
Rest of World 1,801 1,545
Total 23,618 19,152

—3.15 Related party transactions _

Name of related party Nature of relationship
Mindtree Software Subsidiary*
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd (*MSSL’),

Republic of China

Mindtree Software Subsidiary**

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
(‘MSSCL’), Republic of
China

Amalgamated Bean Coffee
Trading Company Limited

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which

(*ABCTCL") through various entities and its promoters heolds 21%
o equity stake in Mindtree, and the group has a nominee on

"ifmglm Developments the Mindtree Board.

Limited (*TDL") .

Janalakshmi Financial Entity with common key management person

Services Private Limited

*Dissolved with effect from September 06, 2012,
**Incorporated on January 29, 2013.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31,2013

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:
Rs in million

Name of related Nature of For the year ended March 31,
party transaction 2013 _ 2012
Amalgamated Bean  Procurement of
Coffee Trading supplies
Company Limited 13 16
Tanglin Leasing office buildings and land
Developments (net)
Limited 310 296
Advance paid:
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 220 -
- towards lease rentals 259 -

Advance received back:

- towards electricity deposit/
charges 108 -

- towards Jease rentals 147 .

Interest on advance towards
electricity charges 3 -

Balances payable to related parties are as_ /'aTléws:
Rs in million

Name of related party As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Tanglin Developments Limited 9 6
MSSL - 3

A
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounfs (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

Balances receivable firom related parties are as follows:

Rs in million

Name of related Nature of As at As at
party transactions March 31,2013  March 31, 2012
Tanglin Rental advance
Developments )
Limited - Current 112
- Non-current -
Advance towards
electricity charges
- Current 48 -
- Non-current 64 -
Security deposit 345 345
returnable on
termination of lease
Interest accrued on 3 -
advance towards
electricity charges
Janalakshmi - Interest bearing -* 125

Financial Services
Private Limited

deposits

*Redeemed during the year including interest thereon.

Key managerial personnel:

Subroto Bagchi
Dr. Albert Hieronimus

N. Krishnakumar

S. Janakiraman

N S Parthasarathy*
Anjan Lahiri*

R. Srinivasan
V.G.Siddhartha
David B. Yoffic
Prof. Pankaj Chandra

Ramesh Ramanathan

Appointed as Chairman with effect from April 1,2012

Appointed as Non-executive Vice Chairman with effect

from April 1,2012

CEO & Managing Director

President & Chief Technology Officer
President & CQO

President — IT Services
Non-executive Director of Mindiree
Non-executive Director of Mindiree
Non-executive Director of Mindtree

Non-executive Director of Mindtree

Appointed as Non-executive Director of Mindtree with

effect from May 2, 2012

*The Board clected Anjan Lahiri, as an additional Board member to hold office with
effect from October 24, 2012 till the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The Board also elected N S Parthasarathy as an Alternate Director to S
Janakiraman, with effect from October 22, 2012.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2013

3.16

3.17

Remuneration paid to key managerial personnel during the year ended March 31, 2013
amounts to Rs 96 million (for the year ended March 31, 2012: Rs 73 million). Dividends
paid 1o directors during the year ended March 31, 2013 amounts to Rs 30 million (for the
year ended March 31, 2012 Rs 19 million).

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be
separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

Lease transactions

Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March
31, 2013 amounted to Rs 161 million (for the year ended March 31, 2012: Rs 88 million).
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Rs in million

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2013  March 31,2012
Payable -~ Not later than one year 203 138
Payable -- Later than one year and not later 521 224

than five years

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating [eases. The rental expense under cancelable operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2013 was Rs 251 million (for the year ended March 31, 2012:
Rs 254 million).

Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of shares used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Basic EPS Diluted Basic EPS  Diluted EPS

EPS

Weighted average number of 40,974,712 40,974,712 40,295,202 40,295,202
cquity shares outstanding

during the year

Weighted average number of - 521,584 - 67,957
equity shares resulting from

assumed exercise of

cmployee stock options

Weighted average number of 40,974,712 41,496,296 40,295,202 40,363,159
equity shares for calculation

of carnings per share

S
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.18

3.19

Auditor’s remuneration
Rs in million

For the year ended March 31,

Particulars
2013 2012

Statutory audit 2 2
Tax audit 1 1
Quarterly audit 11 11
Certification ! 1
Reimbursement of expenses ] -
Total 16 I5

The Company has opened a new development center at Gainesville, Florida, US to
broaden its IT and Software consulling offerings to its clients in the US. The state of
Florida has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development center,

The nature and the extent of the government grant is given below:
Rs in million

For the year ended March 31,

Nature of expenses
2013 2012

Reimbursement of rent 2 -
Grant towards workforce 4 -
training
Non-monetary grant of US$ 51 -
950,000 for renovation of B
project facility*

57 -

Total

*The aforesaid grant is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions such as creation of
minimum employment with specified average salary and capital investment at the new
development center at Gainesville, Florida, US.

.-—'\-’"3%
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continucd)

For the year ended March 31, 2013

3.20

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2013 has
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance
sheet date,
Rs in million

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
¢ March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

The principal amount and the interest

due thereon (to be shown separately)

remaining unpaid to any supplier as at

the end of accounting year; Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the

buyer under the Act along with the

amounts of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year; Nil Nil

the amount of intetest due and payable

for the period (where the principal has

been paid but interest under the Act

not paid); Nil Nil
The amount of interest accrued and

remaining unpaid at the end of

accounting year; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest due and

payable even in the succeeding year,

until such date when the interest dues

as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a  deductible

expenditure under section 23. Nil Nit
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the decounts (continucd)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

321

Corresponding figures for the previous year presenied have been regrouped, where

necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.

Chuartered Accountants

Figm Registration No.: 101248W

Subrote gchl
Chairman

Sudpreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership No.: 205385

sstow Ravanan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 22, 2013

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 22, 2013
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For Mindtree Limited

N. Krishnakumar
CEO & Managing Dircotor

PQM\W S

Rajesh Srichand Narang
Company Secretary
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Annexunl -Ea
BSR&Co LLp et

Chartered Accountants

Maruthi Info-Tech Centre Telephone: + 91 80 3980 6000
11-12/1 inner Ring Road Fax: + 91 80 3980 6938
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Mindtree Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the stalement of profit and loss and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the
Act”) read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibitity includes the design,
impiementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures 10 obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 10 design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

@) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of afTairs of the Company as at 31 March 2014;
(b) in the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
{c) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order™), as amended, issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in
the Anncxure a stalement on the mattets specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(i1) in our opinion proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books;

(3ii) the balance sheel, statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account,

(iv) in our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

(v) on the basis of written representations received {rom the directors as on 31 March 2014, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g} of sub-section (1) of
section 274 of the Act.

Chartered Accountanls
m’s registration No. 101248W

M%

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership No. 205385

Bangalore

16 April 2014
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in the Auditor’s Report to the members of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company’)
for the year ended 31 March 2014,

We report as follows:

Lo

=]

/

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular programime of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard 10 the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were observed on such verification.

¢) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going
concern assumption.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering sofiware development services,
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to or from companies,
firms or other partics covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956,

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there is an adeguate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of fixed assets and sale of services, The activities of the Company do not
involve purchase of inventory and the sale of goods. We have not observed any major weakness in
the internal control system during the course of the audit.

In our opinion, and according 1o the information and explanations given (o us, there are ho contracts
and arrangements the particulars of which need 10 be entered into the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
209(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

. @) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund,

%
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Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Customs duty, and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As
explained 1o us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Wealth tax, Employces State
Insurance and Excise duty.

b) According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service
lax, Customs duty, Cess and other material statulory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2014 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given fo us, there are no dues of Customs duty and
Cess whichi have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. The
Company, however, disputes the following Income tax, Service tax and Sales tax dues:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
s

income  Tax | Tax and | 78.90* Assessiment  year | Assessing Officer,

Act, 196) interest 2002-03 Bangalore**

Income  Tax | Tax and | 46.70* Assessment  year | Commissioner of

Act, 196) interest 2003-04 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

Income  Tax | Tax and | 60.84 Assessment  year | Commissioner  of

Act, 1961 interest 2004-05 Income Taxes
(Appeals).
Bangalore

Income  Tax | Tax and | 8.45% Assessment  year | Income Tax

Act, 1961 interest 2007-08 Appeliate
Tribunal,
Bangalore

2%
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Name of the | Natare of the | Amount Period to which | Ferum where
statute dues {Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income  Tax | Tax and | 1116 Assessment  year | Commissioner  of
Act, 190] interest 2007-08 Income Taxes
{Appeals),
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 10,10 Assessment  year | Commissioner of
Act, 196] interest 2008-09 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax | Tax and | 27.91% Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 23.56 Assessmemnt  year | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest 2009-10 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangatore®
Income  Tax | Tax and | 1.63 Assessiment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 209.61% Assessment  year Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2008-09 Appetlate Tribunal
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 62.90 Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 196] interest 2009-10 Appeliate
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and { 60.30" Assessment  year | Assessing Officer,
Act, 196] interest 2010-11 Bangalore
The  Finance | Service tax | 11.29 June 2005 1o | Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 and interest March 2007 and Service. Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Banpalore***

9
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Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period (o which | Forum where
statute dues {Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
The  TFinance | Service tax | 24.27 July 2003  to] Customs, [Excise
Act, 1994 and interest March 2006 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore***
The  Finance | Tax, interest | 64.47 July 2004  to | Customs, Dxcise
Act, 1994 and penalty November 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore****
The  TFinance | Tax, interest | 3.11* Aprii 2007 1o | Custoims, Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty March 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore #*%*
The  Finance | Tax, interest | 22.68 September 2004 to | Customs,  Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty March 2007 and Service Tax
Appeliate
Tribunal,
Bangalore****
The Finance | Tax, interest | 4.68 April 2007  to | Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty February 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Karnataka Tax and | 0.28* Upto July 2004 Assistant
Sates Tax Act, | penalty : Commissioner  of
1957 Commercial taxes
{Recovery),
Bangalore

~ The Company has not obtained the final assessment order as at the date of this report.

* The above amounts are net of amount paid under protest,

$$The Company is awaiting the order giving effect order from the Assessing Officer as at the date

of this report.
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19.

20,

**The matter is currently pending with the Assessing Officer, as per 1TAT order dated 12 July
2007
rS .

5% Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide original
order dated 6 January 2012 and further order received dated 21 February 2013,

*E% Slay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide order
dated 27 September 2012,

Note: The Income-Tax authorities have adjusted refund amounting 1o Rs.162 million in respect of
the aforementioned demands without earmarking amounts to the Assessment Year which has not
been reflected in the above disclosure.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial ycar.

. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has nol

defaulted in repayment of dues to its bankers. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to any
financial institution or debenture hoiders during the year.

. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of

shares, debentures and other securities.

. In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in

shares, securities, debentures and other investinents.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee

for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

. The Company did not have any term toans outstanding during the year.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the

balance sheet of the company, we are of the opinion that the funds raised on short-term basis have not
been used for long-term investment.

. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies/ firms/ parties covered

in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year,

The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year,

fot




BSR&Co. LLP

21. According to the information and explanations given to us, no materiai fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reporied during the course of our audit.

Jor BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accowtants
Firm registration No. 101248W

Supreet Sachdev
Parter
Membership No. 205385

Bangalore
16 April 2014
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Mindtree Linrited
Balince sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILIFIES
Sharctolders’ funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Nog-current liahilitics
Leng-term borrowings
Other Jong-tenm {tabilities
Long-teem provisions

Current linbilities
Shart-term borowings
Trade payables

Other current hiabilities
Shodt-term provisions

ASSETS
Nan-current résets
Fined asscls

Tangible assets

ntangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Non-curvent investments
Beferred tax assets (net)
Long-term loans and advances
Other non-current asscls

Current asscts

Current investnents

“Frade receivables

Cash and bank balances
Shori-lenn feans and advances
Qther cuerent assets

Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts

Rs in million

Nute As a1 As at
Narch 31, 2084 March 31,2013
311 417 415
312 15,992 12,722
16,409 13,137
3% 27 32
iz 129 87
2. 39 -

195 89
331 - 217
42 189
332 2,737 2,166
333 1,574 1,112
4,393 3,684
20,997 16,910
340 3,266 2,485
140 t70 104
496 571
342 189 244
343 402 360
3.4.4 758 617
345 1,039 1,046
6,324 5,427
351 5,160 4,027
352 6,004 4,508
353 1,175 1,238
354 612 430
5.5 1,726 1,280
14,677 11,483
20,997 16910

2&3

The notes refered to above fonn an integral pant of the linancial statements

As per our geport of even date attached

FarBS R & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants

Bl Repistration Number: 101248\
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Suprect Sachdev
Partner
Membership Number: 205388

Place: Bangalore
Date : Apnl 16,2014

Pt Chiel Financial Ofticer

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16, 2014
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Rajesh Srichand Narang
Company Secretary
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Mindiree Limited
Statement of profit and foss

Rs in miltion

Particulars Nute For the year cuded

March 31, 2014 Marcl: 31,2013
Revenue {rom operations 30,316 23,648
Other income 36 494 350
Total revenues 30,810 23,968
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 37 17,820 14,274
Finance costs 37 4 i0
Depreciation and amortisation expense 340 809 624
Other expenses 3.7 6,390 4,824
Total expenses 25023 19,732
Profit before 1ax 5,787 4,236
Tax expense: 343
Current tax 1,317 887
Deferred tax (42) {40)
Profit for the year 4,512 3,389
Earnings per equity share 317
Equity shares of par valuc Rs 10/- cach
Basic 108.50 82.70
Diluted 107.70 81.66
Weighted average nuniber ol equity shares used in computing carnings per share
Basic 41,588,758 40,974.712
Diluted 41,896,409 41,496,296

Significant accounting policies and notes fo the accounts

&3

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of cven date attached
lFor BSR & Co, LLP

Chartered Accowntants

Figap Registration Number: 101248W

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership Number: 205385

Place: Bangalore
Datc : Aprit 16, 2014

Su br(Mng{hi//

Chgiyman

Rostoi Ravanan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangatore
Date : Aprit 16, 2014

Jior Mindtsee Limited
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N. Krishnakumar
CEO & Managing Direetor
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Rajesh Srichand Narang
Company Scerelary




Mindiree Limited
Cash Now stalvarent

Cash Row from nperaling activities
Profit before tax
Adbustments far

Depreciation snd amonesation

A ization af stock

5 o st

Interest expense

Intesest/ davidend income

I%ofit on ssle of fixed assels

Profig on sate of investments

Provision for dinsinution in the vakue of investenls
Lass on Sissotution of subsidiary

Lxchange difference an derivatives

Eflent of exchianye difterences on vanstation of forcign
curtency bdssowHIgs
Eftect of exchange differences on transhation of loreign
cureency cash and cash cyuivalonts

Gperating profit brfme working capital changes
Changes in tcade 1eceivables
Changes in loans 2ud atkvances and ot asscls
Changes i lisbitities aad provisions

Net cash provided by opeiatiang activities before taxes
Tncome taxes paid

Nei cash pravided by operating activities

Casti flow fram investing activities

Yunchase of fixed asscts

Froceeds (rom sale of fixed assets

Javestment in subsidiary

Proceeds on dissohiion of subsidiary

Interest! dividend reccived (rom investioms

Turchase of investments

Sale/ matarities of investments

Net cash used in favesting activitics

Cash Mow from financing sctivitics

tssuc of sharc capital {nct of issue expenses paid)

Interest paid on laans

Repayment of bosrowings

Proceeds front Joans

Dividends paid (inctuding distobution 1ax)

Nt caslt iosed in financing activities

Efcct of eachange diffe on translation of foreign
cureency cash and cash cquivalents

Neg (decreasc) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cush vquivalents at the beginning of the year

Casli and casl equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 3.8.3)

“Ihe aotes seferred (e abave form aa inteat pant of the financiat statcmens

As pee our repont of even gate attached
ForBS R & Co. LLF

Chartered Accoanianits

Fian Roystration Numbei: 1012460

Supreet Sachdev

Partier
Memhership Nuntbes: 203385

Place: Bangalose
Date - Aprit 16, 2¢i4

108

Hs in miltian
Far tie year ended March 31,

2044 2013
§,787 4236
|09 629
7% 2
4 15
(215} {192)
Gy )
30 {i33)
n 1
- ¥
. {308)
2 %
169) (30
6,286 1234
(1.396} 26)
(837) (564)
568 3
4,521 3,032
(1.297) {969)
3,224 2,663
{1.520) {1,060)
3 9
. (14
- 18
273 17
(11,443} (11,257
10,495 10,216
(2,243) (1.915)
03 522
%) ()
(BI1) {gat)
564 219
(924) (214)
{1,11)) {125)
o9 30
{6%) 3y
1.238 585
1,175 1,238

Subroty Bagehi

Rostow an
Chicf Financial Officer

Place. Baogatore
yatc: Apiil 16, 2014

For Mindiree Linvted

T MO AR Ao

N. Krishngkemar
(CEQ & Managing Director
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Rajesh Srichand Narang
Company Secretary




Mind{ree Limited

Significani accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per shave data, unless otherwise stated).

1.

2.1

2.2

Background

Mindiree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global software development. The Company is structured into five verticals —
Manufacturing, BI'SI, Hitech, Travel & Transportation and Others. The Company offers
services in the arcas of agile, analytics and information management, application
development and maintenance, business process management, business technology
consulting, cloud, digital business’s, independent testing, infrastructure management
services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services.

The Company is head quartered in Bangalote and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,
Sweden, UAE, Netherfands, Canada, Belgium, France and Republic of China.

Significant accounting policics
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statetnents have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values and comply with the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) which as per a
clarification issued by the Ministry of Cotporate Affairs continue to apply under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (which has superseded section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act 1956 w.e.l. 12 September, 2013), other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent
notified and applicable) and the Companies Act, 1956, (10 the extent applicable) and the
guidelines issued by Securitics and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI’) to the extent
applicable.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles (‘GAAP’) in India requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets
and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to

accounting estimates is secognised prospectively in future periods.
Y

1
\
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Mind(rce Limited

Significant accounting policies and noles to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mareh 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

Fixed assefs and depreciation

2.3.1

2.3.2

233

235

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally
generated intangible assets are recorded atl cost thal can be measured veliably
during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable 1o the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantiatly all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases, Such assets are capitalised at fair
value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each™
balance sheet date are shown under cayital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method. The rates specified under
schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 are considered as minimum rates. If
the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the time of the
acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is
shorfer than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a
higher rate based on the management’s estimate of the useful fife/ remaining
useful life. Pursuant to this policy, the management has estimated the useful life
as under:

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 25-30 years
Computer systems 1-3 years
Computer software 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Electrical installations 3-5 years
Office equipment 4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Intellectual property S years

Fixed assets individually costing Rupees five thousand or less are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase/ installation. Depreciation on additions and
disposals during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis.

560071 ] 5
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Mindtrce Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes fo the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 3§, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

237 The cost of leasehold fand is amortised over the period of the lease. Leaschold
improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease
term or useful life, whichever is lower.

Investments

24.1  Non-curtent investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis.

o
e
[

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in sespect of each
investment.

243  Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the
sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows f{rom regular revenue
generating, investing and {inancing activities of the Company are segregated.

Employce benefits

2.7.1  Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations
at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The Company
has an employees’ grawity fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company, SBI Life Insurance Contpany and Life insurance Corporation of India.
Actuarial gains and Josses are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

272 Compensated absences are a long-term employce benefit and is accrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-lerm compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders services.

2.7.3 Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined
coniribution scheme, are charged 10 the statement of profit and joss.

(0%




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
{Rupees in millions, exeept share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

2.9

Revenue recognition

2.8.1

2.82

2.8.3

2.8.4

The Company derives its revenues primarily from sofiware services. Revenue
from sofiware development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the
related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised
using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the
actual project cost of work performed to date lo the estimated total project cost
for each contract, Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and
eamnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete conlracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current
canfract estimates,

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of the maintenance
contract.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues are stated net of
discount,

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

interest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Foreign exchange transactions

2.9.1

292

293

The Company is exposed to foreign currency iransactions including foreign
currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view to minimize the
volatility arising froms fluctuations in cusrency rates, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instruments.

Foreign exchange fransactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the respective transactions, Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the year,

Monetary assets and liabifities denominated in fareign currencies as at the
balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported using 1he exchange rate at the date of the
{ransaction.

r
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Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.10

2.11

2.9.4  In respect of integral operations, monetary assels and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-menetary items
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of profit and loss
are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
The differences arising out of the transiation are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

2.9.5 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting
Standard (‘AS’) 11, “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS 11,
based on the nature and purpose of the contract, either the contracts are recorded
based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amostized as income or expense
over the life of the contract.

296 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are not covered by
AS 11 and that rclate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS') 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which gualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve until the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.

Warranties

Warranty costs (i.e. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognilion of revenue.

Provision and contingent liabilitics

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent }iability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

[10
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.12

2.13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracls where the expected unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the cconomic benefits expected 1o be
received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required 10 settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences atlributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financiai statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax heliday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered 1o
reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
fiabilities or assets arc recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws,
deferred tax assels are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum aiternate tax (‘MAT"’) paid in accordance with the tax jaws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of (ax credit against future income tax lability, is
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax afler the tax holiday period and the resuitant assets can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and wtilized for a
period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the cusrent tax assets and liabilities, where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends 1o settle such assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
carnings per share comprises weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of ail dilutive potential equity shares.

oy
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts {continucd)
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of assels

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. 1f any such indication cxists, the Company
cstimates the recoverable amount of the asset. FFor an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit fo which the asset belongs, 1f such recoverable amousnt of the assct or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit 1o which the asset belongs is less than jts carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. Tn respect of goodwill, impairment loss wilt be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to employee stock options,
restricted shares and stock appreciation rights using the intrinsic value method. The
compensation cost is amortised over the vesting/ service period.

Government grangs
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

(i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(i)  the grant will be received.

Government grants related 1o revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary fo match them with the related
costs which (hey are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. Where the ‘Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.

Notes to the accounts

Sharcholders’ funds

Share capital

a)

b)

Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Authorised

79,620,000 (March 31, 2G13; 79,620,000) cquity 796 796

shares of Rs 10/ each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
41,689,731 (March 31, 2013: 41,535,055} cquity 417 415
shares of Rs 10/- cach fully paid

Total 417 415

Recorciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting year is as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
No of shares Rs No of shares Rs
Number ol sharces outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,535,055 415 40,543,923 405
Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock ophions and 154,676 2 991,132 1¢
restricied shaves
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 4) 689,731 417 41,535,055 415

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par
value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the
date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held
for alt matters submitted 1o vote in the shareholder mecting.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 16, 2014, have recommended
an issuc of bonus shares on the company's equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 (one
additional equity share for every one existing equity share). The Comipany is in the
process of complying with necessary formatities.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and foreign currency. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors at ils meeting held on October 16, 2013 had deciared an
interim dividend of 50% (Rs 5 per equity share on a par value of Rs 10 each). At its
meeting held on January 16, 2014, the Board declared a second interim dividend of
50% (Rs S per equity share on a par value of Rs 10 each). The Board of Directors at
its meeting held on Apri 16[ 2014 hav nended a third interim dividend of
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

d)

50% (Rs 5 per equity share of par value Rs 10 each). Further, the Board has
recommended a final dividend of 50% (Rs 5 per equity share of par value Rs 10 cach)
for the year ended March 31, 2014 and a speciat dividend of 50% (Rs S per equity
share of par value Rs 10 each) for completion of 15 years in business. If the proposed
1:1 bonus share issue is approved by sharcholders prior to the date of the AGM, the
final & special dividend amounts would be accordingly reduced to 25% (Rs 2.5 per
equity share of Rs 10 each). The total dividend appropriation for the year ended
March 31, 2014 amounted to Rs 1,221, including corporate dividend tax of Rs 180.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognized
as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs 12. The dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2013 includes Rs $ per share of final dividend, Rs 7 per share of interim
dividend. The total dividend appropriation for the year ended March 31, 2013
amounted to Rs 578, including corporate dividend tax of Rs 81,

1n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled 10 reccive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Equity shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares along with the
number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given
below:

Sr. Na, Name of the shaveholder As at March 3t, 2014 As at March 31,2013
Number of shares % Number of shares %
b Coflee Day Resorts Privaie Limited 4,365,442  10.5% 4,565,442 11.0%
2 Nalanda India Fungd Limited 3949080 9.5% 3,949,089 9.5%
3 Global Technology Ventures Limited 2,648,561 64% 2498561 6.0%

4 Subroto Bagchi * -

- 2,078,585  50%
*Holds less than 5% of equity shares as at 1he reporting date

"Fhe Company has not allotted any fuily paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares
nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date. Number of equity shares ailotted as
fully paid up without payment being received in cash is 1,300,965 during the period
of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013. These
shares were allotted to the sharcholders of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation for the financial year ended March 31, 2010,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless ofherwise stated)

) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plany (‘'ESOP?) in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Company cumently
administers seven stock option programs, a restricied stock purchase plan and a stock
appreciation rights plan,

Program 1 {ESOP 1999]

Options under this program are exercisable at an exercise price of Rs 10 per option. All
stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and
35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully
exercisable. Each option is entitled 10 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends
to employees who have joined on or before September 30, 2001 or have been issued
employment offer letters on or before August 7, 2001. This plan was terminated on
September 30, 2001. The contraciual life of each option is 11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Quitstanding options, beginning of the year - 4,000
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year - 500
Lapsed during the year . 3,500

Forfeited during the year - ' -
Outstanding options, end of the year - -
Options vested and exercisable, end of the - -
year

Program 2 [ESOP 2001}

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exescise price of Rs 50
per option, All stock options have a four-year vesting tern and vest at the rate of 15%,
20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant
and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to | equity share of Rs 10 each.
This program extends o employees who have joined on or after October 1, 2001 or have
been issued employinent offer letters on or afier August 8, 2001 or options granted to
exisling employees with grant date on or after Qctober 1, 2001. This plan was terminated
on April 30, 2006. The contractual life of each option is 11 years afier the date of grant.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Quitstanding options, beginning of the year 47918 79,367
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 12,868 25,837
Lapsed during the year 3,821 5,612
Forfeited during the year - -
Quistanding options, end of the year 31,229 47,918
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 31,229 47918

Program 3 {ESOP 2006 (u)f

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercise price of
Rs 250 per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of
15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of
grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to I equity share of Rs 10
cach. This program extends 1o employees 1o whom the options are granted on or after
May 1, 2006. This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each
option is 5 years afler the date of grant. There are no options outstanding as at the
reporting dates.

Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (b)}

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically
determined by the Compensation Committee. All stock options have a four-year vesting
term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years
respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitied
to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends 1o employees to whom the options
are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each option is 5 years
afler the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 304,650 1,349,038
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year ‘ 57,600 905,860
Lapsed during the year 28475 97,528
Forfeited during the year 71,325 41,000
Qutstanding options, end of the year 147,250 304,650
Options vested and exercisable, end of the 89,175 115,225
year

o
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

FFor the year ended Mareh 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 5 (ESOP 2008A4]

Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited as
per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each new option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

Particalars Year ended March 31,

' 2014 2013
Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 108,248 124,803
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 20,614 14,437
Lapsed during the year 2,610 2,118
Forfeited during the year - -
QOutstanding options, end of the year 85,024 108,248
Options vested and exercisable, end of the 85,024 108,248

year

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006°)

Options under this program have been granted to independent dircctors at an exercise
price periodically determined by the Compensation Conunittee. All stock options vest
equally over three year vesting term at the end of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively from the
date of the grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitied to 1 eguity share of
Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option is 4 ycars after the date of the grant,

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Qutstanding oplions, beginning of the year 135,000 151,667
Granted during the year - 20,000
Exercised during the year 45,000 36,667
Lapsed during the year 10,000 -
Forfeited during the year 25,000 -
Outstanding options, end of the year 55,000 135,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 41,666 76,667

Program 7 [ESOP 2010A]

la-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program i.e. ESOP 2010
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,135,000 equity
shares of Rs 10 cach, No options have been granted under the program as at March 31,
2014. ¢
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continuced)

For the yeay ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Restricted Stock Purclase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to further issue upto 1,000,000
equity shares of nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program ate granted to
employees al an exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher price
as decided by the Board of Directors. Shares shall vest over such term as determined by
the Board of Directors not exceeding ten years from the date of the grant. All shares will
have a minimum lock in period of one year from the date of allotment.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Qutstanding shares, beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 18,594 7.831
Exercised during the year 18.594 7,831

Lapsed during the year ’ - -
Forfeited during the year . -
Outstanding shares, end of the year - -
Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year ' - -

During the year ended March 31, 2014, 18,594 shares were granted by the Company
under Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Pian 2012 (‘ERSP 20127)

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during the year was Rs 1,138 using the Black-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:

Weighted average grant date share price Rs 1,150
Weighted average exercise price Rs 10
Dividend yield % 0.27%
Expected life 1 year
Risk free interest rate 8.22%
Volatility ‘ 106.05%

During the year, the Company has also granted stock appreciation rights ('SAR") units and
letter of intent to issue shares under ERSP 2012 plan to some of its employees which is
subject to certain vesting conditions, Details of the grant/issue are given below.

Particulars SAR ERSP 2012 plan
No of units/ shares 382,500 115,000
Contractual life 4 years 5 years
Date of grant 18-Jul-13 18-Jul-13*
Price per share/ unit Grant price of Exercise price of

Rs 910 Rs 10*

*RBased on Letter of Intent

The weighted average fair value of eact unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during the year was Rs 898 using the Black-Scholes mode! with the- followmg
assumptions: S
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

’

Weighted average prant date share price Rs 914
Weighted average exercise price _ Rs 10
Dividend yield % 0.17 % - 0.30%
Expected life S years
Risk fiee interest rate : 8.29%
Volatility 104.65% - 107.7%

The following 1able summarizes information about the weighted average exercise p1 ice of
options/ shares exercised under various programs:

Amountin Rs

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Program | - 10.00
Program 2 50.00 50.00
Program 3 - -
Program 4 507.14 336.84
Program 5 387.64 404.63
DSOP 2006 560.00 259.27
ERSP 2012 10.00 10.00

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under
various programs as al March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 respectively:

Particulars As at March 31, 2014
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average cxercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program | - - -
Program 2 31,229 1.13 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 147,250 1.78 496.58
Program 5 85,024 2.28 393.90
DSOP 2006 55,000 1.24 558.55
ERSP 2012 - - -
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Significant accounting policics and nofes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per sharc data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2013
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average cxercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in_Rs)
Program 1 - - -
Program 2 47,918 2.00 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 304,650 2.62 491.45
Progranm 5 108,248 3.21 392.82
DSOP 2006 135,000 1.95 559.41
ERSP 2012 - - -

The Company has recorded compensation cost for alt grants using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

Had compensation been determined under the fair value approach described in the
Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by ICAI, the
Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per sharc would have reduced to the
proforma amounts as indicated:

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Net profit as reported 4,512 3,389

Add: - Stock-based employee

compensation expense {intrinsic value 79 -

method)

Less: Stock-based employce

compensation expense (fair value

method) 18 (74)

Pro forma net profit - : 4,609 3,315

Basic earntings per share as reported 108.50 82.70

Pro forma basic carnings per share 110.83 80.89

Diluted earnings per share as reported 107.70 81.66

Pro forma diluted earnings per share 110.02 79.87
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (comtinued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupeces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2

Reserves and surplus

Particulars As af As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Capital reserve
Opening balance 87 87
Additions during the year - -
87 87
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 2,125 1,808
Additions during the year on exercise of employee 83 Nz
stock options/ restricted sharcs
2,208 2,125
General reserve
Opening balance 1,091 752
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss 451 339
1,542 1,091
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 48 48
Additiens during the year 2 -
68 48
Hedge reserve
Opening balance 173 {250)
Additions during the year (124) 423
49 173
Surplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)
QOpening balance 9,198 6,726
Add: Amount transierred from statement of profit 4,512 3,389
and loss
Amount avaiaible for appropriations 13,710 16,115
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (624) (289)
Final dividend* (417) (208)
Dividend distribution tax (180} 81}
Amount {ransfered to general resene {451) (339)
12,038 9,198
Total 15,992 12,722
*Includes special dividend as at March 31, 2014,
f
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2 Non-current liabilities

3.2.1 Long-term bhorrowings

Particuiars As af Asat
' March 31, 2014 March 31,2013

(Unsecured)

Other loans and advances 27 32

Tatal 27 32

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received from Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) 1o develop a project under “Development of Intetligent Video
Surveillance Server (IVSS) system™.

The loan is an unsecured joan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of foan is in 10 equal annual installments from June 201 1.
Any defay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the
period of delay.

There is no continuing defauit in the repayment of the principal loan and interest
amounts.

3.2.2  Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Other long-term liabilities 97 57
Employce related liabilities 32 -
Taotal 129 57

3.2.3 Long-term provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013

Provision for discount 39 -

Total ‘ 39 -

Refer note 3.3.3 for the disclosure of provisions movement as required under the
provisions of Accounting Standard — 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’ (‘AS 29°).
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Mindtree Limited
Significant acconnting policics and notes to the accounts (cantinned)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1

3.3.2

Short-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

(Secured)

Packing credit loan from banks - 217

Total - 217

During the year, the Company has availed packing credit Joans of USD 10 million and
has repaid packing credit loans of USD 14 miltion. These packing credit loans were
secured against the trade receivables of the Company. As at March 31, 2014, the
Company has no outstanding packing credit toan (As at March 31, 2013: USD 4 million).
The Company had taken forward exchange contracts with respect to this loan. In
accordance with ‘AS 11" the forward premium arising at inceplion was amortized as an
expense over the life of the contract.

Details of interes( rate and repayment terns in respect of above packing credit loan are as

below;

Name of the bank

As at March 31,2014

As at March 31, 2013

Rs Rate of Rs Date of
inlerest p.a__ repayment mterest p.a  repayment
HSRBC - 217 1.98%  29-May-13
Total - 217
Other current liabitities
Particulars As atl As at
Mavrch 31,2014 March 31,2013
Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1 2
Unearned income 1060 36
Unpaid dividends 4 3
Creditors for capital goods 175 1G5
Advances from customers 103 42
Employee related liabilities ' 1,245 1,023
Book overdraft 85 136
Other liabilities** 1,019 8i4
Total 2,737 2,166

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.
**[ncludes derivative liability of Rs 44 (As at March 31, 2013: Rs 13).

As at March 31, 2014, the Company has outstanding forward contracts amounting to
USD 47.5 million (As at March 31, 2013: USD 112.75 mitiion) and Euro 5 million (As at
March 31, 2013: Euro 11 million). These derivative instruments have been entered 1o
hedge highly probable forecasted sales,
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

333

In accordance with the provisions of AS 30, those derivative instruments which qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting have been fair valued at balance sheet date and the
resultant exchange gain/ (loss) has been credited/ {debited) to hedge reserve (Refer Note
3.1.2). As of March 31, 2014, the Company does not have any derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting. However such instruments that were prevalent in
the previous year have been fair valued at the balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange gain Rs 308 for the year ended March 31, 2013 has been recorded in the

statement of profit and loss,

Short-term provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 2 1
- Compensated absences 320 262
Provision for taxes 219 199
Provision for discount 231 145
Dividend payable 626 374
Dividend distribution tax payabie 106 61
Provision for forseeable losses on contracts 3 -
Provision for post conitract support services 4 3
Provision for disputed dues* 63 57
Total 1,574 1,112

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order received from the
tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been

provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to (he accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-
Empluyee Benefits,

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

Change in projected benefit obligations

Obligations af the beginning of the year 324 276
Service cost 74 62
Interest cost 26 19
Benefits settled (36) {41)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (23) 8
Obligations af end of the year 365 324

Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair

value 313 275
Expected return on plan assets 26 23
Actuarial gain/ {loss) - 1
Contributions 60 55
Benefits settled (36) @1
Plan asscts at the end of the year, at fair
value 363 313
Reconciliation of the present vajue of the obligation and the fair value of the plan
asse(s
Particulars As at March 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Fair value of plan assets at the end of 363 313 275 257 212

the year

Present value of defined obligations at

the end of the year (365) (324) (276) (265) (208)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the
balance sheet 2) [(D)) (1) (8) 4

W,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Par{icolars March 31,
2014 2013
Gratuity cost
Service cost 74 62
Interest cost 26 19
Expected return on plan assets (26) (23)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (23) 7
Net gratuity cost 51 05
Actual return on plan assets 26 24
Assumptions
Interest rate 8.80% 7.96%
Expected rate of return on plan 8% 8%
assetls
Salary increase 6% 6%
Atrition rate 13% 13.38%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes imto
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand factors in the employment market.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of AS 29 is as

follows:-

Provision for post contract support services

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Balance at the beginning of the year 3 5
Provisions made during the year 1 -
Utilisations during the year o . -

Released during the year -
Provision at the end of the year 4

126
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share datg, unless otherwise stated)

Provision for discount

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 145 109
Provisions made during the year 290 144
Utitisations during the year (154) 95)
Released during the year (i (13)
Provision at the end of the year 270 145
Current 231 145
Non-current 39 -

Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year - 4
Provisions made during the year 3 -
Utilisations during the year - 4)
Released during the year - .
Provision at the end of the year 3 .

The current provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year and the non-
current provisions are expected 10 be utilized over a period of two fo three years.

25
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounds
For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated),

3.4.2  Non-current investments

Particulars As at As at
Mavrch 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 168 223
Investment in equity instruments {unquoted)
- Investment in Jrade 8 8
- Investment in subsidiary 14 14
Less: Provision for diminution in value of (1} (1)
investments
Tetal 189 244
Aggregate amount of quoted investinents 168 223
Agpregate market value of quoted investments 170 224
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 22 22
Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
JP Morgan Mutual Fund - 70
Birla Sun Life Mutuai Fund - 30
IDFC Mutual Fund - 28
"ata Mutual Fund 10 95
Reliance Mutual Fund 28 -
UTI Mutual Fund 100 -
Total 168 223
Details of investment in trade unquoted investments are as given below:
Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2014 March 3%, 2013
2.400 (previous year: 2,400} equity sharcs in
Carcer Community.com Limited 1 !
643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Serics A
Converlible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 each
fully paid at premium of US $ 0.2557 each in 30
Sceond Software Inc 7 7
Total 8 8
Details of investment in subsidiary are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 14 14
(‘MSSCL")
Total 14 14

|29
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2084

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.43 Taxes
Particulars Yor the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Tax expense
Current fax 1,317 887
Deferred tax {42) (40)
"otal 1,278 847

‘The Company has units at Bangalore, Hyderabad and Chennai registered as Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday under Section 10AA of
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company also has STPI units at Bangalore and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier entitled to a tax holiday under
Section 10B and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets (net):
Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

Excess of depreciation as per 213 215

books over depreciation allowed

under Income Tax Act, 1961

Provision for doubt{ul debis 31 10

Provision for  compensated 100 84

absence

Provision for volume discount 29 34

Others 29 17

Total deferred tax assets 402 360

\30
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.4.4

3.4.5

Long-term loans and advances

Particulars

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1

As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
(Unsecured considered good)
Capital advances 136 127
Security deposits* S12 426
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 10 04
value to be received®
Total 758 617
#Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 853 848
provision for taxes
MAT credit entitlement 160 165
Other non-current assets 26 33
Total 1,039 1,046
Current investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 4,760 3,628
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of - )
investments
Term deposits 400 400
Total 5,160 4,027
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 4,760 3,628
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 4912 3,710
Aggregate amount of uaquoted investisents 400 400
. Com
Sk
29
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share dafa, unless otherwise stated)

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 Mayrch 31,2013
ICIC1 Prudential Mutual Fund 366 409
1DFC Mutual Fund 365 228
UT1 Mutoal Fund 193 248
HSBC Mutual Fund 80 70
Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund 449 310
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 419 248
Birla Sun Life Mutual fund 440 37
Reliance Mutual Fund 367 349
Tata Mutual Fund 306 152
DWS Mutual Fund 156 198
SBI Mutual Fund 3is 358
HDFC Mutual Fund - 513 440
Axis Mutual Fund 103 5]
Principal Mutual Fund - 30
Kotak Mutual Fund 54 51
JP Morgan Mutuai Fund 203 -
Sundaram Mutual Fund 106 50
Pinebridge Mutua} Fund 30 30
L & T Mutual Fund 142 -
IDBI Mutual Fund 153 35
Total - 4,760 3,628
Details of investments in term deposit are as given below: '
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
HD¥FC Limited 400 400
Total 400 400

i
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Mindiree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes 4o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mareh 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per shave data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.2

Trade receivables

Particuars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
(Unsecured)
Debts overdue for a period exceeding six months
- considered good 95 175
- considered doubtful 131 36
Other debts
- considered good 5,909 4,333
- considered doubtful 5 10
Less: Provision for doubtful debis (136) (46)
Total ' 6,004 4,508
Cash and bank balances
Particulars As atl As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Balances with banks in current and deposit 1,171 1,235
accounts™ *
Cash on hand - -
Other bank balances** 4 3
Total 1,178 1,238

~The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

* Balances with banks include the following:

Particulars _ As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Batance with banks held as margin money
towards guarantees 1 1
**QOther bank balances represent batances in respect of unpaid dividends and are considered
restricted in nature.,
4 o
1
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Mindtree Limited

Significan( accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.54 Short-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As al

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 627 440
value to be received*

l.ess: Provision for doubtful advances (15 (10)
Tota) 612 430
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.

3.5.5 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
Mavrch 31,2014 March 31,2013
Unbilled revenue ‘ 1,014 637
Other current asseis* 712 643
Total 1,726 1,280

*Inciudes derivative asset of Rs 93 (As at March 31, 2013: Rs 18]).

3.6 Other income

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Interest income 66 64
Dividend income 150 128
Net gain on sale of investments 130 133
Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 118 -
Other non-operating income 30 25
Total 494 350

32
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.7 Expenses

Employce benefits expense For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Salaries and wages 16,189 13,029
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 1,404 1,107
Expense on employee stock based compensation 79 2
Stafl welfare expenses 148 136
Total 17,820 14,274
Finance costs For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Interest expense 4 10
Total 4 10
Other expenses For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Travel expenses 1,466 935
Sub-contractor charges 1,406 861
Computer consumables 325 256
Legal and professional charges 383 249
Power and fuel 255 206
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 537 412
Repairs to buildings 42 S5
Repairs to machinery 28 20
Insurance 39 20
Rates and taxes 74 72
Exchange loss, net - 340
Other expenses 1,838 1,398
Total 6,390 4,824
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended Maych 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.8 Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at March 31, 2014 is Rs 854 (March 31, 2013 Rs 470).

b) As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign cutrency exposure that is not
hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is Rs 5,683 (March 31, 2013:
Rs 4,018).

¢} The Company has received an income tax assessment for the financial year 2008-09
wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on account of cerfain
disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A significant portion
of this amount arises from ihe manner of adjustment of brought forward losses in
arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of portion of profit
earned outside India from the STP and SEZ units,

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenabie and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income tax
(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, there will not be
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which arc not favourable, the
Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (1TAT").

d) The Company has received inconte tax assesssnents for financial years 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Limited (MTPL)
with demands amounting to Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain disallowances/
adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand received.
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the depariment.

e) The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft Limited for the
financial years 2001-02, 200203, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 91, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs 119, Rs 214 and
Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen

“mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order. The Company
has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its fegal counsel/ advisors fo
prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Company has filed
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeats) and ITAT. The Qamﬁaﬂzf D
has deposited Rs 15 with the department against these demands. The dcpmﬂﬂn has” \ N
adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 363 against these demands f <
\

BARGALORE
S60 071
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, ¢xcept share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated)

3.9

g}

The Company reccived a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
{Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The lncome tax
department appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlier year passed an order sctting aside both the orders of (he Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals} as well as the Assessing Officer and remanded the matter back
1o the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appeal with the
Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT. The Hon’ble High
Cowrt of Karnalaka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of iTAT and
upheld the order passed by the ITAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment

The Company has appealed against the demands received for financial years 2002-03,
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based on favourable
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 and an evaluation of
the facts and circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders in
the financial stalements.

The Company received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindiree Wireless Private limited from the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (*ACIT") with a demand amounting 10 Rs 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustinent has been made to the financial statements. The Company
has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed an appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33. The Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the department against this demand.

The Company has received a draft assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Conwmnissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting to Rs 60 due to
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and transfer pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made 10 the financial statements. The Company will file an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) once the final order is received.

Quantitative details

The Company is engaged in software development services. Such services are not
capabie of being expressed in any generic unit and hence, it is not possible 1o give the
guantitative details required under paragraphs 5(viii)(c) of general instructions for
preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per revised Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956.




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes 1o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3,10  Vatue of imports on CIF basis

Particalars For the year ended March 31,

2014 2033
Capital goods 292 238
Others - 4
Total 292 242

3.1  Expenditure in forcign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Branch office expenses 11,203 7,821
Travel expenses 251 134
Professional charges 28 21
Others 288 97
Total 1L,770 8,073

3.12  Earnings in foreign currency

Particulars . For the year ended March 31,

2034 2013

Income from software development 29,484 22,598

Other income 5 17

Total 29,489 22,615
-
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in miBlions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.13  During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company has remitted in foreign currency
dividend of Rs 21 (year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 8 million)

For the yvear ended March 31, 2014

Ycear to
which it Number of Number of Amoun{
Dividend relates shares held __ sharcholders remitted
Second interim dividend 2012-13 1,125,384 78 4.5
Finat dividend 2012-13 1,124,402 79 5.6
First interim dividend 2013-14 1,098,098 50 sS4
Second interim dividend 2013-14 1,121,908 5t 5.6
For the year ended March 31, 2013
Year to
which it Number of Number of Amount
Dividend relates shares held  shareholders remitted
Final dividend 2011-12 1,743,465 46 3
First interim dividend 2012-13 1,693,943 45 5

37
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Mindtree Limited

Significant sccounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, excepi share and per share data, unfess atherwise stated)

3.14  Segmental reporling

Effective April 1, 2013, the Company has restructured ifs organisational and management
structure and its internal financial reporting structure 1o be better alipned to market needs.
Pursuant to such re-organization, the Company has identified Manufacluring, BFSI,
Hitech, Travel and Transport and Others as its reportable business segments.
Accordingly, as required by the accounting standards, comparatives have been restated
and presented in line with the current segments.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on items that are
individually identifiable 1o that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specificaily allocable to individual
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating 1o such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unaliocable and directly
charged against total income.

The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures
refating 1o 1otal assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not possible.

Business segments

Statement of profit and loss For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Segment revenue
Manufacturing 6,528 4,498
B¥FSI 6,986 5,293
Hitech 8,464 7.210
Travel & Transportation _ 6,077 4,691
Others 2,261 1,926
Total 30,316 23,618
Segment operating income
Manufacturing 1,594 875
BFS} 450 642
Hitech 1,811 1,543
Travel & Transportation 1,363 1,103
Others 888 697
Total 6,106 4,860
Unallocable expenses (809) (964)
Profit for the year before interest, other 5,297 3,896
income and tax
Inietest expense @) (10)
Other income 494 350
Net profit before taxes 5,787 4,236
Income taxes (1,275) (847)

Net profit after taxes

H

4,512 3,389
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and naotes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise sfated)

3.15

Geographical segments

Revenues For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
America 17,558 13,411
Europe 8,540 6,944
India 1,449 1,462
Rest of World 2,769 1,801
Total 30,316 23,618

Related party transactions

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Mindtree Software
{Shanghai) Co., Lid
(*“MSSCL"), Republic of
China

Subsidiary

Janaagraha Centre for
Citizenship & Democracy

Entity with common key management person

Amalgamated Bean Coffee
Frading Company Limited
(‘ABCTCL?)

Tangtin Developments
Limited (“TDL")

These entitics are part of Coffee Day Group which
through various entities and its pronoters holds 19.84 %
equity stake in Mindiree, and the group has a nominee on
the Mindtree Board.
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Mind{rce Limited

Significant accounting policies and uotes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,201

4

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

Name of related Nature of For the year ended March 31,
party {ransaction 2014 2013
Amalgamated Bean  Procurement of 17 i3
Coffee Trading supplies
Company Limited
Janaagraha Centre  Donation paid 3 -
for Citizenship &
Democracy
Tangtin Leasing office buildings and 399 310
Developments tand
Limited
Advances/ deposits paid
- towards clectricity deposit/
charges 3 220
- towards lease rentals 486 259
Advances/ deposits received back:
- towards electricity deposiv/
charges 48 108
- lowards lease rentals 327 147
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit 22 3
Balances payable to related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Tanglin Developments Limited - 9

-

FARG MR

550 0N
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Mind{ree Limitled

Significant accounting policies and notes (0 the accounts (continned)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Balances receivable from related parties are as follows:

party {ransactions March 31,2014  March 31, 2013
Tanglin Rental Advance
Developments - Current 126 12
Limited
- Non-currem 94 -
Advance towards
clectricity charges
- Current 48 48
- Non-current 16 L
Security deposit 399 345
(including
clectricity deposit)
returnable on
termination of lease
Interest accrued on 3 3

advance fowards
electricity charges

Key Managerial Personnel:

Subroto Bagchi

Executive Chairman

Krishnakumar Natarajan CEO & Managing Director

S. Janakiraman
N.S. Parthasarathy
Dr. Albert Hieronimus

V.G.Siddhartha
Prof. David B. Yoffie
Prof. Pankaj Chandra
Ramesh Ramanathan
Apurva Purchit

Rostow Ravanan

Anjan Lahiri**

R. Srinivasan*

Executive Director, President and Chief Technology

Officer

Executive Director, President and Chief Operating

Officer

Independent Director and Non-Executive Vice

Chairman
Non-Execulive Director

Independemt Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer and Alternate Director to Mr,

N.S.Parthasarathy

*R Srinivasan retired with effect from July 19, 2013
** Anjan Lahiri resigned with effect from May 6, 2013,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in miblions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The Board of Directors appointed Apurva Purohit as an Independent Director and N S
Parthasarathy as an Executive Director, effective January 1, 2014. Further, the Board of
Directors appointed Rostow Ravanan as an Aliernate Director to N S Parthasarathy,
effective January 17, 2014,

Remuneration paid 1o key managerial personnel during the year ended March 31, 2014
amounts o Rs 151 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 96). Dividends paid to
directors during the year ended March 31, 2014 amounts 1o Rs 134 (year ended March 31,
2313 amounts 1o Rs 30).

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensaied absences which cannot be
separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

3.16  Lease transactions
Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March

31, 2014 amounted to Rs 266 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 161). Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Payable -- Not later than one ycar 267 203
Payable -~ Later than one year and not later 473 521

than five vears

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expensc under cancelable operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2014 was Rs 271 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 251).

3.17  Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share is set out befow: '

Particulars For the ycar ended For the year ended
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

Basic EPS  Diluted EPS  Basic EPS  Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of 41,588,758 41,588,758 40,974,712 40,974,712
equity shares outstanding
during the year
Weighted average number of - 307,651 - 521,584
cquity shaves resulting from
assumed exercise of
employee stock options
Weighted average number of 41,588,758 41,896,400 40,974,712 41,496,296
cequity shares for calculation
of earnings per share

PaNGA CRE
anG o7 ]

£
2 &
. Ny

,) 1 et
DY 42




Mindtiree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share dita, unless olherwise stated)

3.18  Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Statutory audit 15 14
Certification 2 2
Total 17 - 16

3.19  The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The state of Florida
has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development center. The nature
and the extent of the government grant is given below:

Nature of expenses For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Reimbursement of rent 3 2
Grant towards workforcee training 28 4
Total 31 6

The Company has availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 for renovation of
project facility in the previous year. This grant is subject to fuifillment of certain
conditions such as creation of minimum employment with specified average salary and
capital investiment at the development center ai Gainesvitle, Fiorida, US,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and noles to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per shave dala, unless otherwise stated)

3.20

Dues (o micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memarandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006° (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2014 has
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance
sheet date.

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
The principal amount and the interest
due thereon (1o be shown separatety)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year; Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the
buyer under the Act along with the
amounts of the payment made ta the
supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year; Nil Nii

The amount of interest due and
payable for the year {where the
principal has been paid bul interest
under the Act not paid); Ni} Nil

The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest due
and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section
23. Nii Nil

LN
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mavch 31, 2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated)

3.21  The financial statements are presented in Rs in mitlion. Those items which are required to
be disclosed and which were not presented in the financial stalement due to rounding off
10 the nearest Rs in million are given as follows:

Balance Sheet items Amount inn Rs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Share application money pending 27,235 -
atfotment

Cash on hand 25,277 12,328

3.2 Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where
necessary, to conform to the current year's classification,

As per our report attached For Mindtree Limited
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagchi N Krishnakumar
Partner Chaipggn CEO & Managing Director

Membership No, : 205385
4 b
JDL’"J«, 1?&\“5\ S

ostow Ravanan Rajesh Srichand Narang
== Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: Aprit 16,2014 Date: April 16, 2014
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BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Maruthi Info-Tech Centre
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Telephone: 4
Fax: 4

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Mindtree Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mindtree Lim

91 80 3980 6000
91 80 3980 6999

ited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the

Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, the statement of profit and loss and the
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial std
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the (
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting St
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the pro

B4(5) of the Companies
tements that give a true
Company in accordance
andards specified under
This responsibility also
visions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate int

and estimates that are
ernal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fai
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

view and are free from

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing stand

based on our audit. We
rds and matters which

are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the C

pmpany has in place an

adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such

controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting

policies used and the

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to [provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Registered Office:
1st Floor, Lodha Excelus
Apotlo Mills Compgund

N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with
Registration No. BA61223) converted into

B S R & Co. LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership
with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181}

with effect from October 14, 2013
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manne;
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted i
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the y

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), is

Lso required and give a

India, of the state of

ear ended on that date.

sued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we gjive in the Annexure a

statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent app

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the|
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

as it appears from our examination of those books;

icable.

best of our knowledge

so far

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31

March 2015 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2015 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

"




BSR & Co. LLP

. . . . . . B
® with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the pest of our information
and according to the explanations given to us: 1

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 1ts
financial statements — Refer Note 3.8 to the financial statements;
|
|
b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts — Refer Note 3.3.2 to the financial statements;

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership number: 205385

d(“““%/ ,rg\(é

Bangalore
16 April 2015
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BSR & Co. LLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other L
Requirements of the Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Compan
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin

(iii)

(iv)

™)
(vi)

(viiXa) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ¢

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed ass

and situation of fixed assets.

egal and Regulatory
1y on the standalone

g quantitative details

ets by which its fixed

assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity

of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Compan;
fixed assets. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were ve
and no material discrepancies were observed on such verification.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software de
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(i
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the
with regard to purchase of fixed assets and with regard to the sale of services
not have any purchase of inventories or sale of goods since it is a service Caq
observed any major weakness in the internal control system during the coursg

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of ¢

y and the nature of its
rified during the year

velopment services.
) of the Order is not

firms or other parties

| there is an adequate
nature of its business
. The Company does
mpany. We have not
> of the audit.

under section 148(1)

f our examination of
account in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Income tax, Wealth tax, $ales-tax, Service tax,
Value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited

during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explaine

d to us, the Company

did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance, Custom Duty and Excise duty.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Income tax, Wealth tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Value added tax, cess

and other material statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 March 2015, for a period of more than

six months from the date they became payable.
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B SR & Co. LLP

¢

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

dues of Wealth tax,

Customs duty and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate guthorities on account

of any dispute. The Company, however, disputes the following Income tax,

Service tax and Sales

tax dues:
Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 197.74* Assessment year | Assessing Officer,
1961 interest 2002-03 Bangalore**
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 46.70* Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2003-04 ncome Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 60.84 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2004-05 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 8.45* Assessment year | Income Tax
1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 11.16 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2007-08 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 10.10 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2008-09 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 27.91* Assessment year | Income Tax
1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 23.56 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2009-10 Income Taxes
| (Appeals),
Bangalore®®
T ;) N
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B SR & Co. LLP

Name of the

Nature of the

Amount

Period to which

Forum where

1994

and penalty

February 2008

statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 122.95* Assessment year | Income Tax

1961 interest 2008-09 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 62.90 Assessment year | Income Tax

1961 interest 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 61.46 Assessment year | Commissioner  of

1961 interest 2010-11 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore

The Finance Act, | Service tax | 11.29 June 2005 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and interest March 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore***

The Finance Act, | Service tax | 24.27 July 2003 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and interest March 2006 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore***

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 64.47 July 2004 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and penalty November 2005 | and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore****

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 3.11* April 2007 to | Customs,  Excise

1994 and penalty March 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore ****

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 22.68 September 2004 | Customs,  Excise

1994 and penalty to March 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore****

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 4.68 April 2007 to | Customs, Excise

and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore

9%
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Tax Act, 1957

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 4.80 April 2008 to | Assistant

1994 and penalty March 2009 Commissioner  of
Commercial taxes
Recovery),
Bangalore

Karnataka  Sales | Tax and | 0.28* Upto July 2004 Assistant

penalty

Commissioner  of
Commercial taxes
{Recovery),
Bangalore

(c)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

* The above amounts are net of amount paid under protest.

$$ The Company is awaiting the order giving effect order from the Assessing
date of this report

Officer as at the

** The Company has not obtained the final assessment order as at the date ofithis report.

*** Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide original

order dated 6 January 2012 and further order received dated 21 February 2013.

#*x* Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide order

dated 27 September 2012.

Note: The Income-Tax authorities have adjusted refund amounting to Rs.162|million in respect of

the aforementioned demands without earmarking amounts to the Assessment
been reflected in the above disclosure.

According to the information and explanations given to us the amounts which

Year which has not

were required to be

transferred to the investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under has been transferred to such fund

within time.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the finang

ial year and has not

incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

The Company did not have any outstanding dues to financial institutions,
holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
loans during the year.

1S4

banks or debenture
has not given any

not taken any term
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(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company

has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101248W / W-100022

Supreet Sachdev '
Partner

Membership No. 205385
Bangalore

16 April 2015




Mindtree Limited
Balance sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Share application money pending allotment

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions

Current liabilities
Trade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets

[ntangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Non-current investments
Deferred tax assets (net)
Long-term loans and advances
Other non-cusrent assets

Current assets

Current investments

Trade receivables

Cash and bank batances
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

Rs in million

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Fi egistration Number: 101248W/W-100022

i dp

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership Number: 205385

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16,2015

Note As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
LN 837 417
312 19,271 15,992
20,108 16,409
ERBET)] 4 -
321 23 27
322 334 129
323 - 39
357 195
503 82
331 3,443 2,737
332 2,046 1,574
5,992 4,393
26,461 20,997
34.1 4,507 3,266
341 19 170
354 496
342 1,113 189
343 449 402
344 653 758
345 1.003 1,039
8,198 6,320
351 5,343 5,160
352 6,798 6,004
353 3,669 1,175
354 836 612
355 1,617 1,726
18,263 14,677
26,461 20,997

2&3
For Mindtree Limited -

n, [y
/ N M-—e‘-’

Subroto Bagchi { ) N. Krishnakumar
*Chairman CEO & Managing Director

C

agannathan Chakravarthi

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16, 2015
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Mindtree Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Rs in million, except share and per share data

Particulars Note For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Revenue from operations 35,474 30,316
Other income 3.6 831 494
Total revenues 36,305 30,810
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 37 20,646 17,820
Finance costs 37 1 4
Depreciation and amortisation expense 341 1,017 809
Other expenses 37 7,764 6,390
Total expenses 29,428 25,023
Profit before tax 6,877 5,787
Tax expense: 343
Current tax 1,581 1,317
Deferred tax 47) (42)
Profit for the year 5,343 4,512
Earniungs per equity share 317
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/- each
Basic 63.90 54.25
Diluted ) 63.62 5390
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing carnings per share
Basic 83,619.436 83,177,516
Diluted 83,998,716 83,716,693
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of cven date attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP For Mindtree Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

a«

——— — N Bedteb
Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagchi N. Krishnakumar
Parmer Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership Number: 205385

[ —

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16, 2015

-

Jagannathan Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalorc
Date : April 16, 2015
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Mindtree Limited
Cash Row statement

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit betore tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortization of stock compensation cost
Interest expense
Interest/ dividend income
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit on sale of investments
Exchange difference on denivatives
Effect of exchange diffe on 1

currency borrowings

of fareign

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in trade receivables
Changes in loans and advances and other assets
Changes i liabilities and provisions

Net cash provided by gperating activities before taxes
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Investment in Subsidiary

Interest/ dividend recetved from invesiments

Purchase of mvestments

Sale/ maturities of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Issue of share capital (net of issue expenses paid)
Interest paid on loans

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from loans

Dividends paid (including distribution 1ax)

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 3.5.3)

The notes refesred to above forn an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP

Chartered Accoumanis

FirmRegistration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership Number- 205385

Place Bangalore
Date - Apnl 16, 205

15%

Rs in million

For the year enfled March 31,

2018 2014
6,877 5,787
1,017 809

168 79

1 4
(294) (215)
® 6}
(286) (130)

(v2)] -

- s
9 (69)

7,465 6,287
(794) (1.496)
(33) (837)

879 568

7,517 4,522
(1.540) (1.297)
5,977 3,228
(1,995) (1,520)
8 3
(600) -
219 222
(9.982) (11.444)
10,252 10495
(2,098) (2,244)
67 63
U] S
“4) @ty
- 564
(1,438) (924)
(1,376) (1.113)
(£ 9
2,494 (63)
1,175 1.238
3,669 1,178

Subrote Bagchi
Chairman

-

Jagannathan Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

Place’ Bangalore
Date - April 10, 2015

ndtree Limited

1) A

.| Krishnakumar
CEO & My

naging Director
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

2.1

2.2

Background

Mindtree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information

Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers bus
through global software development. The Company is structured into
Retail, CPG and Manufacturing (RCM), Banking, Financial Services
(BFSI), Hitech and Media Services (HTMS), Travel and Hospitality (T]
The Company offers services in the areas of agile, analytics and informatio
application development and maintenance, business process manage
technology consulting, cloud, digital business’s, independent testing
management services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services.

iness solutions
five verticals —
and Insurance
H) and Others.
n management,
ment, business
infrastructure

The Company is head quartered in Bangalore and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,

Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium, France, Ireland and Republ

ic of China.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified and applicable) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the gene¢rally accepted
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets and
liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting

estimates is recognised prospectively in future periods. %/
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

23 Fixed assets and depreciation

2.3.1

such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or constructio
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
intended use, are capitalised.
2.3.2  Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition p
generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be ma

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly a%:ributable costs

of those fixed
ready for their

rice. Internally
asured reliably

during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic

benefits that are attributable (o the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the ris
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are ca

ks and rewards
italised at fair

value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. |
2.3.4 Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstlnding at each
balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under gapital work-in-
progress.
2.3.5 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of assets estimated by the Company. Deprcci;‘ion for assets
purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives op a straight-line
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use.
The Company estimates the useful lives for fixed assets as follows

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 5-30 years
Computer systems 2-3 years
Computer software 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Electrical installations 3 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Intellectual property 5 years

The Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported by
technical advice where necessary which is different from the juseful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013,
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.3.6 The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the |

case. Leasehold

improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease

term or useful life, whichever is lower.

24 Investments E
S

2.4.1 Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other{than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis.

242 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in pespect of each
investment.

2.4.3 Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the
sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

25 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts.

2.6 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defetrals or accruals

of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
2.7 Employee benefits

2.7.1  Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on acty

at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary
has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICI Prudential
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corp

Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the statement of profit ag

272 Compensated absences ate a long-term employee benefit and is a

jarial valuations
. The Company
Life Insurance
pration of India.
d loss.

ccrued based on

actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by J:: independent

actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-te
absences in the period in which the employee renders services.

2.7.3 Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, whig
contribution scheme, are charged to the statement of profit and los

e

§
f # { hANGALORE

1 .
{21 se007
)
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Revenue recognition

2.8.1 The Company derives its revenues primarily from software senvices. Revenue
from software development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the

related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contrac

s is recognised

using the proportionate completion method, which is determined| by relating the
actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated total project cost

for each contract. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnin

gs in excess of

billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in exclss of cost and

eammings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomple
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable base
contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of t
contract.

contracts are
d on the current

he maintenance

2.8.2 Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with

contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues ar|
discount.

2.8.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment

e stated net of

is established.

2.84 Interest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the

transactional interest rates.
2.9 Foreign exchange transactions

29.1 The Company is exposed to foreign currency transactions in
currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view {

cluding foreign
0 minimize the

volatility arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into

foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instrumer

ts.

2.9.2 Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchangei‘rates prevailing

on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differe
foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are re
statement of profit and loss for the period.

2.93 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curre
balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates g
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of]
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost

ces arising on
cognised in the

ncies as at the
n that date; the
profit and loss.
denominated in

a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

&

|

J6e2




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 201§

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

294 In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-monetary items
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of|profit and loss
are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respectiye transactions.
The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

29.5 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance|in Accounting
Standard (‘AS’) 11, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS 11,
based on the nature and purpose of the contract, either the contracts are recorded
based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as income or expense
over the life of the contract.

296 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are pot covered by
AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS|) 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve unti| the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.

2.10 Warranties

Warranty costs (i.c. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for e;timated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of revenue.

2.11  Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as 4 result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, ho provision or
disclosure is made. Q/‘
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(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.12

2.13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of

meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits|expected to be

received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligatign as a result of

an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.
&

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday perjod but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the period in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have bgen enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are regognised only to

the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in

ture; however,

when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation undef taxation laws,

deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of re
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and

lisation of such
written down or

written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws, wh
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income

ch gives rise to
tax liability, is

recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing eviidence that the
Company will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant assets can be

measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a
period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and ljabilities, where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assefs and liabilities
on a net basis.

Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number pf equity shares
outstanding during the period. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share comprises weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential ecﬂuity shares.

8ANGALORE
560 071

Gl

1%




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the ash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverabie
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is eflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to stock options, testricted shares
and phantom stock options using the intrinsic value method. The compgensation cost is
amortised over the vesting/ service petiod.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

() the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(i) the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematjc basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted n reporting the
related expense. Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value. g

BANGALORE
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.

3.1

3.1.1

Notes to the accounts

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital

a)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Authorised
800,000,000 (March 31, 2014: 79,620,000) equity 8,000 796
shares of Rs 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
83,732,372 (March 31, 2014: 41,689,731) equity 837 417
shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid
Total 837 417

b)

©)

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the begin
end of the reporting year is as given below:

aning and at the

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

No of shares Rs No of shares Rs

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,689,731 417 4],535,055 415

Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stack options and 276,980 2 154,676 2

restricted shares

Add: Bonus shares issued * 41,765,661 418 - -

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 83,732,372 837  4},689,731 417

*Refer note 3.1.1 (e).

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shates having a par

value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Cof
date of the sharcholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of
for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and foreig

mpany as of the
each share held

n currency. The

dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the §pproval of the

shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 15, 2014 dec
dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per equity share of par value Rs 10/~ each
ended September 30, 2014. At its meeting held on January 19, 2

ared an interim
for the quarter
015, the Board

declared a second interim dividend of 40% (Rs 4 per equity share of par value Rs 10/-

each) for the quarter ended December 31, 2014. Further, the Board o
meeting held on April 16, 2015 have recommended a final dividend
per equity share of par value Rs 10 each).

f Directors at its
bf 100% (Rs 10

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the amount of per share dividend recognized

as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs 25 per equity share.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
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(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity

shares will be

entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist

currently. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shargs held by the

shareholders.

d)

Equity shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares

along with the

number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given
below:

Sr. No. Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2015 As atMarch 31, 2014
Number of shares % Numberof shares %
1 Coffee Day Enterprises Limited 8,730.884 10.4% 4365442 10.5%
2 Nalanda India Fund Limited 7,898,178  9.4% 3,949,089 95%
3 Global Technology Ventures Limited 5,297,122 6.3% 2,648 561 6.4%

e) In the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2015:
a. The Company has allotted 41,765,661 fully paid up equity leares during the

quarter ended June 30, 2014 pursuant to 1:1 bonus share isspe approved by
sharcholders. Consequently, options/ units granted under the various

employee share based plans are adjusted for bonus share issue
. The Company has not bought back any class of equity shares.
c. The Company has allotted a total of 1,300,965 equity shares

as fully paid up

without payment being received in cash. These shares werg allotted to the

shareholders of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited pursuant to

the scheme of

amalgamation during the financial year ended March 31, 2010.
f) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Comipany currently
administers seven stock option programs, a restricted stock purchase plan and a phantom
stock option plan.

Program 1 [ESOP 1999]

Options under this program are exercisable at an exercise price of Rs 10| per option. All
stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%,/ 20%, 30% and
35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully
exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends
to employees who have joined on or before September 30, 2001 or have been issued
employment offer letters on or before August 7, 2001. This plan was terminated on
September 30, 2001. The contractual life of each option is 11 years after the date of grant.
There are no options outstanding as at the reporting date. g
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Program 2 [ESOP 2001]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercisg

price of Rs 50

per option (Rs 25 per option post bonus issue). All stock options have a four-year vesting

term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2

3 and 4 years

respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled

to | equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees who
or after October 1, 2001 or have been issued employment offer letters on

have joined on
or after August

8, 2001 or options granted to existing employees with grant date on or after October 1,
2001. This plan was terminated on April 30, 2006. The contractual life of each option is

11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 54,777* 47,918
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 29,401 12,868
Lapsed during the year 2,304 3,821
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 23,072 31,229
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 23,072 31,229

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)
Program 3 [ESOP 2006 (a)]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an e)jercise price of

Rs 250 per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting term and v
15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively fj
grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity

May 1, 2006. This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006. The contrac

st at the rate of
rom the date of
share of Rs 10

al life of each

each. This program extends to employees to whom the options are gra:{‘tjed on or after

option is S years after the date of grant. There are no options outsta
reporting dates.

\1
Y

ding as at the
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Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (b)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically

determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock
four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at

options have a
the end of 1, 2,

3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each
option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees to
whom the options are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The contractpal life of each

option is 5 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 213,750* 304,650
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 92,000 57,600
Lapsed during the year - 28,475
Forfeited during the year 47,750 71,325
Outstanding options, end of the year 74,000 147,250
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 74,000 89,175

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)

Program 5 [ESOP 2008A]

Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited as

per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each optio
1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

n is entitled to

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 168,295* 108,248
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 51,293 20,614
Lapsed during the year 33,926 2,610
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 83,076 85,024
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 83,076 85,024
*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e) %

162

14




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006’}

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors

at an exercise

price periodically determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock

options vest equally over three year vesting term at the end of I,
respectively from the date of the grant and become fully exercisable.
entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option

2 and 3 years
[Each option is
is 4 years after

the date of the grant.
Particulars Year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 75,000* 135,000
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 35,000 45,000
Lapsed during the year - 10,000
Forfeited during the year - 25,000
Outstanding options, end of the year 40,000 55,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 26,666 41,666

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢)
Program 7 [ESOP 2010A/

In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,
shares of Rs 10 each. No options have been granted under the
March 31, 2015.

Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to issue eq
nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program are granted to ¢
exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher pricg

i.e. ESOP 2010
135,000 equity
program as at

quity shares of
mployees at an
t as determined

by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Shares shall vest over such term as

determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee not exceg
from the date of the grant. All shares will have a minimum lock in per

from the date of allotment. g/
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(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding shares, beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 69,286 18,594
Exercised during the year 69,286 18,594
Lapsed during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - -

Outstanding shares, end of the year -
Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year -

During the year ended March 31, 2015, 69,286 equity shares were
Company under Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2

pranted by the
12)

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during the year was Rs 840 using the Black-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:

Weighted average grant date share price Rs 851
Weighted average exercise price Rs 10
Dividend yield % 031%
Expected life 1-2 years
Risk free interest rate 8.53%
Volatility 84.99%

The Company has also granted phantom stock options and letter of intent
under ERSP 2012 plan to certain employees which is subject to

conditions. Details of the grant/issue as at March 31, 2015 are given below:

to issue shares
certain vesting

Particulars Phantom stock ERSP 2012
options plan* plan*
Total no. of units/ shares 765,000 230,000
Vested units/ shares 100,980 28,248
Lapsed units/ shares 13,770 3,852
Forfeited units/ shares - 16,000
Cancelled units/ shares (Refer note below) 497,250 -
Outstanding units/ shares as at the end of the
year 153,000 181,900
Contractual life 2 years 5 years
Date of grant 18-Jul-13 18-Jul-13**
Price per share/ unit Grant price of Exercise price of
Rs 455 Rs [0**

* Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e).
**Based on Letter of Intent

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Phantom stock units which w

ere expected to

vest during the financial years 2015-16 and 2016-17 have been c?rcelled by the

Company. As a result of the cancellation of these units, the Company

as reversed the

stock based compensation recorded in earlier years of Rs 57 in the statement of profit and

loss for the year ended March 31, 2015. %/
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The following table summarizes information about the weighted average exercise price of

options/ shares exercised under various programs:

Amount in Rs

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015* 2014
Program 1 - -
Program 2 30.25 50.00
Program 3 - -
Program 4 344.77 507.14
Program $ 201.88 387.64
DSOP 2006 560.00 560.00
ERSP 2012 10.00 10.00

*Exercise price is adjusted post bonus issue.

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under

various programs as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 respectively:

Particulars As at March 31, 2015
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  ayerage exercise
shares* contractual life price*
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 1 - - -
Program 2 23,072 0.70 25.00 -
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 74,000 0.32 265.07
Program 5 83,076 232 215.18
DSOP 2006 40,000 1.10 278.00
ERSP 2012 - - -
*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e).
Particulars As at March 31, 2014
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program | - - -
Program 2 31,229 1.13 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Program 4 147,250 1.78 496.58
Program 5 85,024 228 393.90
DSOP 2006 55,000 1.24 558.55
ERSP 2012 - - -

The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

T
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Had stock based compensation been determined under the fair value approach described
in the Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by
[CAI, the Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have
reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated:

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Net profit as reported 5,343 4,512

Add: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (intrinsic value 168 79

method)

Less: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (fair value (173) 18

method)

Pro forma net profit 5,338 4,609

Basic earnings per share as reported 63.90 54.25

Pro forma basic earnings per share 63.85 55.42

Diluted eamings per share as reported 63.62 53.90

Pro forma diluted earnings per share 63.56 55.06

g) The Company has received Rs 4 towards allotment of 15,000 equity |shares and 276
equity shares at exercise prices of Rs 285 each and Rs 25 each respectively and is
shown under Share application money pending allotment. The Company expects to
make the allotment during the quarter ended June 30, 2015. The Company has
sufficient authorized share capital to cover the share capital amount pn allotment of

shares out of share application money. %
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2

Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Capital reserve
Opening balance & 87 87
87 87
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 2,208 2,125
Additions during the year on exercise of employee 108 83
stock options/ restricted shares
Less: Amount utilised for bonus shares (418) -
1,898 2,208
General reserve
Opening balance 1,542 1,091
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss - 451
1,542 1,542
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 68 48
Additions during the year 10 20
78 68
Hedge reserve
Opening balance 49 173
Movement during the year (49) (124)
.. - 49
Surplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)
Opening balance 12,038 9,198
Add: Amount transferred from statement of profit 5,343 4,512
and loss
Amount available for appropriations 17,381 13,710
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (586) (624)
Final dividend (838) (417)
Dividend distribution tax (291) (180)
Amount transferred to general reserve - 451)
15,666 12,038
Total 19,271 15,992

*
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

32 Non-current liabilities

3.2.1 Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

(Unsecured)

Other loans and advances 23 27

Total 23 27

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received from Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) to develop a project under “Development of Intelligent Video
Surveillance Server (IVSS) system”.

The loan is an unsecured loan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of loan is in 10 equal annual installments from June 2011.
Any delay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the
period of delay.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the principal loan and interest
amounts.

3.2.2 Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Other long-term liabilities 334 97
Employee related liabilitics - 32
Total 334 129

3.2.3 Long-term provisions

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for discount - 39
Total - 39

Refer note 3.3.2 for the disclosure of provisions movement as required under the
provisions of Accounting Standard — 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets’ (‘AS 29°). %/
5520
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1

332

Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
[nterest accrued but not due on borrowings 1 1
Uneamned income 225 100
Unpaid dividends 5 4
Creditors for capital geods 218 175
Advances from customers 27 103
Employee related liabilities 1,462 1,264
Book overdraft 155 85
Other liabilities** 1,345 1,000
Total 3,443 2,737

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed und
**Includes derivative liability of Rs 3 (As at March 31, 2014: Rs 44).

As at March 31, 2015, the Company has outstanding forward contract
USD 32 million (As at March 31, 2014: USD 47. 5 million), GBP 2.25
March 31, 2014: Nil) and Euro 4.5 million (As at March 31, 2014: Euro 5
derivative instruments have been entered to hedge highly probable forecas

er note 3.2.1.

5 amounting to
million (As at
million). These
ted sales.

nich qualify for

In accordance with the provisions of AS 30, those forward contracts wi

exchange gain/ (loss) has been credited/ (debited) to hedge reserve (Re

er Note 3.1.2).
te and resultant

cash flow hedge accounting have been fair valued at balance sheet date ]f‘d the resultant

Other derivative instruments have been fair valued at the balance sheet d

exchange gain of Rs 21 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (for the year ended March 31,

2014: Nil) has been recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 18 2
- Compensated absences 352 320
Provision for taxes, net of advance tax and tax 227 219
deducted at source
Provision for discount 367 231
Dividend payable 837 626
Dividend distribution tax payable 172 106
Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts - 3
Provision for post contract support services 5 4
Provision for disputed dues* 68 63
Total 2,046 1,574

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order re

ceived from the

tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been

provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29.
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Mindtree Limited ,

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-

Employee Benefits.
Particulars As at As at
% March 31,2015 March 31,2014
Change in projected benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 365 324
Service cost 81 74
Interest cost 29 26
Benefits settled ¢%5 (36)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss V)] (23)
Obligations at end of the year 413 365
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair
value 363 313
Expected return on plan assets 29 26
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 5 -
Contributions 53 60
Benefits settled (55 (36)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair.
value 395 363

Reconciliation of the present value of the obligation and the fair vajue of the plan

assets
Particulars As at March 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 395 363 B13 275 257
Present value of defined obligations at the end of
the year (413)  (365) (324) (276) (265)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance
sheet (18) (2 (ay 1) @&

% g
22
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Gratuity cost
Service cost 81 74
Interest cost 29 26
Expected return on plan assets (29) (26)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (12) (23)
Net gratuity cost 69 51
Actual return on plan assets 29 26
Assumptions
Interest rate 7.80% 8.80%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 8.00%
Salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 1423% 13.00%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into

account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such

demand factors in the employment market.

as supply and

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions|of AS 29 is as

follows:-

Provision for post contract support services

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 4 3
Provisions made during the year 2 !
Utilisations during the year i N
Released during the year M B
Provision at the end of the year > 4
JEL S
H *‘f/ﬁ,\Nc/\LoRE ™
560071 5
O
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Mindtree Limited .
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Provision for discount

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 270 145
Provisions made during the year 433 290
Utilisations during the year (328 (154)
Released during the year ® an
Provision at the end of the year 367 270
Current 367 231
Non-current - 39
Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 3 -
Provisions made during the year ) 3
Released during the year ® )
- 3

Provision at the end of the year

The current provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year and the non-
current provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of two to three years.

%

&
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

3.4.2 Non-current investments

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) - 168
Trade investments (unquoted)
- Investment in equity instruments 16 15
- Investment in preference shares 7 7
- Investment in Limited Liability Company 1,091 -
Less: Provision for diminution in value of
investments (1) (1)
Total 1,113 189
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - 168
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - 170
Aggregate amount of unquoted investmenis 1,14 22

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
No of units Amount No of units Amount

Tata Mutual Fund - - 4,000,000 40

Reliance Mutal Fund - - 2,850,000 28

UTI Mutual Fund - - 10,000,600 100

Total - N 168

Details of investment in equity instruments are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

2,400 (previous year: 2,400) equity shares in Career 1 i

Community.com Limited

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) cquity shares in - -

Worldcast Technologies Private Limited

950,000 (previous year: Nil) equity shares of 1 =

Re.1 each in NuvePro Technologies Private Limited

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - Mindtree 14 14

Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (‘"MSSCL’)

Total 16 15

Details of investment in preference shares are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Series A 7 7

Convertible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 cach

fully paid at premium of US $ 0.2557 each in 30

Second Software Inc

Total 7 7

132
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

343

Details of investment in Limited Liability Company is as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - 1,091 -

Discovertare Solutions L.L.C.

Total 1,091 -

The Company has acquired 100% equity interest in Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.

(Discoverture), a US based IT solution provider to the insurance

ndustry, for a

consideration of Rs 1,091. The consideration includes future payments which are based

on achievement of certain specific milestones which have currently beg
based on best estimate of the Company. The transfer of membership inter
of Discoverture is effective February 13, 2015 and consequently, D
become a 100% subsidiary of the Company effective that date.

n provided for

ests and control

scoverture has

Taxes

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Tax expense

Current tax : 1,581 1,317

Deferred tax “47) 42)

Total 1,534 1,275

The Company has units at Bangalore, Hyderabad, Chennai and Bhubaneshwar registered

as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday
10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

under Section

The Company also has STPI units at Bangalore and Pune which are registered as a 100

percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier entitled to a tax
Section 10B and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961. g

£ { BANGALORE
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets (net):

Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars As at A§ at
March 31,2015 March 3l,g 14
Excess of depreciation as per 205 213
books over depreciation allowed
under Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for doubtful debts 16 31
Provision for  compensated 117 100
absence
Provision for volume discount 39 29
Qthers 72 29
Total deferred tax assets 449 402
3.4.4 Long-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Unsecured considered good)
Capital advances 107 136
Security deposits* 546 512
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value - 110
to be received*
Total 653 758
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
3.4.5 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 834 853
provision for taxes
MAT credit entitlement 110 160
Other non-current assets 59 26
Total 1,003 1,039
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1 Current investments

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 4,643 4,760
Term deposits 700 400
Total 5,343 5,160
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 4,643 4,760
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 4,790 4912
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 700 400

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2015

As at March 31,2014

No of units Ameount No of uniits Amount
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 28,722,324 472 36,627,677 366
IDFC Mutual Fund 37,530,726 433 36,124,257 365
UTI Mutual Fund 13,456,138 158 27,011,640 193
HSBC Mutual Fund - - 79.974 80
Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund 11,695,643 290 26,910,401 449
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 14,790,537 351 41,938,435 419
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 20,007,295 454 44,008,990 440
Reliance Mutual Fund 23,725,772 428 34,640.032 367
Tata Mutual Fund 36,229,022 422 32.316.197 306
DWS Mutual Fund 4,483,697 45 15,626,078 156
SBI Mutual Fund 13,787,278 358 25,554,712 315
HDFC Mutual Fund 27,872,023 424 51.091.6/3 513
* Axis Mutual Fund 100,840 104 103 1)1 103
Bank of India AXA Mutual Fund 10,000,000 100 -i -
Kotak Mutual Fund 5,681,936 58 5.305.892 54
JP Morgan India Mutual Fund 16,989,901 189 20,253,910 203
Sundaram Mutual Fund - - 10,462,576 106
Prinebridge Mutual Fund - - 29,641 30
L & T Mutual Fund 98,576 100 140,743 142
[DBI Mutual Fund 254,281 257 152,373 153
Total 4,643 4,760
Details of investments in term deposit are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
HDFC Limited 700 400
Total 700 400

144
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.2 Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014

(Unsecured)
Debts overduc for a period exceeding six months

- considered good 62 95

- considered doubtful 72 131
QOther debts

- considered good 6,736 5,909

- considered doubtful 9 5
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (81 (136)
Total 6,798 6,004

3.5.3 Cash and bank balances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Balances with banks in current and deposit 3,664 1,171
accounts™ *
Cash on hand - -
* Other bank balances** 5 4
Total 3,669 L1758

AThe deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior rotice or penalty on the principah.

* Balances with banks include the following:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Balance with banks held as margin money towards
guarantees - !

**(ther bank balances represent balances in respect of unpaid dividends and are considered
restricted in nature.

186




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.4 Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31,2014

(Unsecured considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or # kind or for value 856 627
to be received*

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (20) (15)
Total ’ 836 612

*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances. This also includes amoun

s pertaining to

housing deposits, vehicles, medical emergencies and salary advances given to employees

to the extent of Rs 194 as at March 31, 2015.

3.5.5 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unbilled revenue 981 1.014
MAT credit entitlement 36 -
Other current assets* 600 712
Total 1,617 1,726
*Includes derivative asset of Rs 24 (As at March 31, 2014: Rs 93).
36 Other income
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Interest income 140 66
Dividend income 154 150
Net gain on sale of investments 286 130
Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 177 118
Other non-opetating income 74 30
Total 831 494

137
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.7 Expenses

Employee benefits expense For the year gnded March 31,
2015 2014
Salaries and wages 18,680 16,189
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,623 1,404 .
Expense on employee stock based 168 79
compensation*
Staff welfare expenses 175 148
Total 20,646 17,820
Finance costs For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Interest expense 1 4
Total 1 4
Other expenses For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Travel expenses 1,732 1,466
Communication expenses 436 370
Sub-contractor charges 2,107 1,406
Computer consumables 441 325
Legal and professional charges 406 383
Power and fuel 275 255
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 625 537
Repairs 10 buildings 51 42
Repairs to machinery 35 28
Insurance 49 39
Rates and taxes 93 74
Other expenses 1,514 1,465
Total 7,764 6,390

*Refer note 3.1.1 (f)

ANGALORE
560 071
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

38

Contingent liabilities and commitments

a)

b)

<)

d)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital dccount and nat
provided for as at March 31, 2015 is Rs 508 (March 31, 2014: Rs 854).

wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on acgount of certain
disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A significant portion
of this amount arises from the manner of adjustment of brought forward losses in
arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of portion of profit
earned outside India from the STP and SEZ units.

The Company has received an income tax assessment for the ﬁnancz year 2008-09

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissiom:i: of Income tax
(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, there will not be
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which are not |favourable, the
Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘ITAT’).

!

The Company has received income tax assessments for financial yedrs 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Limited (MTPL)
with demands amounting to Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain disallowances/
adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand received.
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the department.

The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft Limited for the
financial years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 198, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs 119, Rs 214 and
Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen
mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order} The Company
has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its legal counsel/ advisors to
prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Company has filed
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and ITAT. The Company
has deposited Rs 15 with the department against these demands. The|department has
adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 450 against these demands.

199
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

€)

The Company received a favourable order from the Commissioner pf Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income tax
department appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlier year passed an order setting aside both the orders of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) as well as the Assessing Officer and remanded the matter back
to the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appeal with the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT. The Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of ITAT and
upheld the order passed by the ITAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Assistant Commissioner of [ncome tax has
completed the reassessment & has issued a draft assessment order|with a revised
demand amounting to Rs 198 due to transfer pricing adjustments. Management
believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment
has been made to the financial statements. The Company will ﬁlejan appeal with
Dispute Resolution Panel. I

During the year, the Company has received the order from the Commissioner of

Income Tax (Appeals) for the year 2004-05 and on the unfavorab
Company has a filed an appeal with ITAT, Bangalore.

The Company has appealed against the demands received for financial
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and an evaluation of

e grounds, the

years 2002-03,
on favourable
-02 from the
the facts and

circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders |in the financial
statements.

The Company received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Wireless Private Limited from | the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (‘ACIT) with a demand amounting to Rs 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements| The Company
has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed an appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by| the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33. The| Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the department against this demand.

The Company has received a final assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting fo Rs 61 due to
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and transfer pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). % S




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

Quantitative details

The Company is engaged in software development services. Such services are not capable
of being expressed in any generic unit and hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative
details required under paragraphs 5(viii)(c) of general instructions for prgparation of the

statement of profit and loss as per Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013.

Value of imports on CIF basis

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Capital goods 339 292
Total 339 292

Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Branch office expenses 15,822 11,203
Travel expenses 244 251
Professional charges 52 28
Others 363 288
Total 16,481 11,770

Earnings in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014

Income from software development 34,452 29,484

Other income 31 5

Total 34,483 29,489
o Coa
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.13  During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company has remitted in f$reign currency
dividend of Rs 29 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 21)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2015 March 31,2014

Number of shares held ‘
Final dividend 2012-13 - ; 1,124,402

Second interim dividend 2012-13 - \ 1,125,384
First interim dividend 2013-14 - 1 1,098,098
Second interim dividend 2013-14 - \ 1,121,908
Third interim dividend 2013-14 1,119,693 j -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 2,150,288 -
First interim dividend 2014-15 1,870,871 -
Second interim dividend 2014-15 1,878,172 : -
Number of shareholders }
Final dividend 2012-13 .- 79
Second interim dividend 2012-13 - 78
First interim dividend 2013-14 - | 50
Second interim dividend 2013-14 - : 51
Third interim dividend 2013-14 53 -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 51 -
First interim dividend 2014-15 52 -
Second interim dividend 2014-15 56 -
Amount Remitted (in Rs)
Final dividend 2012-13 - 5 million
Second interim dividend 2012-13 - f 5 million
First interim dividend 2013-14 - | 6 million
Second interim dividend 2013-14 - } 5 million
Third interim dividend 2013-14 6 million 1 -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 10 million \ -
First interim dividend 2014-15 6 million ‘ -
Second interim dividend 2014-15 7 million 1 -




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.14

Segmental reporting

The Company is structured into five verticals — RCM, BFSI, HTMS, TH and Others.
During the year, the Company has classified results of Media Services in HTMS. The
results were previously classified with TH segment. Accordingly, as fequired by the
accounting standards, comparatives have been restated and presented in line with the
current segments. The Company considers business segment as the primary segment and
geographical segment based on the location of customers as the secondary segment.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based dn items that are
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are|apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specifically allocablé to individual
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating ta such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocable and directly

charged against total income. %
e ’ awe ""..L."“z ' !
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures

relating to total asscts and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not possible.

Business segments

Statement of profit and loss

For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Segment revenue
RCM 7,720 6,528
BFSI 8,233 6,986
HTMS 11,641 9,806
TH 5,843 4,735
Others 2,037 2,261
Total 35,474 30,316
Segment operating income
RCM 1,503 1,594
BFSI 912 450
HTMS 2,738 2,477
TH 1,136 697
Others 793 8388
Total 7,082 6,106
Unallocable expenses (1,035) (809)
Profit for the year before interest, other 6,047 5,297
income and tax
Interest expense (1) “)
Other income 831 494
Net profit before taxes 6,877 5,787
Income taxes (1,534 (1,275)
Net profit after taxes 5,343 4,512

Geographical segments

Revenues For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014
America 21,921 17,558
Europe 8,964 8,540
India 1,350 1,449
Rest of World 3,239 2,769
Total 35,474 30,316

194
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.15 Related party transactions

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Mindtree Software
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
(‘MSSCL’), Republic of

Subsidiary

China

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 015.
gtic%venure Solutions Subsidiary with effect from February 13, R015.
Discoverture Solutions . .

Europe Limited Subsidiary with effect from February 13, R0O15.
Mindtree Foundation Entity with common key managerial person

Janaagraha Centre for
Citizenship & Democracy

Eatity with common key managerial pers¢n

Coffee Day Global Limited

Tanglin Developments
Limited (‘TDL’)

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which

through various entities and its promotel
equity stake in Mindtree, and the group h
the Mindtree Board.

rs holds 19.76%
as a nominee on

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

Name of related Nature of transaction For (he year ended
party March 31,
2015 2014

Mindtree Software Software services received 19 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Discoverture Software services rendered 22 -
Solutions L.L.C.
Mindtree Donation paid 13 -
Foundation
Janaagraha Centre Software services rendered 1 -
for Citizenship &
Democracy

Donation paid 4 3
Coffee Day Global ~ Procurement of supplies 17 17
Limited

——
/C\/& Co. {

& 0
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
Tanglin Leasing office buildings and land 321 399
Developments
Limited
Advances/ deposits paid
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 9 3
- towards lease rentals - 486
Advance/ deposits received back:
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 51 i 48
i
- towards lease rentals 156 i 327
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit
- amount recovered -
- amount accrued 22
Balances payable to related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
March 31, 2015 arch 31, 2014
Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 6 -
Balances receivable from related parties are as follows:
Name of related Nature of As at As at
party transactions March 31,2015 March 31, 2014
Discoverture Trade receivables 22 -
Solutions L.L.C.
Tanglin Rental Advance
Developments - Current 94 126
Limited
- Non-current - 94
Advance towards
electricity charges
- Current 16 48
- Non-current - 16
Security deposit 375 399
(including
electricity deposit)
returnable on %/
termination of lease
S Lol
L T
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Interest accrued on -
advance towards
electricity charges

Key Managerial Personnel: ﬁ

Subroto Bagchi Executive Chairman

Krishnakumar Natarajan CEO and Managing Director

S. Janakiraman® President, Chief Technology Officer and Executive
Director :

N.S. Parthasarathy President, Chief Operating Officer and Executive
Director

Rostow Ravanan'* Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

Dr. Albert Hieronimus Independent Director and Non-Executive Vice
Chairman

Apurva Purohit Independent Director

Prof. David B. Yoffie™ Independent Director

Manisha Girotra Independent Director

Prof. Pankaj Chandra Independent Director

Ramesh Ramanathan Independent Director

V.G Siddhartha Non-Executive Director

rErE

Rajesh Srichand Narang Vice President - Legal and Company Sect

etary

*S Janakiraman resigned with effect from October 20, 2014.

**Rostow Ravanan has been designated as Head — Europe and has also t
Key Accounts and Service Lines effective April 1, 2015 and Jagannath
has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, effective April 1, 2015.
***Prof. David B. Yoffie resigned with effect from March 30, 2015.

**** Rajesh Srichand Narang resigned with effect from February 13, 2015.

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Manisha Girotra as an Independe
Mr. Rostow Ravanan as an Executive Director, effective May 20, 2014.

Remuneration to key managerial personnel during the year ended M

ken over certain
n Chakravarthi

nt Director and

arch 31, 2015

amounts to Rs 224 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 151). Diyidends paid to

directors during the year ended March 31, 2015 amounts to Rs 173 (for
March 31, 2014 amounts to Rs 134).

the year ended

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be

separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

A
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.16 Lease transactions

Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March
31, 2015 amounted to Rs 361 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 266). Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as belgw:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 March 31, 2014

Payable -- Not later than one year 390 267

Payable -- Later than one year and not later 541 473

than five years

Payable -- later than five years 106 4

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expense under cancelable operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2015 was Rs 264 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 271).

3.17 Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of bLic and diluted

eamings per share is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014*

Basic EPS  Diluted EPS Basic ERS Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of 83,619,436 83,619,436 83,177,516 83,177.516

equity shares outstanding

during the year

Weighted average number of - 379,280

equity shares resulting from

assumed exercise of

employee stock options

Weighted average number of 83,619,436 83,998,716 83,1775
equity shares for calculation

of earnings per share

- 539,177

6 83,716,693

*In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on ‘Earnings Per Share’, basic and diluted

earnings per share is adjusted for 1:1 bonus issue for previous year present
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.18

3.19

3.20

Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Statutory audit 16 15
Certification 2 2
Total 18 17

The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The

state of Florida

has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development center. The nature

and the extent of the government grant is given below:

Nature of expenses For the year ¢énded March 31,

2015 2014
Reimbursement of rent - 3
Grant towards workforce training 24 28
Total 24 31

The Company had availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 fot

renovation of

project facility. This grant is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions such as creation
of minimum employment with specified average salary and capital inyestment at the

development center at Gainesville, Florida, US.

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the

disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at Mar

ch 31, 2015 has

been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with

the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest,

f any, that may

be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected|to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance

sheet date.
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.21

Particulars

For the year end

March 31, 2015

March 31,2014

The principal amount and the interest
due thereoif*{to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year;

The amount of interest paid by the
buyer under the Act along with the
amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;

the amount of interest due and payable
for the year (where the principal has
been paid but interest under the Act
not paid); _
The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and

The amount of further interest due and
payable even in the succeeding year,
until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a  deductible
expenditure under section 23.

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

|
|
|

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Total of expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activ

year ended March 31, 2015 is Rs 40.

200
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.22  The financial statements are presented in Rs in miflion. Those items which are required to
be disclosed and which are not presented in the financial statement due to rounding off to

the nearest Rs in million are given as follows:

Balance Sheet items Amount in Rs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Share application money pending - 27,235
allotment :

Cash on hand 21,148 25,277

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity 126,400 126,400

shares in Worldcast Technologies
Private Limited

3.23  As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not

hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is Rs 6,319 (March

31, 2014: Rs 5,683).

324 Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where

necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

LN

Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bigc{/’

Partner Chairman CEO & Ma

Membership No. : 205385

Jagannathan
Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: April 16, 2015 Date: April 16, 2015

0|

For Mindtree Limited

aging Director
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Apnexwe - EL §4_

Chartered Accountants
Deloitte Centre
Anchorage §i

10072 Richmond Road
Bengalury - 560 025
India

Tel: + 91 {80} 66276000
Fax: + 91 {B0) 66276013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MINDTREE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MINDTREE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2015, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the quarter ended June 30,
2015, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standard
(AS-25) on Interim Financial Reporting specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records; safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including-the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial

Q02




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with
the AS—25 and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at June 30, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the quarter ended on that
date.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

vk

V. Balaji

Partner

BENGALURU, July 16, 2015 (Membership No. 203685)
VB/UB/VMS/CV/2015
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Mindtree Limited
Balance sheet

Rs in million

Note As at As at
June 39, 2015 March 31, 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders' funds
Share capital 31 833 837
Reserves and surplus 312 20,362 19,271
21,200 20,108
Share application money pending allotment 3.1.1(g) - 4
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 321 18 23
Other long-term liabilities 322 240 334
258 357
Current liabilities
Trade payables 303 503
Other current liabilities 331 2,985 3,443
Short-term provisions 332 1,565 2,046
4,853 5,992
26,311 26,461
ASSETS :
Non-~current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 341 4,397 4,507
Intangible assets 34.1 107 119
Capital work-in-progress 5585 ’ 354
Non-current investments 342 1,163 1,113
Deferred tax assets (net) 343 430 449
Long-term loans and advances 344 1,621 1,639
Other non-current assets 345 17 17
8,340 8,198
Current assets
Current investments 351 4,017 5,343
Trade receivables 352 7,118 6,798
Cash and bank balances 353 4,105 3,669
Short-term loans and advances 354 1,337 1,448
Other current asscts 3.55 1,394 1,005
17,971 18,263
26,311 26,461 °
RTINS
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached .
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Mindtree Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0080728

V- e

V. Balaji Subroto Bagchi N. Krishnakumar
Partner Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership Number: 203685 .- g
N7
Jagannathan Chakravarthi Vedavalli Sridharan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengalur
Date : July 16, 2015 Date : July 16, 2015
1
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- Mindtree Limited -
Statement of profit and loss -

Rs in million, except share and per share data

Particulars Note For the quarter ended
Jurne 30,2015 June 30, 2014

Revenue from operations 9,623 8,435

Other income 36 370 210

Total revenues 9,993 8,645

Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 3.7 5,576 4,857

Finance costs 321 - »

Depreciation and amortisation cxpense 34.1 318 228

Other expenses 3.7 2,346 1,893

Total expenses 8,240 6,978

Profit before tax 1,753 1,667

Tax expense: 343

Current tax 414 390

Deferred tax . 31) (17)

Profit for the period - 1,370 1,294

Earnings per equity share 3.17

Equity shares of par value Rs 10/~ each

Basic 16.36 15.51

Diluted 16.30 1543

Weighted average numbcr of equity shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic 83,751,547 83,484,436
- _Diluted . 84,044,023 83,896,530

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Mindtree Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0080728

e N - Ao

V. Balaji Subroto Bapehi N. Krishnakumar
Partner Chairman CEO & Managing Director

Membership Number: 203685 . el i
Ved ' —=
Jagannathan Chakravarthi Vedavalli Sridharan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru iy 7._ - e
Date : July 16,2015 Date : July 16, 2015 . ?L
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Mindtree Limited
Cash flow statement

Rs in million
For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Cash flow from opersting activities
Profit before tax 1,753 1,667
Adjustments fos :
Depreciation and amortisati 318 228
Amortization of stock compensation cost 35 97
Interest/ dividend income (104) 44)
Profit on sale of fixed assets n -
Profit on sale of investments {65) 2n
Exchange difference on derivatives 8 (10)
Effect of exchange diffe on fation of foreign (35) N
cwrency cash and cash equivalents
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,509 1,504
Changes in trade receivables (320) (501)
Changes in loans and advances and other assets (256) 117
Changes in liabilities and provisions (710) {196}
Net cash provided by operating activities before taxes 623 924
Income taxes paid (291) (254)
Net cash provided by operating activities 332 670
Cash flow from investing activities -
Purchase of fixed assets (470) (441)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1 x
Purchase consideration {20) »
! / dividend received from i 51 33
Purchase of investments (3,486) (2477)
Sale/ maturities of investments 4,827 2453
Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing activities 903 (432)
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of share capital (net of issue expenses paid) 6 36
Interest paid on loans [¢)] (1)
Repayment of borrowings (4) o 4)
Dividends peid (including distribution tax) (835) (243)
Net cash used in financing activities (834) 212)
Effect of exchange diffc on tation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents 35 7
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 436 33
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,669 1,175
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 3.5.3) 4,108 1,208
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Mindtree Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0080728

V-

NN .

V. Balaji Subroto Bageht N. Krishnakumar
Pariner Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership Number: 203685 : S

| \/ 00 A

Jagarmathan Chakravarthi Vedavalli Sridharan
Chicf Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date : July 16, 2015 Date : July 16, 2015
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Mindtree Limited o

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

1.

2.1

2.2

Background

Mindtree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global software development. The Company is structured into five verticals —
Retail, CPG and Manufacturing (RCM), Banking, Financial Services and Insurance
{BFSI), Hitech and Media Services (HTMS), Travel and Hospitality (TH) and Others.
The Company offers services in the areas of agile, analytics and information management,
application development and maintenance, business process management, business
technology consulting, cloud, digital business’s, independent testing, infrastructure
management services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services.

The Company is head quartered in Bengaluru and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,
Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium, France, Ireland and Republic of China.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified and applicable) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets and
liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those g&ﬁgx@ﬁgﬁny revision to accounting
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

23

Fixed assets and depreciation

23.1

232

234

235

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally
generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be measured reliably
during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair
value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each
balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of assets estimated by the Company. Depreciation for assets
purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use.
The Company estimates the useful lives for fixed assets as follows:

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 5-30 years
Computer systems 2-3 years
Computer software 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Electrical installations 3 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Intellectual property 5 years

The Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
useful lives of these assets based on internal.assessment and supported by
technical advice where necessary which i mfi&m&gﬁom the useful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of tﬁe Cbm;aﬂ:é%ﬂ 2013,
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.3.6 The cost of leaschold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leasehold
improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease
term or useful life, whichever is lower.

Investments

2.4.1 Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis.

2.42 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in respect of each
investment.

2.4.3 Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the

sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Employee benefits

2.7.1

2.7.2

2.73

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations
at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The Company
has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICJ Prudential Life Insurance
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences are a long-term employee benefit and is accrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-term compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders services.

Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined
contrlbutlon scheme, are charged to ihe s\aﬁ:mtmf Q{ proi’t and loss in the period
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Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

29

Revenue recognition

2.8.1

2.8.2

283

284

The Company derives its revenues primarily from sofiware services. Revenue
from software development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the
related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised
using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the
actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated total project cost
for each contract. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and
earnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current
contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of the maintenance
contract.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues are stated net of
discount.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Foreign exchange transactions

291

292

293

The Company is exposed to foreign currency transactions including foreign
currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view to minimize the
volatility arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instruments.

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the
resultant exchange differences are ri’:c:egmsed in. ihe statement of profit and loss
Non-monetary items which are carried in %ﬂﬁf f wgnrtnai cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported usmg ﬂae exchaﬁgéi rate at the date of the
transaction. 15
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Mindtree Limited .

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupecs in millions, except sharc and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.10

2.11

2.9.4 In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-monetary items
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of profit and loss
are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

2.9.5 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting
Standard (‘AS’) 11, “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS 11,
based on the nature and purpose of the contract, either the contracts are recorded
based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as income or expense
over the life of the contract.

2.9.6 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are not covered by
AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS") 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement® to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve until the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.

Warranties
Warranty costs (i.e. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability

in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of revenue.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible h%ﬁ@)gor a present obligation in

@b;%«f@;{gnom, no provision or

respect of which the likelihood of outflow of;
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.12

2.13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the period in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at
each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax liability, is
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant assets can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a
period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
carnings per share comprises weighted average number of ¢quity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also welghted aversge m}lmba of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of ailBiimi’ve pufé{maf equity shares.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance shect date whether there is any indication that an
asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to stock options, restricted shares
and phantom stock options using the intrinsic value method. The compensation cost is
amortised over the vesting/ service period.

Government gran(s
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(ii)  the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. Where the Company receives ggmmmmlary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basns of its acqulsmon ;dg#t‘ j al, non»mouetary asset is given

213

10




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3. Notes to the accounts

31 Shareholders’ funds

3.1.1 Share capital

9

b)

c)

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31,2015

Authorised

800,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 800,000,000) equity 8,000 8,000

shares of Rs 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
83,771,202 (March 31, 2015: 83,732,372) equity 838 837
shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid

Total 838 837

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting period is as given below:

Particulars As at As at

June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Noof shares  Rs No of shares Rs

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 83,732,372 837 41,689,731 417

Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options and 38,830 ] 276,980 2

restricted shares

Add: Bonus shares issued * > > 41,765,661 418

Number of shares ¢ ding ai the end of the period 831,771,202 838 83732372 837

*Refer note 3.1.1 (e).

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par
value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the
date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held
for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and foreign currency. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 16, 2015 have recommended an
interim dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per equity share of par value Rs 10/~ each) for the
quarter ended June 30, 2015.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets ‘5)@1& ‘?m pay after distribution of all
preferential amounts. However, no such prgﬁ Snitial é);;munia exist currently. The
distribution will be in proportion to the mty shares held by the

 snurnber of el
shareholders. . } 2

ol v
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter endcd June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwisc stated)

d) Equity shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares along with the -

number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the period is as given

below:
Sr. No. Name of the sharcholder As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
- Number of shaves % Number of shares %o
1 Coffee Day Enterprises Limited 8,730,884 104% 8,730,884 104%
2 Nalanda India Fund Limited 7,898,178 94% 7,898,178 9.4%
3 Coffee Day Trading Limited ) 5,297,122 6.3% 5297122  63%

e) In the period of five years immediately preceding June 30, 2015:

a. The Company has allotted 41,765,661 fully paid up equity shares during the
quarter ended June 30, 2014 pursuant to 1:1 bonus share issue approved by
shareholders. Consequently, options/ units granted under the various
employee share based plans are adjusted for bonus share issue.

b. The Company has not bought back any equity shares.

¢. The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without
payment being received in cash.

f) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’} in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Company currently
administers seven stock option programs, a restricted stock purchase plan and a phantom
stock option plan.

Program 1 [ESOP 1999/

This plan was terminated on September 30, 2001and there are no options outstanding as
at the reporting date.

Program 2 [ESOP 2001}

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercise price of Rs 50
per option (Rs 25 per option post bonus issue). All stock options have a four-year vesting
term and vest and become fully exercisable at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the
end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant.  Each option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees who have joined on or
after October 1, 2001 or have been issued employment offer letters on or after August 8,
2001 or options granted to existing employees with grant date on or after October 1,
2001. This plan was terminated on April 30, 2006. The contractual life of each option is
11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the period 23,072 54,777*
Granted during the period - -
Exercised during the period ' 2,216 6,177
Lapsed during the period 904 1,504
Forfeited during the period - -
Qutstanding options, end of the period - . 19,952 47,096
Options vested and exercisable, end of the period 19,952 47,096

*Adjusted f@p@?@ﬁ”’iﬁsg& Refer note 3.1.1 (e)
A N 5 o
/ , gk -
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 3 [ESOP 20066 (a)]

This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006 and there are no options outstanding as at
the reporting dates.

Program 4 [ESOP 2606 (b)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee. All stock options have a
four-year vesting term and vest and become fully exercisable at the rate of 15%, 20%,
30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant. Each
option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees to
whom the options are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each
option is 5 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the period 74,000 213,750*
Granted during the period “ ~
Exercised during the period 35,650 33,000
Lapsed during the period “ -
Forfeited during the period - 47,750
Outstanding options, end of the period 38,350 133,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the period 38,350 112,350

Program 5 [ESOP 20084]

Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited as
per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the period 83,076 168,295*
Granted during the period “ -
Exercised during the period 964 1,753
Lapsed during the period , - *
Forfeited during the period - g

Outstanding options, end of the period
Options vested and exercisable, end of the period ™
~ *Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢} .-

82,112 166,542
82,112 166,542
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006’}

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors at an exercise
price periodically determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock
options vest and become fully exercisable equally over three year vesting term at the end
of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively from the date of the grant. Each option is entitled to 1
equity share of Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option is 4 years after the date of

the grant.
Particulars Quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the period 40,000 75,000*
Granted during the period - B
Exercised during the period - 35,000
Lapsed during the period - -
Forfeited during the period “ -
Outstanding options, end of the period 40,0600 40,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the period 40,000 26,667

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)
Program 7 [ESOP 2010A]

In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program i.e. ESOP 2010
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,135,000 equity
shares of Rs 10 each. No options have been granted under the program as at
June 30, 2015. .-

Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012’)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to issue equity shares of
nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program are granted to employees at an
exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher price as determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Shares shall vest over such term as
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. All shares will have a minimum lock in period of one year
from the date of allotment.

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Outstanding shares, beginning of the period ” -
Granted during the period - 33,830
Exercised during the period - 24,368
Lapsed during the period - -
Forfeited during the period - -
Outstanding shares, end of the period {,% : ‘i P - 9,462
Shares vested and exercisable, end of the perjed ™7, - 9,462

Lt
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, cxcept share and per sharc data, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has also granted phantom stock options and letter of intent to issue shares
under ERSP 2012 plan to certain employees which is subject to certain vesting
conditions. Details of the grant/issue as at June 30, 2015 are given below:

Particulars Phantom stock ERSP 2012
options plan* plan*
Total no. of units/ shares 765,000 230,000
Vested units/ shares 100,980 28,248
Lapsed units/ shares 31,332 8,306
Forfeited units/ shares “ 33,000
Cancelled units/ shares 497,250 -
Qutstanding units/ shares as at the end of the
period 135,438 160,446
Contractual life 2 years 4 years
Date of grant 18-Jul-13 18-Jul-13**
Price per share/ unit Grant price of Exercise price of
Rs 455 Rs 10**

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e).
**Based on Letter of Intent

The following table summarizes information about the weighted average exercise price of
options/ shares exercised under various programs:

Amount in Rs

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014*

Program 2 25.00 50:00
Program 4 270.52 481.64
Program 5 239.25 179.58
DSOP 2006 - 560.00
ERSP 2012 - 10.00

*The options were exercised before the issue of bonus shares and accordingly the exercise
price is not adjusted for bonus issue.

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under
various programs as at June 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015 respectively:

Particulars _ As at June 30,2015
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 2 19,952 0.97 25.00
Program 4 38,350 0.16 260.00
Program § 82,112 2.08 214.89
DSOP 2006 40000 o 0.85 278.00
i §§} ;- o
e 15
¢ =
—r
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

g

Particulars As at March 31,2015
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 2 23,072 0.70 25.00
Program 4 74,000 0.32 265.07
Program 5 83,076 2.32 215.18
DSOP 2006 40,000 1.10 278.00

The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

Had stock based compensation been determined under the fair value approach described
in the Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by
ICAI, the Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have
reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated:

Particulars Quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Net profit as reported 1,370 C 1,294
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
expense (intrinsic value method) 34 97
Less: Stock-based employee compensation (34) (84)
expense (fair value method)
Pro forma net profit 1,370 1,307
Basic earnings per share as reported 16.36 15.51
Pro forma basic earnings per share 16.36 15.66
Diluted earnings per share as reported 16.30 1543
~ Pro forma diluted earnings per share o 16.30 15.59

As at March 31, 2015, the Company had received Rs 4 towards allotment of 15,000
equity shares and 276 equity shares at exercise prices of Rs 285 each and Rs 25 each

respectively and it was shown under &harﬁ*a@p{jgi%;ag\ money pending allotment. The

Company made the allotment for the 15,3‘?@:’3@&@ §
30, 2015. fa

i reg during the quarter ended June
’k{g’f’?\ i
R

2%
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2 Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at As at
June 30,2015 March 31, 2015
Capital reserve
Opening balance 87 87
87 87
Securities premium reserve :
Opening balance 1,898 2,208
Additions during the period 10 108
Less: Amount utilised for bonus shares - (418)
1,908 1,898
General reserve
Opening balance 1,542 1,542
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss - -
1,542 1,542
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 78 68
Additions during the period 13 10
91 ' 78
Hedge reserve
Opening balance - 49
Movement during the period - (49)
Surplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)
Opening balance 15,666 12,038
Add: Amount transferred from statement of profit 1,370 5,343
and loss
Amount available for appropriations 17,036 17,381
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (586)
Final dividend (838)
Dividend distribution tax (291)
15,666
Total 19.271

17
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2

321

3.2.2

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015

(Unsecured)

Other loans and advances 18 23

Tofal ‘ 18 23

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received from Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) to develop a project under “Development of Intelligent Video
Surveillance Server (IVSS) system”.

The loan is an unsecured loan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of loan is in 10 equal annual installments from June 2011.

Any delay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the
period of delay.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the principal loan and interest
amounts.

Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31,2015

Other Imxg-(cxm liabilities 2&_{_’)_, 334 _

Total 2l L 334

al
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Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continucd)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1

332

Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings ~ 1
Unearned income 199 225
Unpaid dividends 8 5
Creditors for capital goods 96 218
Advances from customers 28 27
Dividend distribution tax payable 172 .
Employee related liabilities 862 1,462
Book averdraft 4 155
Other liabilities** . 1,611 1,345
Total 2,985 3,443

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.
**Includes derivative liability of Rs 3 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 3).

As at June 30, 2015, the Company has outstanding forward contracts amounting to USD
30.5 million (As at March 31, 2015: USD 32 million), GBP 2.5 million (As at March 31,
2015: GBP 2.25 million) and Euro 4 million (As at March 31, 2015: Euro 4.5 million).
These derivative instruments have been entered to hedge highly probable forecasted sales.

The above derivative instruments have been fair valued at the balance sheet date and
resultant exchange loss of Rs 8 for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 (for the quarter ended
June 30, 2014: exchange gain of Rs 10) has been recorded in the statement of profit and
loss.

Short-term provisions

The following table sets out the status of the grat‘ufi}yf, ] ;a

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Provision for employce benefits
- Gratuity - 18
- Compensated absences 386 352
Provision for taxes, net of advance tax and tax 368 227
deducted at source
Provision for discount 432 367
Dividend payable 251 837
Dividend distribution tax payable 51 172
Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts - -
Provision for post contract support services 6 5
Provision for disputed dues* 71 68
Total 1,565 2,046

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order received from the
tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been
provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29.

*%%g";quired under AS 15-

$e
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Benefits.

Particulars As at As at
June 30,2018  March 31, 2015

Change in prejecied benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the period 413 365
Service cost 24 81
Interest cost 8 29
Benefits settled (14) (55)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (40) D
Obligations at end of the period -39 413

Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the period, at fair

value 395 363
Expected return on plan assets 9 29
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 6 5
Contributions - 53
Benefits settled (14) (55)
Plan assets at the end of the period, at fair
_value 396 395
Reconciliation of the present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan
assets
“Particulars As at June 30, As at March 31,
2015 2015 2014 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets at the end of 396 395 363 313 275
the period
Present value of defined obligations at
the end of the period (391) (413) (365) (324) (276)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the .

balance sheet

9. @ an
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Gratuity cost
Service cost 20 21
Interest cost 7 7
Expected return on plan assets ©) )]
Actuarial (gain)/loss @n 29)
Net gratuity cost 23) 8)
Actual return on plan assets 15 13
Assumptions
Interest rate 8.10% 8.70%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 8.00%
Salary increase 5.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 14.23% 14.23%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand factors in the employment market.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of AS 29 is as
follows:-

Provision for post contract support services

Particulars For the quarter ended For the year ended
June 30, March 31,
‘ 2015 2014 2015
Balance at the beginning of the 5 4 4
period
Provisions made during the period ! 1 2
Utilisations during the period - » -
Released during the period SADER L3N )
Provision at the end of the period SN, 38 5

22y




Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the quarter ended June 30, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Provision for discount

Particulars For the quarter ended For the year ended
June 30, March 31,
2015 2014 2015
Balance at the beginning of the period 367 270 270
Provisions made during the period 106 101 433
Utilisations during the period (39) ) (328)
Released during the period @ - 8)
Provision at the end of the period 432 364 367
Current 432 316 367
Non-current . - 48 N

a6

22



Fea

€z
L../,
A
vOS'P Sev's TS 16666 5 91 6786 {+V) [0
-L01 $06 698 101 14 87 886 () 10303,
LO1 8£8 08 Sv6 4 8T %6 aremyog Jomdwo)
- L9 9 L9 - - L9 Apadoxd remgoayjaiuy
SjIsse IyqLduelu]
LEE'Y 068'y Ty 8LT PSEP L86'8 891 198°s (V) imoL
L t - - I 8 - 3 Araupyoews pue Jueld
| F4 L - 4 S 8T - - 14 S221YOA JOIOW
€T S0$ 1 174 434 9€L I 9l €L tuswdmba Bgo
91 23 1 9 61€ (741 [ - k4 SUORB{IRISUI [BOIN%]Y
L11 991 9 9 991 €82 9 7€ LST SAIMIXY PUR AMIRLNG
- Lz - - JAL4 LIz - - Lz twawmdmba 1531,
¥Z9 y08'1 ¥T 8zl 00’1 8ZI'T 24 411 L£0°T swaysAs sopnduo)y
LTy 685 - s 253 S(0'] - < 910" uawarosd ployasesy
L9Y'T 651°1 - ¥ SO1°1 529'¢ - S 129 s3urpyng
L€ 36 - £ $6 1147 » ~ 1947 pue| pjoyasesry
§33558 S[qiBuB],
pouad gy poLtad gy potiad 3y
SI107‘ogdune | §10Z ‘0g dunp Suunp stoz'rady | 107 °‘0f Sunp Sunp Buunp s10z ‘1 [udy spssY
jesy 1B SY suppdq —-e_.-vn- Ay} 10y jesy jesy suoyIpq suonIppy jesy
IN[BA OOF IIN uoyei hau—u Ppojej NY ¥a0]q nw?—ﬂv

Sspssepaxiy g

$]3558 JULIND-UON p'e

*(PaJuys asII3YF0 ssaun ‘ejep adeys 1od pue axeys 3daaxd ‘suoiw ut s3odny)

S107 ‘o< sunp papua Jaaenb ay) 10y
Sjun0dE 313 03 sa30u pue saprod Suyunode JueaguSig

PoRWILY 22Uy




e

124
979 £1T'S 0IF'y 618’6 S0T 8077 op8'L (a+v) &0,
6II 698 68L 886 $9 v6 656 (g) 1m0
L $08 LEL 126 59 ¥6 62 aremyos opndwo)
z 9 43 L - - L9 Kuadoxd yenoapyaiug
sjasse qIdueiuy
L0S'p - pSE'Y 6€1 us - 129'¢ 1988 ort 14154 L88'9 (V) moL
L I - - 1 2 - - 8 Ksurgaen pue jueyg
€T $ I S I 74 1 144 54 $9[ORA J0jO
[1x4 434 24 08 9ty €L 74 991 009 wsmdmba DO
02 61€ 9 69 95z [£43 9 291 09¢ SUOIE][RISUF 8310331
16 991 s ¥l Ls1 15T [4 1L 161 SIAMYXLY PUe SIYIUM,]|
- Lz { [ LIz Liz 1 - 817 uewdimbo 1531
L€9 00%'t 101 91y $80'1 LEOT 01 695 0Ls't swashs sandwoy
9% (43 - 74} brad 910' - L61 618 sjuewmaoidy ployesear)
918’z SOT'l H 6v1 L6 129°¢ 1 86 $69'T sBuwpjmg
[if2% 56 - u €8 sey - - [747 pue] pjoyases
sJasse quduny.
FEEYETT 1834 Y} JBIA I}
ST0T ‘1€ YMB | S10T ‘1€ WLEIN Suganp P02 11Uy | STOZ ‘1€ W Bupaap Saunp p10T ‘Y 1dy 58Sy
85y Jesy sSuonIq FirYy Y} 104 sy jesy _ suoypRq STOIPPY jesy
AN[EA 004 JON :S««muvhau—v pRjejuuny y3o§q 55045)

(ponunuod) s}assy pIxL I'p'¢

(paje)s 511330 ssajun ‘ejep aueys 1ad pue azeys 3dadxa ‘suorju uy $39dny)
S10Z ‘0§ dung papu? J33a8nb 3y d0g

(PanuLuod) s)unodse ay) o) syou pue saijod Jununodde Juesyiudis
Py _pUIN




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accouuts

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupeces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

3.4.2 Non-current investments

Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Investment in non-convertible bonds 50 -
Trade investments (unquoted)
- Investment in equity instruments 16 16
- Investment in preference shares 7 7
- Investment in Limited Liability Company 1,091 1,091
Less: Provision for diminution in value of
investments (0 (1)
Total £;163 1,113
Agegregate amount of quoted investments 50 -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 50 -
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 1,114 1,114
Details of investment in equity instruments are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
2,400 {previous year: 2,400) equity shares in Career I i
Community.com Limited
12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity shares in - -
Worldcast Technologies Private Limited
950,000 {previous year: 950,000) equity shares of 1 i
Re.1 each in NuvePro Technologies Private Limited
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - Mindtree 14 14
Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd ("MSSCL")
Total 16 16
Details of investment in preference shares are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Secriecs A 7 7
Convertible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 each
fully paid at premium of US § 0.2557 each in 30
Second Software Inc o o
Total 7 7
Details of investment in non-convertible bonds are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31,2015
50 secured redeemable non-convertible bonds of Rs 50 .

1 million in the nature of promissory notes in PNB
Housing Finance Limited

Total

22¥
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwisc stated)

343

Details of investment in Limited Liability Company is as given below:

Particulars As at As at
) June 30, 2015 March 31, 2018

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - 1,091 1,091

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.

Total 1,091 1,091

The Company acquired 100% equity interest in Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.
(Discovertare), a US based IT solution provider to the insurance industry, for a
consideration of USD 17 million during the year ended March 31, 2015. The
consideration includes future payments which are based on achievement of certain
specific milestones which have currently been provided for based on best estimate of the
Company. The transfer of membership interests and control of Discoverture is effective
February 13, 2015 and consequently, Discoverture has become a 100% subsidiary of the
Company effective that date.

Taxes

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014

Tax expense

Current tax 414 390

Deferred tax (an (17)

Total 383 373

The Company has units at Bengaluru, Hyderabad, Chennai and Bhubaneshwar registered
as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday under Section
10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company also has STPI units at Bengaluru and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier axstiﬁ»g‘gg@?“}nfax holiday under
y f’w;‘g A V

N

9}— |
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the quarter ended June 30, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

344

345

Deferred tax assets (net):

Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

e

Particulars As at As at
June 30,2015  March 31,2015
"Excess of depreciation as per 219 205
books over depreciation allowed
under Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for doubtful debts 18 16
Provision for  compensated 124 117
absence
Provision for volume discount 41 39
Others 78 72
Total deferred tax assets 480 449
Long-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
(Unsecured considered good)
Capital advances 59 107
Security deposits* 549 546
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 855 834
provision for taxes
MAT credit entitiement 119 110
Other loans and advances 39 42
Total 1,621 1,639
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
Jumne 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
(Unsecured considered good)
Other non-current assets N 7
Total R 17
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018

(Rupees in millions, except share and pcr share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1

Current investments

Particulars As at As at

) June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 3,317 4,643
Term deposits (unquoted) 700 700
Total 4,017 5,343
Aggregate carrying amount of quoted investments 3,317 4,643
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,413 4,790
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 700 700

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars ‘As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31,2015

No of units Amount No of units ~ Amount
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 20,729,926 393 28,722,324 472
IDFC Mutual Fund 40,736,312 437 37,530,726 433
UTI Mutual Fund 3,643,027 249 13,456,138 158
Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund 11,863,584 292 11,695,643 290
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 14,660,001 148 14,790,537 351
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fuad 7,702,721 240 20,007,295 454
Reliance Mutual Fund 17,651,564 301 23,725,772 428
Tata Mutual Fund 25,525,898 379 36,229,022 422
DWS Mutual Fund 4,544,693 45 4,483,697 45
SBI Mutual Fund 5,657,765 - 147 13,787,278 358
HDFC Mutual Fund 22,372,591 368 27,872,023 424
Axis Mutual Fund 102,092 105 100,840 104
Bank of India AXA Mutual Fund 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100
Kotak Mutual Fund 5,750,434 58 5,681,936 58
JP Morgan India Mutual Fund 3,582,647 55 16,989,901 189
L & T Mutual Fund - - 98,576 100
IDBI Mutual Fund - - 254,281 257
Total ) 3,317 4,643

Details of investments in term deposit are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
June 3}, 2015 March 31, 2015

HDFC Limited g 700
700

28
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.2

353

Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
' June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
(Unsecured)
Debts overdue for a period exceeding six months
- considered good 56 62
- considered doubtful 94 72
Other debts
- considered good 7,062 6,736
- considered doubtful 7 9
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (101) (81
Total 7,118 6,798
Cash and bank balances
Particulars As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Balances with banks in current and deposit 4,097 3,664
accounts*
Cash on hand - -
Other bank balances** 8 5
Total 4,105 3,669

*The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which
can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on-the

principal.

**Other bank balances represent earmarked balances in mgpeg{%ﬁﬂ@gtd dividends.

32
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.4 Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at As at
June 36, 2015 March 31, 2015
(Unsecured considered good)
Security deposits 117 143
MAT credit entittement 24 36
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 1,216 1,289
to be received*® )
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 20) (20)
Total 1,337 1,448

*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances. This also includes amounts pertaining to
housing deposits, vehicles, medical emergencies and salary advances given to employees
to the extent of Rs 169 as at June 30, 2015. (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 194)

3.5.5 Other current assets

Particulars ' As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Unbilled revenue 1,373 981
Gratuity - Excess of plan assets over obligations* 5 -
Other current assets** 16 24
Total 1,394 1,005

*Refer 3.3.2 for status of gratuity plan as required under AS 15.
**Represents derivative asset of Rs 16 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 24).

3.6 Other income

Particulars , For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Interest income 64 13
Dividend income 31
Net gain on sale of investments 27
Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 137
Other nou-operating income 2
Total 210
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.7 Expenses

Employee benefits expense For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014
Salaries and wages 5,070 4,378
Contribution to provident and other funds 435 346
Expense on employee stock based compensation 35 97
Staff welfare expenses 36 36
Total 5,576 4,857
Other expenses For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014

Travel expenses 625 514
Communication expenses 130 87
Sub-contractor charges 580 463
Computer consumables 143 86
Legal and professional charges 88 97
Power and fuel 80 78
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 164 152
Repairs to buildings 15 12
Repairs to machinery 6
Insurance 11
Rates and taxes 21
Adjustments to the carrying amount of investments -

Other expenses 366
Total 1,893

9&4
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.8 Contingent liabilities

a)

b)

The Company has received an income tax assessment for the financial year 2008-09
wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on account of certain
disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A significant portion
of this amount arises from the manner of adjustment of brought forward losses in
arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of portion of profit
earned outside India from the STP and SEZ units.

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income tax
(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, there will not be
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which are not favourable, the
Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘ITAT").

The Company has received income tax assessments for financial years 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Limited (MTPL)
with demands amounting to Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain disallowances/
adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand received.
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the department.

The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft Limited for the
financial years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 210, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs 119, Rs 214 and
Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen
mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order. The Company
has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its legal counsel/ advisors to
prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Company has filed
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax {(Appeals).and ITAT. The Company
has deposited Rs 15 with the department against these déifiands. The department has
adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 450 agginstAhiese defdands.

2%
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notcs to the accounts (continucd)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

d)

The Company received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income tax
department appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlier ycar passed an order setting aside both the orders of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) as well as the Assessing Officer and remanded the matter back
to the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appeal with the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT. The Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of ITAT and
upheld the order passed by the ITAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Assistant Commissioner of Income tax has
completed the reassessment & has issued a draft assessment order with a revised
demand amounting to Rs 198 due to transfer pricing adjustments. Management
believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment
has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal with
Dispute Resolution Panel.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2004-05 and on the unfavorable grounds, the Company has a
filed an appeal with ITAT, Bengaluru.

The Company has appealed against the demands received for financial years 2002-03,
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based on favourable
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 from the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and an evaluation of the facts and
circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders in the financial
statements.

The Company received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Wireless Private Limited from the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (‘ACIT”) with a demand amounting to Rs 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company
has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed an appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33. The Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the depariment against this demand.

The Company has received a final assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting to Rs 61 due to
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and transfer. pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it Qﬂ@éﬁﬁi{%@%&&%@ﬂﬂblﬁ and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial stat¢nienis, The €6mpany has filed an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). % ;

/
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.9 Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at June 30, 2015 is Rs 336 (March 31, 2015: Rs 508).

3.10  Value of imports on CIF basis

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Capital goods 64 102
Total 64 102

3.11  Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014

Branch office expenses 4,117 3,344
Travel expenses 66 65
Professional charges 20 11
Others 80 85
Total 4,283 3,505

3.12  Earnings in foreign currency

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,

2013 2014
Income from software development 9,386 8,222
Other income 2
Total 8,224

%Y
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.13

3.14

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, the Company has remitted in foreign currency
dividend of Rs 19 (quarter ended June 30, 2014: Rs 6)

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

Particulars June 30,2015 June 30, 2014
Number of shares held 1,867,400 1,119,693
Number of shareholders 55 53
Amount remitted (in Rs) 19 6
Year to which dividend Final dividend Third interim dividend
relates v 2014-15 2013-14

VACEOURTAY

Segmental reporting

The Company is structured into five verticals — RCM, BFSI, HTMS, TH and Others. The
Company considers business segment as the primary segment and geographical segment
based on the location of customers as the secondary segment.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on items that are
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specifically allocable to individual
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocable and directly
charged against total income.

The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical fo- prgf\gici sepmient disclosures
relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful ségg%a:ﬂm ﬁg&sl possible.

RIERED
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

o LACDOUNTANTE

Business segments

Statement of profit and loss

For the quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Segment revenue
RCM 2,164 1,785
BFSI 2,394 1,917
HTMS 3,116 2,757
TH 1,523 1,380
Others 426 596
Total 9,623 8,435
Segment operating income
RCM 476 317
BFSI 290 201
HTMS 532 646
TH 218 268
Others 191 256
Total 1,707 1,688
Unallocable expenses (324) (231)
Profit for the period before interest, other 1,383 1,457
income and tax
Finance costs - -
Other income 370 210
Net profit before taxes 1,753 1,667
Income taxes {383) (373)
Net profit after taxes 1,370 1,294
Geographical segments

Revenues For the quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
America 6,453 4,994
Europe 2,143 2,260
India 296
Rest of World 885
Total 8,435
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the quarter ended June 30, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.15

Related party transactions

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Mindtree Software
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
(“MSSCL"), Republic of
China

Subsidiary

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.

Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015,

Discoverture Solutions
UL.C.

Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015.

Discoverture Solutions
Europe Limited

Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015.

Mindtree Foundation

Entity with common key managerial person

Coffee Day Global Limited
Tanglin Developments
Limited (“TDL’)

Mysore Amalgamated Coffee
Estate Ltd

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which
through various entities and its promoters holds 19.75%
equity stake in Mindtree, and the group has a nominee on
the Mindtree Board.

Transactions with the above related parties during the period were:

Name of related Nature of transaction For the quarter ended June 30,
party 2015 2014
Mindtree Software Software services received 6 4
{Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Mysoré Reimbursement of travel 1 =
Amalgamated expenses

Coffee Estate Ltd

Mindtree Donation paid 18 13
Foundation

Discoverture Software services rendered 44 «
Solutions L.L.C.

Coffee Day Global  Procurement of supplies 2 4
Limited :
Tanglin Leasing office buildings and land 89 80
Developments

Limited
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

- towards electricity deposit/

charges - 9
Advance/ deposits received back:
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 12 15
- towards lease rentals 46 31
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit - 4
Balances payable to related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 6 6
Balances receivable from related parties are as follows:
Name of related Nature of As at As at
party transactions June 30,2015 March 31, 2015
Discoverture Trade receivables 51 22
Solutions L.L.C.
Tanglin Rental Advance 63 = 94
Developments
Limited Advance towards 4 16
electricity charges
Security deposit 360 375
(including
electricity deposit)

returnable on
termination of lease

24\
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Key Managerial Personnel:

Subroto Bagchi
Krishnakumar Natarajan
N.S. Parthasarathy

Rostow Ravanan

Dr. Albert Hieronimus

Apurva Purohit

Manisha Girotra
Prof. Pankaj Chandra

Ramesh Ramanathan
V.G.Siddhartha

Jagannathan Chakravarthi*
Vedavalli Sridharan**

Executive Chairman
CEO and Managing Director

Executive Director, President and Chief Operating
Officer

Executive Director, Head — Europe, Service lines and
Key Accounts

Non-Executive Vice Chairman and Independent
Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

*Appointed with effect from April 1, 2015,
** Appointed with effect from June 22, 2015.

*

Remuneration to key managerial personnel during the quarter ended June 30, 2015
amounts to Rs 35 (for the quarter ended June 30, 2014: Rs 106). Dividends paid to

directors during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 amounts to Rs 109 (for the quarter ended
June 30, 2014 amounts to Rs 32).

The above remuncratnon excludes gratulty and compcnsated aﬁsﬁi&ﬁ w“ch cannot be
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.16

3.17

Lease transactions

Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the quarter ended June
30, 2015 amounted to Rs 101 (for the quarter ended June 30, 2014: Rs 81). Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Particulars As at As at
June 30,2015  March 31, 2015

Payable -- Not later than one year 370 390

Payable -- Later than one year and not later 493 541

than five years

Payable -- later than five years 100 106

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expense under cancellable operating lease during
the quarter ended June 30, 2015 was Rs 63 (for the quarter ended June 30, 2014:
Rs 71).

Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share is set out below:

Paﬁiculam For the quarter ended --. For the quarter ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

v Basic EPS Diluted EPS  Basic EPS  Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of 83,751,547 83,751,547 83,484,436 83,484,436
equity shares outstanding
during the quarter
Weighted average number of - 292,476 - 412,094
equity shares resuiting from
assumed exercise of
employee stock options
Weighted average number of 83,751,547  84.044.023.-83484,436 83,896,530
equity shares for calculation y y Y

ﬂ\‘f\”ﬁ»’{ﬁ%%&
oo a5
of earnings per share i

I3
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.18  Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014

Statutory audit 4 4
Certification i 1

Total 5 5

3.19  The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The state of Florida
has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development center. The nature
and the extent of the government grant is given below:

Nature of expenses For the quarter ended June 30,

2015 2014
Grant towards workforce training - 9
Total ' - 9

The Company had availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 for renovation of
project facility. This grant is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions such as creation
of minimum employment with specified average salary and capital investment at the
development center at Gainesville, Florida, US.

320  Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated afier filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006° (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at June 30, 2015 has
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is e)pectcd to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest imm@g @\a\s at the balance
sheet date. Y
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.21

For the quarter ended
Particulars June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

The principal amount and the interest
due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting period; Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the
buyer under the Act along with the
amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting period; Nil Nil

the amount of interest due and payable
for the period (where the principal has
been paid but interest under the Act
not paid); Nil Nil
The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting period; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest due and
payable even in the succeeding period,
until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a  deductible
expenditure under section 23. Nit Nil

The financial statements are presented in Rs in million. Those items which are required to
be disclosed and which are not presented in the financial statement due to rounding off to
the nearest Rs in million are given as follows:

Balance Sheet items Amount in Rs
Particulars As at As at
. June 30, 2015 March 31,2015
Share application money pending 54,000 -
allotment
Interest accrued but not due on 57,261 -
borrowings
Provision for foreseeable losses on 276,438 275,752
contracts
Cash on hand 31,515 21,148

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity 126,400 126,400
shares in Worldcast Technologies e

Private Limited
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

322

3.23

3.24

Statement of Profit and Loss items Amount in Rs

Particulars For the quarter ended June 30,
2015 2014

Finance cost 194,688 229,045

As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not
hedged by a derivative instrument is given below:

Particulars As at Asat

June 30, 2018 March 31, 2015
Receivable 6,920 6,483
Payable (244) (164)

subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory: apprevals :

On July 16, 2015, the Company has entered into definitive agreements to acquire 100% of
the equity interest in Bluefin Solutions Limited (‘Bluefin’), a leading UK based IT
solutions provider specializing in SAP HANA solutions, in an all cash transaction for
GBP 42.3 million. The consideration includes an upfront payment of GBP 34 million and
earn out of GBP 8.3 million payable over the next three years.

On July 16 2015, the Company has entered into definitive agreements to acquire 100% of
the equity interest in Relational Solutions, Inc a US based IT solutions provider
specializing in technology services to the consumer goods industry, in an all cash
transaction for USD 10 million. The consideration includes an upfront payment of USD 7
million and earn out of USD 3 miilion payable over the next two years. Thns acquisition is
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwisc stated)

3.28 Corresponding figures for the previous period presented have been regrouped, where
necessary, to conform to the current period’s classification,

As per our report of even date attached For Mindtree Limited
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0080728

e

Lo (KRRt

V. Balaji Subroto Bag}:ki N. Krishnakumar
Partrer Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. : 203685 s .
Vs =
Jagannathan Vedavalli Sridharan
Chakravarthi Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 16, 2015 Date: July 16, 2015
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells Gharterd Accounaris

Anchorage Il

100/2, Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel : +91 (80) 6627 6000
Fax : 491 (80) 6627 6013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MINDTREE LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Discoverture Solutions LLC (a ‘Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of Mindtree Limited)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DISCOVERTURE
SOLUTIONS LLC (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries constitute
“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period February 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the management for purposes of inclusion in the
consolidated financial statements of Mindtree Limited for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company and Mindtree Limited are responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statement in accordance with the group accounting policies of Mindtree Limited
followed by it in preparing its consolidated financial statements as per the accounting principles generally
accepted-in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance -of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. V

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmeuts, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view.in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit

Ut




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the group
accounting policies of Mindtree Limited followed by it in preparing its consolidated financial statements
as per the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2015, and its consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the period
February 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction of Distribution and Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describe the basis of accounting. These financial statements are prepared as per group accounting
policies of Mindtree Limited for use in preparation of the consolidated financial statements of Mindtree
Limited as per the requirements of the Equity Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. As a result,
these consolidated financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is solely
intended for Mindtree Limited and should not be used for any purpose other than for the preparation and
audit of the consolidated financial statements of Mindtree Limited.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firms’ Registration No. 0080728S)

Ul

V.Balaji
Partner
BANGALORE, April 16,2015 (Membership No. 203685)
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Discoverture Selutions LLC

Statement of Profit and Loss for period February 1, 2015 {0 March 31, 2015

1Y

{Amountin Rs.)
. , For the period February 1,
v Particulars Notene. 2015 to March 31, 2015
1 Revenue from operations 166377919
2 Othérincome 35 3.759.998
3 Total revenue (142) 1706:137.917
4 Expenses
Employee benefits expense 36 91,994,355
Depreciation and amortisation ¢Xpeénse 331 509,189
Other expenses 3.7 48,060.003
Total expenses 140,563,547
S Profit/ (Loss) beforetax. (3 +4) 29,57437%
6 Taxexpense/{(benefit):
Current ax ¢xpense 11;007.925
Net tax-expense / {benefit) 11,007,925
7 Profit / (Loss) from operations (5 36) 18,566,445
In terms of our report atiached:
Tor Deloiite Haskins & Sells' For Discoverture Solutions LLC
Chartered Accountants Byits ember Mindtree Limied
\I . iﬁ’: . e
7 - s
V. Balaji P
Purtaer — Atithorised Signatory —
Place :-Bangalore Place ' Bangalore
Date ; April 16,2015 Date - April 16, 2015
2




Discoverture Selutions LEC

Cash Flow Statement for the petiod February 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015

LE L

Particilars For the period F:br;:?é 1,2015 to March 31,
AiCash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 29,574,370
Adjustments Tor
Depreciation and amoutisation éxponse 509,188
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 30,083,559
Changes in working capitall
Adjustments for (incredse) / decreasé in operating assets:
Trade teceivables 38730491
Short-term foans and advances (138,543)
{Mher current-assels 2.3 19,594)!
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating Habilities:
Trade payables ) 14,143.242
Orther current liabilities (65;888,404)
Short-term provisions 2,691,342
Cashgencrated from operations 16,702,005
Net income tax (paid) / refunds (S,&??,K}SQ
Net cash flow from 7 {used in) opérating sctivities (A) T1.224.277 |
B. Cash flaw from investing activities
Capital expenditure on fixed assets 14545%)
Netcash flow from / (used inj investing activitics (B) (45.355)]
Nét ncrease M {decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B) 11178822
Cash and cash equivalerts at the béginning of the year 76,029,583
Effect of exchange differences-on transkation of foreign currency balances {58.842)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year T 871495671
{rrteims of our report a‘mcﬁéd
For Deloitie Haskins & Sells: For Discoveyye Solutions LLC -
C‘ha;md Accountants- By its sole ber Mindtree Limited:
v. N - u
Parmner Authoriselsige
Place - Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date : April 16, 2015 Date : April 16,2015
=
— . !




1. Backgrosod
Discoverture Solutions LLE {the “Company®™), -2 Ariz0na based limited labiliny corporation, was'inc don ch’ber 3, ZﬁO;L

Mindiree Limited 2cquired. the 100% holding of this ertity from the promoters of the {,umpany The Co
technology solution,
The Company has two.
Discoverture ULC Can

P

ficlds of insurance and bealthare. 1t has offides v United States of America, Unitnd Kingdony and Carada,
ity owned sabsidiarics, Discoveriure bo!uuoru; mepe I,mmed (situated i London, United Kingdom and
situated in Ontdrio, Canada) (The Company and its subsidisries taiether cafled the Group®).

2 Significant Accounting Policies

zx sas.surprepwﬁouf didated f
Lidated finantial are. prep d solely-for- the purpose. of vonxalidation. with Mindiree Limited and p fin
fance with Indian Genecally A d irig Principles (GAAR).undor the Bistorical cost 00 the aceris! basisand
for the period February 1,2013 {mm pradticable date to the date-of aquisition) to Maréh 31,2015,

2.2 Primciples of Cansolidation

The fisancial staterments of Discoverture Solutions 1L1.C and ity wholly ovinied anid controlied subsidiary has been Sombised bn a lind-by-
ting basis by addwg fogeter the Book values of 3il oy of asssts, fiabifities, insomes snd exponses after eliminating all infec-company
balances! wransactions and the resultant unesalized gwﬂoss feonreibe dateishe parent company adquired control of thase sibsidiaries.

Thes consolidated financiat mtmems aré prepared using uniform wemmsmg policies for similar transactions snd other events in similar
cmmamcs

2.3 Useof Estimates. .
Fhe preparatitn of tidated Sinancial s *uty with gmmnlly prax i 4 {GAAP) in-India
i 20 make esti d ions that aftect the f v Wame@twmo&.mnmv
h&})hm disch lath watmgenx hahﬁl:) g3 otii\e dme af the oorwolndmd financial statements. Actusl results coold differ:
i : Any revision 1 ing estimates & & prosp in fiture periods.
2.4 Fized assets and depreciation

244 Pixed: mmwm cast of atquisition (inclading directly. artribiably costs such as freight, installation o) or Sonstrustions;

Jess scumulated de
242 Acunmﬁngib&immmmﬂlm a the acquisition price. Internally pensrsted 18tangible assets are recorded st cost that can
bemuwnkuwm”&&w{wmwmnmsm’cMw:emmszmmnmmmmemﬂwnm
will flow 1o the Groug.

24:3 Leases under which the Group’ assumes substantially alf the risks dnd sewsrds bf pwtership ace dlassified as france feases. Such
assers are vapialised af fair valuc of the sésetor p lue of the min lezsep #t the s ion of the lease, Whichever is
lmr,m‘pmmmmngmmmgmswmm g inthe F profit and Jods on W stneahEdins basis over
the lease ferm;

2#4A¢www;dmmewqwmmnfﬁwmi ding it -each bel heet date h wder capital advanioes, The:

sostof the fixed asset not ready forits inténded H date; i3 disclosed under capital work-ifi- progress

asset at-the time of th sogunsitiin of thic asiset of 'of the xémaming iiseful Tife on g subsdquent review
215 provided at @ higher rate hiased on the managenent’s estimane of the iseful fife/remaining useful
the management has estimated the useful life a5 under;

d squipment - 20 years

X 3

Fum;mn ~FtoiSyears
Oﬁwéeprwndﬂvm lSym

" 3

!":xnd pssets sndmdmﬂy msmrg Less than SSOO or iesx are M@Akwmm inthe year. of pirchase / installation Depreciativi’ o
addivions and disposals during the year (s provided on o prosrata basis..

2.5 Investments
251 Noxrcnfma Srivestients sie ‘carried st cost bess any other-than-teraporary: diniinafion in. vale, determingd’ on the specific

ied s thie Tower of cost and Fair vales. The comparison 'of cost and finr value s carvied oul separgtely in

383 Pmﬁtmkﬁsmnlesf:mimmmdetermuwdwdwdnffmcbem the: sale price and Garrying valins of investment;
deteriminied individually ﬁ:s‘e.aash,mvmmx

2.6 Cusk and cnsh equivafents
Cash wnd cash equivalents in the lidated cash flow comnprises cash in’ hand and balance in bank in:current sccounts and
deposst zecounts

% Consalidaied cash A ‘

Cash fows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby consolidated net profit biefore tax is adfusted for the effects of tansactions of
a nm~cash mm art any defaml& or gecraals of past o Tutore -cagh vecelpts orpesments. The eash - flows. from tegular novinue
& e 'v.-...fmmmw ivities of the fyare segreited:
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Discoverture Setutions LLC

“Significant Accounting policies
28 Empipxge benefits
Compensatied Absences: The emplovees of the Groug are fed to vor d ub based on' the utvavailed leave balance arsd the
Tast dravwn safary. of the respective smplovees.
A01(ky Plan = The Company. hay established » 4010k) plart e 18 emplovess in the USA’ The plan D defied Thution plas
and the Comp ibutes the p ified p mswmwdmfﬁcy}masmofﬂx&emhwcspmﬂ
2.9 Revenue rmgnm

P

iy from seeviees: R from soft develor oyt d ) basis s
recognised & :hc; related s:mca e rendered: Rmmc from’ fixed price, contracts 1§ recognised using the proporfiongte completion
method, which is deferminied by velafing the actual vm}cct cost of wotk perfurined 1o, date o the estimated tote] project cost'for-each
contract. Labilled revenge represents cost and earningg in ¢xcess of billings while uneatmed revenue represents the Bifling in excess of cost
and earnings. Provision for estimated losses, if-any, on indomplett tontracts are tesorded in the period in which such Josses become
probible based on the corrent contrict estimiates,

2416 Foreiga Currency Translation
?mnmwmmrmmwngmmmeswnh%mthcdtmoflher(, vy Exich
differences arising on fcmgacxcémgc ¢ diingthe: preiod are recoprised in x}wstxcmcntofproﬁ and Joss i‘orﬁx:
perind..

M  Tiabilities d inated in oreig i ies s ot the bal shoet date are trpnislated of the cloging exchange ratés on

that dam lhcresui'uwtmgc dxﬂemmmﬁm)m&wm«m of profit and lass. Nonsmonetary i which are carpied in

‘terms of historical cost denominated in‘a fordign cusy cy.are: reposted using the exchanye rate at the date of thé transaction.
I respeot of integral aperati ,Mmdhﬁhhmmm&wdﬂmmmmwulm' thie date of the balange
sheet, N j itenns. are translated ot the historical rete. The itend it the statement of profit and. loss: unstated at ihe rates

prevaiting on the dates of the respective fransuctions.. Thedxfﬁmnees arising ot of the transhtion are recomniseid in the statefnent of profit
and loss.

4311 Taxation
‘The cutrent income tak charge is dotermined in acodedance with:the relevant tax répulintions applicable fo respeetive entities Within the
Group.

212 Provision and contingent liabilifies

Thie Group, oreates & provision when thent is's proseat dbligation as 2 fesulf 6f & pest evinit that probibly requivés din cufflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be miade of the amout of the vbliation. A disclosire for  Contingent Tability is made when there i 3 possible
obligation or 4 present obl that'may, but probably will nof, fegiire an sutflow of fesources. When thereis a presible oblisationora
present obligation m»fw&mwlxwmwwdmmmmmvmnwwmum
Provisions for oherous contraett; i, bomracss » the expectéd idble Easts bl meeting the oblizstions under thi contract exceed
the ecmabuuﬁtsmhdmbc recetved under it are tecopnised when it is pitobable that an sutflow of fesources exibodying
ecunoc buwﬁasmﬁbcmwmdmmuaa prosent obligation ay’a resull of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of snch
abligation,

213 Impairment of a
Tbe(‘nwm, each balance sheet date whether there s any- indication that an asset (inclodnig goodwilly may! be impaired, 1€ asy
such indication exists, the Group estimites the redoverable amount of e ssset For an asset 1t does not gencrate farpely independent
ash indlows, the récaverable amount is deterinined for fhe cash-generating unit to which the assér helangs If such recoverable amount of
:hammﬁwmnbbmw!ofﬂwemhmwngmtmwmhmmdwun@smmmztsmmgmmcmmg
amount i reduced to His recoverable amount, mmﬂmmmmummpwmt lo;sandssrccomsedmﬁzemmmﬂo{pmﬁa
and foss, I 4t the balance sheet date therd is'an it girmet Ber' & s recoves
amount is reassessed and the assel i reflected at recoverable ambun. Au:mnmﬂosswmmmly:o the' extent that the
tarrying amount of asset does ot excaed the net book wwmmd‘hnwbm determined; if no impaiesient sy had been récognised.
in respect of goodwall, impairment foss wall be reversed only:wher: it is caused by specific external ekents atd thiir effecis have been
reversed by subsequent external events.
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Discoverture Selutions LLC
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3.1.1 Share capital

Particulars Asat March 31,2015
Members Equity 168,388,568
Total 168,388,568
i) Details of members capital accourt
' . As at March 31, 2015
FarGgulars Member Capital share
Mindtree Limited 168,388,368
168.388,568
Note 3.1.2 Reserves and surplus
{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Asat March 31,2015
Surplus (Balance invthe Statément of Profit and Loss)
Opening balance . o o
Add: Amount transferred froth the Statement of Profif and Loss I 18,566.445
18,566,445
Total 18566445
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Discoverture Solutions LLC
Notes forming part-of the financial statements

Note 3.2.1 Trade payables

(AmountinRs.)
Particulars As at March 31, 2015
Trade Payablc 61,415,455
Teotal 61:415.455
Note 3.2.2 Other current liabilities
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars ‘As at March 31,2015 7
Deferred Rent _ 2.275,339
Accrued Expenses - employee related liabilities 14,995,641
Accrued Expenses - Other current liabilitics 3,528,123
Total 20,799,103
Note 3.2.3 Short-term provisions
; {Amourt in Rs)
Particalars As at March 31, 2015
Provision for employce benefits - compensated abscnices 43854584
Provision for Taxes: I TUIRT02,220
Total 16,556,904
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Discoverture Solutions LLC
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3:3.2 Long-term advances

{(Amount in Rs:)
Particulars As at March 31, 2015
Security deposit 1,168,082
Total 1,168,082
Note 3.4:1 ~ Trade receivables
(Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Asat March 31, 2;_015
(unsecured)
Debts:overdue for period exceeding six moriths
~considered good. -
-considered doubtful ‘2285229
Other debts
~considered good 186,683,057
~considered doubiful -
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,285.229)]
Total o 186,683,057

Q<Y
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‘Note3.4.2 - Cash and cash equivalents

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at March 31,2015
Cashon hand .
Balances with banks in current:and deposit accounts £7,149.562
Total 87,149,562
Note 3.4.3 Shortterm loans and advances
(Amount in Rs )}
Particulars As at March 31, 2015
Loans and advances to employees. 150,029
Prepaid expenses 3,305,874
Total 3,455,903 |
Note 3.4.4 Other Current assets
(Amount R
Particulars. Asat March 31,2015
Other current assets 20,837
Unbilled revenue 625,000
Total 645,837

294
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Discoverture Selutions L1C
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3.5 - Other income

(Aniount in Rs.)
Yor the period February 1,
Particulars 2015 to March 31,2015
Other mnaperaﬁng income 2783312
Net Toss/ (gain) on exchange fluctuation - net 976,686
Total 3.759.998
Note 3.6 - Employee benefits expense.
(Amount in Rs)
. For the period February 1,
Particulars 9015t March 31,2015
Salaries and wages 90,259,621
Contributions to other funds 1,734,734
Total 91,994,355 |
Nete 3.7 Other expenses )
S (Amonnt in RS}
. “Forthe peried February 1,
Purficulars 2015 to March 31,2015
Subscontractor charges 31,767,360
Fravel expenses 4,144,254
Rent 2,586,636
Training €xpenses 1,956,121
Repairs and Maintenance - others: 59,376
Legal & professional 3.598.977
Computer\conusmabtes 493,7{}2
Communication expenses 588,901
Insurance 116,784
Rates and Taxes 1,104,394
Other expenses 1,245,605
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts 397.893
Total 48,060,003

Q40
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Discoverture Solutions LLC
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3.8 Commitmenis
Estimatéd amotint of contracts rémaining to be executed on'capital account and not provided foras at March 31,
2015 i¥'Rs. Nil

3.9 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

IParticulars For the period February 1,
, 2015 to Maich 31,2015
Branch/Subsidiary expense§ 147,811,474

3.10 Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars. For the period February 1,

2015 to March 31,2015 __
Income from Software Development ‘ 166,377.919
3.11'Segment Reporting

‘The Company is engaged in providing services in BESI Vertical and is considered to constitute a single segment in
the context of primary segment reporting as prescribed by Accounting Standard 17 « “Segment Reporting™

The secondary segment is identified 10 geographical locations. Details of secondary segment by geographical
locations dre giver below:

Particulars For the period February 1,
— 2015 to March 31,2015

America 154,886,733

{Restof world . 11,491,187

QU
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Discoverture Sofutions Li.C
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3.12 Related party transactions

a) Names of related parties and description of yelationship,

Namé of related parties Description of relationship
Mindiree Limited Holding Company
Discoverture Solutions Egrope Limited Subsidiary.
{Dmmvmure Solutions ULC Subsidiary
Transactions during the year .
v For the period February 1, 2015 to.
‘Name of Party - Nature of Services March 31,2018
Mindtree Limited Rendering of Services 21607483
Discoverture Solutions Eutope Limited ‘Rendering of Setvices 4011416
Discaverture Selutions ULC ‘Rendering of Servicss 2,898.298
Services received 1,778,986
Closing balance ‘
Name of Party Nature of transaction As at March 312015
Mindtree Limited Balance Payable 21,834,563
|Discoverture Solutions Furope Limited Balance Payable 3,838,178
Discoverture Sofutions ULC Batance Pavable (net) 10,170,598

1§ The above information has been detcrmined to the exient such parties have been idéntified on the hasis of information dvailable with'the Company,
whick bas been relied upon by the auditors:

2) No-amount is/has been writicn off or writien back during the'vear in respect of debts due fromdto related parties.

3) Previous year amount are given in bracket.

13
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Discoverture Solutions LLC
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3.13 Leases

The Company is obligated-under non-cancellable operating lease for office space.
Yotal rental expense and future lease payments under nov-cancellable operating lease for office

space is as follows:

Particulars . As at March 31,2015
Payable - Not later that oné yéar 13,126,667
Payable - Later than one yearand not later than five years 2.200.208
Pavable — Later than fiveyears Nil
3.14 Details unbedged foreign currency exposuves
Particulars Asat March 31, 2015

Trade receivable
JAmount in INR 177,013,425
Amount in USD 2,832,687
Amount in'INR 9,669,632
Amount in CAD: 197.219
Trade Payable
Amount i INR T5,115.728
Ammount.in USD 1,201,852
Amount in INR 12,687
Amount in CAD L 259
Amount in INR {135,044}
Amount in GBP {1.460)
Balance with bank account
Amountin INR 78297574
Amount in USD 1252161
Amountin INR 4,328,382
Amountin CAD 88,280
Amount in INR 4,476,695
Amopnt in GBP 48412
For Deloitte Haskins & Sclls For Discoverture Solutions LLC
Chartered Accountants By ifs sple member Mindtree Limited .. -

v . %A.: . -
V. Balaji P el
Partner f}ui}wrisﬁi}jgxé‘wry

Place : Bangalore
Date:: April 16. 2015

263

Place » Bangalore
Date » April:16, 2015

/
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Relational Solutions, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

AnkeXow - E6

ASSETS
NON - CURRENT
Property, Plant and Equipment

CURRENT

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other short term financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share Capital

Retained Earnings
LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Trade and Other Current Payables
Provisions

TOTAL LIABILITIES

(in $)

Note | As at 31.12.2014 | As at 31.03.2015
No.

2 9,723 9,723

9,723 9,723

3 331,461 645,646

4 781,098 592,394

5 3,500 3,500

1,116,059 1,241,540

1,125,782 1,251,264

5(a) 500 500

6 423,631 402,743

424131 403,243

7 701,651 824,390

8 - 23,630

701,651 848,020

1,125,782 1,251,263

For Mindtree Limited

Ved L——fé{

Company Secretary
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Relational Solutions, Inc.
Notes Forming part of financial Statements

(in $)

As at 31.12.2014

As at 31.03.2015

Note 2: Property, Plant and Equipment

Equipment 26,494 26,494
Acc. Depreciation - Equipment (26,494) (26,494)
Furniture & Fixtures 49,743 49,743
Acc. Depreciation. - Furniture & Fixture (40,019) (40,019)
Total 9,723 9,723
Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash balances 623 203
Current accounts with bank 330,837 645,442
Total 331,461 645,645
Note 4: Trade and Other Current Receivables
Trade receivables 781,098 592,395
Total 781,098 592,395
Note 5: Other Short Term Financial Assets
Officer's Loan Receivable 3,500 3,500
Prepaid Expenses - -
Total 3,500 3,500
Note 6: Retained Earnings
Opening balance (14,709) 423,631
Profit/ (loss) for the year/ period 438,340 (20,888)
Closing balance 423,631 402,743
Note 7: Trade and Other Current Payables
Trade Payables - 744
Other Current Payables

Income received in advance 346,051 372,413
Notes payable to Rob and Janet . 350,863 350,863
Sales Tax Payable 1,584 10,834
401K Deferral Plan 3,153 5,789
Salary Payable - 75,000
Interest Payable - 8,748
Total 701,651 824,390
Note 8: Provisions

Employee benefits - 23,630
Total - 23,630
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Relationa! Solutions, Inc.
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

5 (a) Share Capital
The authorized capital of the Company consists of 1500 shares
Common Stock - 1000 shares
Series A Preferred Stock - 500 shares

The issued capital of the company consists of:
Common Stock - 812.5 shares
Series A Preferred Stock - 187.5 shares

The stock of the Company does not carry any par value. Series A Preferred Stock have been issued

to IBM in 2011 for a purchase consideration of $ 1.5 million and the holder is entitled to annual
cumulative dividend @ 5% on the same.
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Relational Solutions, Inc.
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Note No. | January - December | January - March ;:,1:)
2014

Revenue 9 3,281,788 625,708
Other income 10 | 1,177 149
Total Income 3,282,965 625,857
Employee benefits expense 1" 1,811,929 488,241
Finance cost 12 34,990 8,748
Other expenses 13 997,705 149,756
Total Expense 2,844,624 646,745
Profit for the period 438,340 {20,888)
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Relational Solutions, Inc.
Notes Forming part of financial Statements

(in $)
January - January - March
December 2014 2015
Particulars
Note 9: Revenue
Revenue from annual maintenance services 604,712 193,099
Revenue from sale of product and other services 2,677,075 432,609
Total 3,281,788 625,708
Note 10: Other income
Bank Service Charge 97 (78)
Taxes - Payroll:SUI - 22
Interest Income 1,080 204
Total 1,177 149
Note 11: Employee benefits expense
Salaries & Wages 954,580 246,960
Officer's Salaries 700,000 175,000
Compensated absences - 23,630
Contribution to 401K plan 61,872 13,414
Taxes - Payroll 95,477 29,237
Total 1,811,929 488,241
Note 12: Finance cost
Interest Expense on notes payable 34,990 8,748
Total 34,990 8,748
Note 13: Expenses by nature
Consulting Expense 269,108 10,000
Insurance - Employee Group 106,169 31,229
Depreciation - -
Insurance - General 3,961 3,743
Insurance - Officer's Life 13,770 -
Office Expense 84,407 15,803
Rent Expense 70,522 11,823
Maintenance and upgrade charges 144,772 -
Telephone 35,090 8,726
Travel 60,723 21,883
Meals & Entertainment 38,881 10,528
megrvices 34,183 9,627
Advertising 19,528 -
Auto Expense 18,130 4,265
Rates and taxes 16,351 5,638
Contributions 8,230 90
Marketing 22,500 2,767
Licenses & Fees 1,520 153
Dues & Subscriptions 5,490 190
Seminars & Conference 32,859 -
Equipment Rental 562 112
Legal & Accounting 6,101 11,150
Miscellaneous Expense 5,848 2,029
Total 997,705 149,756
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Relations Solutions Inc.
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1.

Reporting Entity

Relational Solutions Inc. is a company domiciled in Ohio, USA. The registered office of the
Company is situated in Great Northern Corp Centre Ill, 25050 Country Club Blvd. Suite 105 North
Olmsted, Ohio. The company is primarily engaged in the business of providing services like data
warehousing, business intelligence and data integration.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting and Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with recognition and
measurement principles of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB).

2.2 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in USD.

2.3 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

2.4 Property Plant and Equipment
a) Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable
to the acquisition of the assets.

b) Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the
estimated useful life on a straight line basis from the date the assets are available for use.

2.5 Lease Payments

Lease payments made under operating lease are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income as per the systematic basis mentioned in the lease agreement.
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2.6 Employee Benefit

The Company contributes to a defined contribution plan. Under a defined contribution plan,
the Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The
expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when
the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation
to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The company's contribution to 401 (k) profit
sharing expense plan is considered as defined contribution plan and are charged as an
expense as they fall due with the amount of contribution required to be made.

2.7 Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenue from sale of software licenses, software development and
related services and annual maintenance services. Revenue is recognized at fair value of the
considerations received or receivable. The Company recognizes revenue when the
significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been delivered and the
collectability is reasonably assured. The method for recognizing revenues and costs are:

Time and Material Contracts: Revenues from contracts priced on a time and material basis
are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are incurred.

Fixed Price Contracts: Revenues from fixed price contracts are recognised using the
percentage of completion method, with contract costs incurred till date and estimated
contract costs determining the degree of completion. When total cost estimates exceed
revenues in an arrangement, the estimated losses are recognized in the statement of
income in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract
estimates.

Maintenance Contracts: Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognized on a straight
line basis over the specified period or under some other method that better represents the
stage of completion.

‘Unbilled revenues’ represent cost and earnings in excess of billings as at the end of the
reporting period.

‘Unearned revenues’ represent billing in excess of revenue recognized. Advance payments
received from customers for which no services are rendered are presented as ‘Advance
from customers’.

Sale of Licenses: Revenues from sale of licenses are recognised upon delivery where there is
no customisation required. In case of customisation, the same is recognised over the life of
the contract using the proportionate completion method.

Revenues are reported net of sales tax and discounts.

Interest income is accounted on accrual basis.

0



2.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

2.9 Finance cost
Finance cost consists of interest expenses on loan borrowed from the promoters of the
Company. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of income using the effective
interest method.

For Mindtree Limited

Ve d k,J

Company Secretary

23]




A preiuie - F
Deloitte
Haskins & Sells e core

Anchorage il

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tei : + 91 (80} 66276000
Fax: -+ 91 {80) 66276013

Independent Auditor’s Certificate under Clause 24(i) of the Equity Listing Agreement

To,

The Board of Directors,

Mindtree Limited

Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
Bangalore-560059,

Karnataka, India

We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountant (Firm’s Registration No. 0080728), the statutory
auditors of Mindtree Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), have examined the proposed
accounting treatment specified in clause 9 of the Draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Mindtree Limited and Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. and Relational Solutions Inc. in terms of the
provisions of the Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 with reference to its compliance with
the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Composite Scheme and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of

——the Board of Directors of the Companies involved. Our responsibility is only to examine and report
whether the Draft Composite Scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and Other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or
done in the course of, or in connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend
any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements
of the Company. We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
Reports and Certificates for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid Draft Composite Scheme is in compliance
with Clause 24(i) of the Listing Agreement and all the applicable Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

For ease of reference, the Draft Composite Scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the Company, is
annexed to this certificate, and is stamped by us only for the purposes of identification.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company pursuant to the requirements of clause 24(i) of
the Listing Agreement for onward submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
BSE Limited. This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written
consent.

e For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
RN Chartered Accountants
s R {(ICAI Reg. No. 008072S)

TS

V. BALAJI
Partner
Membership No. 203685

BENGALURU, 15 October, 2015
Ref: VB/ 268

For Mindtree Limi
Ve

Company Secretar.
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountans

Anchaorage il

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel: + 91 (80) 66276000
Fax: + 91 (80) 66276013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

1. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration Number 008072S), the
statutory auditors of Mindtree Limited (“the Company”), have for the purpose of issuing this
certificate, examined:

(a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2015;

(b) the draft composite scheme of amalgamation of Mindtree Limited, Discoverture
. Solutions L.L.C. and Relational Solutions, Inc.;

(c) the ‘Statement of computation of pre and post amalgamation net worth of the Company
as at March 31,2015 (the ‘Statement’), prepared by the Company and duly stamped and
initialed for identification; and

(d) such other information and documents, which we considered necessary for the purpose-of
issuing this certificate.

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the Statement and the
maintenance of proper books of account and such other relevant records as prescribed by the
applicable laws. Our responsibility, for the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certifying the
particulars contained in the Statement from the aforesaid audited standalone financial statements
and other relevant records and documents as described in paragraph 1 above. We have carried out
our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for
Special Purposes and Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

3. Based on our examination conducted as described in paragraph 2 above and according to the
information, explanations and representations provided to us by the Management of the Company,
we certify that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement, read with and
subject to the notes thereon, are in agreement with the aforesaid audited standalone financial
statements and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company.

4. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company in connection with the Prbposed Scheme
for onward submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. This
Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

BENGALURU, 15 October, 2015 o SN u‘é'}\? réi;edNﬁccgggg;'n;S)

Ref: VB/270 | | V- Ao

‘f% - V. BALAI

: 4 Memberslﬁ?pﬂ&%—. 203685
(Srarterep 1 For Mindtree Limjted
Company Secretarv
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Mindtree Limited

Statement of computation of pre and post amalgamation net worth of the Company as at

March 31, 2015
{Rs in millions}

Particulars Pre-amalgamation | Post-amalgamation

Equity Share Capital 837 837

Reserves and Surplus:

Capital reserve 87 87
Securities premium reserve 1,898 1,898
General reserve 1,542 1,542
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 15,666 15,666
Total Reserves and Surplus 19,193 19,193
Net worth (A + B) 20,030 20,030
Notes:

1. "Net Worth" means sum total of paid-up capital and free reserves.

As per section 2(43) of Companies Act, 2013 "Free reserves" free reserves” means such
reserves which, as per the latest audited balance sheet of a company, are available for
distribution as dividend:

Provided that— e

(i) any amount representing unrealised gains, notional gains or revaluation of assets, whether
shown as a reserve or otherwise, or

(ii) any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity, including
surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value,
shall not be treated as free reserves.

2. The post amalgamation net worth of the Company is determined considering the
accounting treatment contained in clause 9 of the draft composite scheme of amalgamation
of Mindtree Limited, Discoverture Solutions LLC ("Transferor Entity") and Relational Solutions
Inc ("Transferor Entity"), which represents purchase method of accounting for amalgamation.
Accordingly, the identity of reserves of the Transferor Entities other than statutory reserves is
not preserved as per Accounting Standard 14 - Accounting for Amalgamation specified as per
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. There are no statutory reserves with respect to the transferor entities. Therefore net
worth of the Company pre and post amalgamation will remain same.

For Mindtrée Limited

Authorised Signatory

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS Place: Bangalore

. Date: 15th Ocotber, 2015
For Mindtree Il_u;m?e

\e)=—>

. \

Company Secretary
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An rex ina -
Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@ M in dtre e Global Vitlage, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate ldentity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE BOARD MEETING OF MINDTREE
LIMITED (MINDTREE OR COMPANY) HELD ON OCTOBER 15, 2015 AT 10.30.AM AT
GLOBAL VILLAGE, RVCE POST, MYSORE ROAD, BANGALORE-560059

APPROVAL OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

After a brief discussion, the following resolutions were passed unanimously:

"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of sections 391 to 394 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and that of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if

~any, and enabling provisions in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Listing
Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company
are listed and various circulars issued by SEBI and other Statutory Authorities from time to time and subject
to confirmation of the Jurisdictional High Court / National Company Law Tribunal and approval of the
Foreign Investment Promotion Board / Reserve Bank of India and other concerned authorities, if any, and
all such other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions
and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals,
permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Company, the consent of the Board be and is
hereby accorded for the amalgamation of Discoverture Solutions LLC, Relational Solutions Inc.,
(Transferor Companies) with the Company (Transferee Company) vide the Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation [hereinafter the “Scheme”] (the draft of which was submitted to this meeting and was
initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT there is no requirement for the share entitlement ratio as the transferor
companies are the wholly owned subsidiaries of the transferee company and no shares are allotted to them.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Fairness report issued by the merchant banker (which was considered
by the Audit Committee) and the report of the Audit Committee recommending the Scheme of amalgamation
be and are hereby taken on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the undertaking of the Company with regard to non-applicability of
requirements under Clause 5.16(a) of SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated Feb 4, 2013 and further
clarified by Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May 21, 2013 in respect of the scheme duly certified
by the Statutory Auditors of the Company , placed before the Board, be and is hereby approved and taken
on record by the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and
beneficial to the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair
and reasonable.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT National Stock Exchange of India Limited be and is hereby appointed as
the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of the Scheme, amalgamation of Discoverture Solutions
LLC, Relational Solutions Inc., with the Company, any of the Executive Directors, Mr. Jagannathan
Chakravarthi, CFO, Mr. Erwan Carpentier, SVP Legal and General Counsel, Ms. Vedavalli Sridharan,

Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally authorised to:
-4
~ V
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Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@ M |n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

i) to make such alterations and changes to the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation as may
be expedient or necessary, particularly for satisfying the requirements or conditions
imposed by the Central Government or by the concerned Stock Exchanges or the Court
of competent jurisdiction;

ii) to evolve, decide upon and bring into effect the Scheme and make and give effect to any
modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revision in the Scheme from time to
time or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified
by any statutory authority or may suo moto decide in its absolute discretion and to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever, including settling any question, doubt
or difficulty that may arise with regard to or in relation to the scheme as it may in its
absolute discretion consider necessary, expedient, fit and proper,

ii) file applications/petitions/affidavits/pleadings or other documents as may be required
for the scheme in the High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal or
other relevant courts including the filings as may be required under the laws of the
transferor Companies

iv) obtain the requisite approval of the Foreign Investment Promotion Board / Reserve Bank
of India; if necessary

v) affix the common seal of the Company on any documents as per the Articles of
Association.

vi) file the said Scheme with the concerned Stock exchanges for approval in terms of the
provisions of the Listing Agreement, including the appointment of designated stock
exchange;

vii) To approve various reports as may be required with regard to the filing of the scheme as
may be required by the stock exchanges and various government authorities.

viii)settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
above Scheme, and to give effect to the above resolution;

ix) make application to relevant authorities or other persons for their approval as may be
required.

x) authorize any person(s) to, sign and file applications/petitions to the High Court of
Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal and that of other competent jurisdiction
for directions for holding a meeting of the Members and Creditors and for confirmation
of the Scheme, including the appointment of Chairman for such meetings, to sign notices
convening such meetings of shareholders, creditors and other concerned persons;

xi) authorise any person(s) to file all pleadings, reports, and sign and issue public
advertisements and notices, for and in connection with the above purpose.

xii) give such directors as may be considered necessary to settle any question or difficulty
arising under the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the
scheme or implementation hereof or in any manner whatsoever connected herewith and

xiii) do all such act, deeds and things necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with
or incidental to giving effect to the purpose of the above Resolution.

xiv)to appear before the Official Liquidator, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax
Department, Regional Director and other statutory and quasi-judicial authorities in
connection with matters, connected and incidental thereto

xv) to appoint Mr N.K. Dilip, Mr. Nanjappa. M.G., Mr. Raghunath Ananthapur, Ms. Rashmi
Talukdar, Mr. Bhargava. K.S., Mr. Ankush V.H and/or any other advocates of M/s Tatva
Legal, Advocates having their office at B-3, 2" Floor, Embassy Heights, Annexe Block,
Magrath Road, Bangalore 560 025 as advocates to represent the Company before the
High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal and other courts in respect
of the Scheme and all matters, connected and incidental thereto and all such acts, deeds
and things (incidental and ancillary) as may be considered necessary and expedient in

relation thereto.
N =
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xvi) to file necessary forms, papers, returns, documents etc., with the Registrar of Companies,

Karnataka within stipulated time as applicable under the provisions of the Companies

Act.”
// CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//
. imited
For Mindtre® L™
Ved "=
Company Se°
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
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RELATIONAL SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSENT TO ACTION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITHOUT A MEETING

The undersigned directors of Relational Solutions, Inc., an Ohio corporation (“Corporation”),
hereby waive notice, and consent to the following actions of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, without a meeting by unanimous written consent, pursuant to the Bylaws of the
Corporation and section 1701.54 of the Ohio General Corporation Law.

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation of Mindtree Limited and Discoverture Solutions, LLC and Relational Solutions,
Inc. (“Scheme of Amalgamation”), providing, among other things, for the amalgamation and
merger of this Corporation into Mindtree Limited; and "

WHEREAS, this Board of Directors deems it to be in the best interests of this Corporation and
its shareholder that such Scheme of Amalgamation be approved and that this Corporation
merge with and into Mindtree Limited; be it:

RESOLVED, that, subject to approval by the Indian courts under Indian law, the terms and
conditions of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation presented to the Board and the mode of
carrying them into effect as set forth in said Scheme of Amalgamation, as well as the dealing
with the shares of the Corporation including but not limited to cancellation of the share capital as
set forth in said Scheme of Amalgamation, are hereby approved pursuant to Ohio Revised Code
section 1701.80; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the President and the Secretary of the Corporation are directed to
execute and acknowledge said Scheme of Amalgamation in the name and on behalf of this
Corporation and deliver a duly executed copy thereof to Mindtree Limited; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers of this Corporation, Jagannathan Chakravarthi, Erwan
Carpenter, and Vedavalli Sridharan, are directed to execute, acknowledge, file, and record such
instruments and do such other acts in the name and on behalf of this Corporation including
representing the Corporation in relation to the amalgamation proceedings before the Indian
courts, certifying the organizational documents produced before the Indian Courts and statutory
authorities as ‘true copies’ of the original documents, representing and filing applications,
petitions, affidavits, undertakings and any other necessary documents as may be necessary or
proper to fully perform the terms and conditions of the Scheme of Amalgamation.

1\“

Dated: 15" October, 2015 Anand Sampath Kumar
Director
For Mindtree Limited
N
Company Secretary
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National Stock Exchange of india Limited

Exchange Plaza,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,

Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Loy

Global Village, g
Bengaturu-560052, Karnataka, India.

Corporate Identity Nurmber (CIN) L7 2200KAT999PLC025504
C-mail info@minduree.com

October 20, 2015

Subject: Undertaking under Clause 24 (qg) of the Listing Agreement

Dear Sir,

The Company ensures that the Composite Scheme of Amalgamaticn of Discoverture Solutions LLC and
Relational Solutions inc, with Mindtree Limited to be presented to any Court or Tribunal does not in any
way violate, override or circumscribe the provisions of Security Laws or the Stock Exchange requirements.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited
<
¢ /‘ " b k‘"w—/‘_‘,,,,
Yer==1

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village

RVCE Post, Mysore Road
Bengalury - 560059

T +91 8006706 4000
P +918067006 4100
W owww.mindiree.com
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October 20, 2015
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Subiject: Application under Clause 24(f) of the Listing Agreement for the proposed Composite
Scheme of Amalgamation of Mindtree Limited and Discoverture Solutions LLC and Relational
Solutions Inc.

In connection with the above application, We undertake and confirm that the Company is in Compliance
of the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. A copy of the Compliance Report is attached
to as an Annexure 1.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited

Vo]

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Ref: MT/STAT/CS/15-16/104 October 7, 2018
The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited : National Stock Exchange of Indla Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Exchange Plaza,
Dalal Street, ' Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 001 Mumbai 400 051
Dear Sirs,

Kind Attention Mr. Gopala Krishna and Mr. Hari

Subject: Submission of:

(i) Corporate Governiance Report as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement {for the quarter
ended September 30, 2015;

(ii) Statement showing Shareholding Details as per Clause 35 of the Listing Agreement as

on September 30, 2015;

Enclosed herewith the compliance status of provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to
Corporate Governance for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 and Statement showing shareholding
details as on September 30, 2015 pursuant to Clause 35 of the Listing Agreement for your reference.

Please take the above intimation on records and acknowledge the receipt of the same.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited

i

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

For Mindtree Limiteg

Vo —f TN

Company Secretary L
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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" {As per Annexure-X! of the Listing Agreement)

pliance Report on Corporate Governance as on September 30, 2018

Name of the Company: Mindtree Limited

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village

RVCE Post, Mysore Road
Bengaluru - 560059

T +91806706 4000
F +91806706 4100
W www.mindtree.com

ol Bol

Particulars Clause of Listing | Compliance Remarks
Agreement Status
Yes/No

Il. Board of Directors 49(11)

{A) Composition of Board 49 (l1A) Yes

(B) Independent Directors 49 (11B) Yes

(C) Non-executive Directors’ 49 (liC) Yes

compensation & disclosures ‘
(D) Other provisions as to Board and 49 (1ID) Yes
Committees
- (E) Code of Conduct 49 (IIE) Yes

{(F) Whistle Blower Policy 49 (lIF) Yes

Ill. Audit Committee 49 (Il

(A) Qualified & Iindependent Audit 49 (llIA) Yes

Committee

(B) Meeting of Audit Committee — - 49 (IiB) Yes

(C) Powers of Audit Committee 49 (llIC) Yes

(D) Role of Audit Committee 49 (D) Yes

(E) Review of Information by Audit 49 (IlIE) Yes

Committee
IV. Nomination and Remuneration 49(1Vv) Yes
Committee '

V. Subsidiary Companies 49 (V) NA The Company does
not have a material
non-listed Indian

, Subsidiary.

VI. Risk Management 49(Vl) Yes

VIl. Related Party Transactions 49(Vll) Yes

VIii. Disclosures 49 (Vi)

(A) Related Party Transactions 49 (VIII A) Yes

(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 49 (Vi B) Yes

{C) Remuneration of Directors 48 (Vi C) Yes

(D) Management 49 (Vili D) Yes

(E) Shareholders 49 (VI E) Yes

(F) Proceeds from public issues, rights 49 (VIII F) N/A

issues, preferential issues etc.

IX. CEOQ/CFO Certification 49 (1X) Yes

10f2
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E-mail: info@mindtree.com

X. Report on Corporate Governance

49 (X)

Yes

XI. Compliance

49 (X)

Yes

for Mindtree Limited

.9 s i
N T =
Vedavalii S
Company Secretary

Note:

1. The details under each head shall be provided to incorporate all the information required as per the

provisions of the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

In the column No. 3, compliance or non-compliance may be indicated by Yes/No/N.A. For example, if

the Board has been composed in accordance with the Clause 48 | of the Listing Agreement, "Yes" may
be indicated. Similarly, in case the company has no related party transactions, the words “N.A." may

be indicated against 49 (Vil).

in the remarks column, reasons for non-compliance may be indicated, for example, in case of

requirement related to circulation of information to the shareholders, which would be done only in the
AGM/EGM, it might be indicated in the "Remarks” column as — "will be complied with at the AGM".
Similarly, in respect of matters which can be complied with only where the situation arises, for example,
"Report on Corporate Governance" is to be a part of Annual Report only, the words "will be complied

in the next Annual Report" may be indicated.

For Mi -
or Mindtree Limited
- (]
Yer 4
Company Secretary -
20f2
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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October 20, 2015
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Rationale behind the Scheme

Dear Sir,

This is further to the application for the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation of Mindtree Limited
(Transferree Company) and Discoverture Solutions LLC and Relational Solutions Inc, (hereinafter referred
to as “Transferor Companies”) filed with your exchange. The Rationale behind the scheme are as follows:

(i) The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its business operations
and provide significant impetus to the growth of the Transferee Company. The
consolidation of the activities by way of an amalgamation will lead to synergies of
operations and a stronger and wider capital and financial base for future growth/expansion.
The combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a wider array of
customers, which will strengthen its competitive position in providing IT services /software
& technology related services markets This will also enable the Transferee Company to
address newer solutions and services to its customers and to transferor's customers and
enhance its marketing capabilities.

(i) The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in overheads,
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalisation,
organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of various resources.

(iii) The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to the strength of the
Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee Company will offer a strong financial
structure to all creditors including the creditors of the Transferor Companies, facilitate
resource mobilisation and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially
towards enhancement of shareholder’s value of the Transferee Company.

(iv) Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with the multiple record -
keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

(v) This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company.

(vi) The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the proposed amalgamation
as their security is maintained.

(vii) There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the Transferee
Company apart from reduction in costs.

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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(viii) The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both the companies and
a single management structure for the companies.

(ix) The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the Transferee Company
to develop a business model that would be competitive and cogent.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited
/’

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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October 20, 2015
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Ref: Clause 24(f) of the Listing Agreement

Subject: Brief details of business of Mindtree Limited and Discoverture Solutions LLC and
Relational Solutions Inc,

Dear Sir,
The details of business of Mindtree Limited are as follows:
Mindtree Limited:

The Transferee Company is involved in the business of software and technology related services, product
development services, information management services etc.

Discoverture Solutions LLC:

Discoverture Solutions LLC is involved in the business of providing technology services for property and
casualty insurance and healthcare industries.

Relational Solutions Inc.:

Relational Solutions Inc., has proven expertise in analytics with solutions for supply chain optimization and
trade promotions analytics in Consumer Packaged Goods retail execution

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

For Mindtree Limited
V¢ ﬂ‘&L

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells crartre pcounans

Anchorage Il

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel : + 91 (80) 66276000
Fax: + 91 (80) 66276013

Independent Auditor’s Certificate

To,

The Board of Directors,
Mindtree Limited
Global Village,

RVCE Post,

Mysore Road,
Bangalore-560059,
Karnataka, India

1. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountant, (Firm Registration No. 008072S), the
statutory auditors of Mindtree Limited (“the Company”), have been requested by the Company to
certify the attached “Undertaking in terms of Para 5.16 (b) of the Securities Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013, as amended vide
Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May, 21, 2013 (together, the “SEBI Circular”)” (“the
undertaking™), which has been prepared by the Company and approved by its Board of Directors,

and is duly stamped by us for identification purpose.

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for preparation of the undertaking and the
maintenance of proper books of account and such other relevant records as prescfibed by
applicable laws, which includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing,
implementing and monitoring of internal controls relevant to preparation of the undertaking that is
free from material misstatement and for ensuring compliance with the applicable SEBI Circulars.

3. Our responsibility, for the purpose of certificate, is limited to certifying the particulars contained
in the undertaking on.the basis of the proposed “Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Mindtree Limited and Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. and Relational Solutions Inc.” (“Proposed
Scheme”), books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company and did not include the evaluation of the adherence by the Company with all applicable
guidelines. We conducted our verification in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports
and Certificates for Special Purpose and Standard on Auditing issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India. '

cHARTERED Y&\

ACCOUNTANTS j1~;
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Deloitte
Haskins & Selis

4. On the basis of our verification of the Proposed Scheme and other relevant records and documents
as referred to in paragraph 3 above and according to the information and explanations provided to
us by the Management of the Company, we certify that the undertaking provided by the Board of
Directors of the Company as referred to in paragraph 1, is in accordance with the books of
account, Proposed Scheme and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company.

5. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company in connection with the Proposed Scheme
for onward submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. This
Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

BENGALURU, 15 October, 2015 | (ICAI Reg. No. 0080725)
Ref: VB/269 '\)‘
V. BALAJI

Partner
Membership No. 203685

qu Mindtree Limited

Vi d

Company Secretary "
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Undertaking

Undertaking in terms of Para 5.16 {b) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No.
CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013, as amended vide Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May,
21, 2013 (together, the “SEBI Circular”)

Pursuant to paragraph 5.16 (b) of SEBI Circular, we state that the provisions of 5.16 (a) are not applicable to
the Scheme of Merger (“Scheme”) for the transfer of the Undertaking of Discoverture Solutions L.L.C and
Relational Solutions Inc (wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), with the Company for the following
reasons:

Where additional shares have been allotted to Promoter/ Promoter Group , Related parties of
Promoter / Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/ Promoter Group , Subsidiary/ (s) of Promoter/
Promoter Group of the listed Company, or

Not applicable, since no shares would be allotted to Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/
Promoter Group of the listed Company, arising out of this merger.

Where the Scheme of Arrangement involves the listed Company and any other entity involving
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/
Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group. .

Not applicable, since the Scheme of Arrangement is with wholly owned subsidiary and does not
involve any of its Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of Promoter/ Promoter Group,
Associates of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group.

Where the parent listed Company, has acquired the equity shares of the subsidiary, by paying
consideration in cash or in kind in the past to any of the shareholders of the subsidiary who may be
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related parties of Promoter / Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/
Promoter Group, Subsidiary/ (s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group of the parent listed Company, and if
that subsidiary is being merged with the parent listed Company under the Scheme.

Not applicable, since the share of Discoverture Solutions L.L..C and Relational Solutions Inc were
acquired by the Company from persons who were not the Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties
of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/
Promoter Group of the Company.

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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